N\

Y

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited

IS IRBEBETRAR

(Incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

(RESEHEZMA LK BERAT)
Stock Code BHX3E : 1755

PN

2019

ANNUAL REPORT



E 4% CONTENTS

SIS E S

Awards and Honors

NG

Corporate Profile

NAEIER

Corporate Information

MR EBRE

Financial and Business Summary
IS

Chairman’s Statement

EREr RO
Management Discussion and Analysis
EEREREERE

Directors and Senior Management
EERWE

Report of the Directors

11

14

18

24

39

45

EERME

Corporate Governance Report

RE e hERRE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B ZHE RS

Independent Auditor’s Report

a2 EKRAK

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e IR &

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEERBEHRK

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FERERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BTSRRI T

Notes to the Financial Statements

72

93

F-123

F-131

F-132

F-134

F-136

F-138



Ei “—ZmE" HE,

B "FIRNMEERLE" NFR

Implementing strategic initiative of “one core and two increments” to achieve

the corporate vision of “achieving excellence for a happy community” O

NREE R

BRUEFASENERERBER, NAEREE
MRRNEEEA,

UEFRERRERER, UMEFRBRNETIRESEN, SBERE
BR, SEERRBRE,

Property Manadement Services

e . . . °
Building up customer-oriented service system
which is a cornerstone of sustainable business

development.

Taking customer satisfaction as the bottom line, coordinated
with customer-oriented experience and employee welfare, to
reshape the management system and consolidate the service

quality.
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Value-added Services

BELENMERERBES, RARAKEEENERLE.
M—EMEFREANR, MNEESERESAMELETEREER, BERKYE. BHBOEREREER.

Building up varieties of community value-added services that can enhance business value.

Based on the premise of certain customer satisfaction, we will incubate key services in two aspects, for proper-

ties and for residents; to build up our strond and highly profitable community value-added service portfolio.

IBEiRE
Third-party Expansion

BEEHRE. HHEENI/MAER, METERKE, EMRENR.

MERREMTECHMEEGSER, RESEFROFRLHEHRE, RMESEHHBER=ETE,

Building up expansion strategy with regional focus and flexible decision-making mechanism

to support scale growth and breakthrough in non-residential sectors.

Sought out regional expansion strategies by different city tiers and penetration levels. Using multiple expansion

approaches (joint ventures, M&A, and projects bidding) together for growth in management GFA.
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Smart Community Services

ERRARR

O Night Lighting System

HEA R
Fire Extinguishing System

B T, TRAER L

ERETRA

Elevator Operating System

AR RS
Public Lighting System

ERRMR

Passengers Flow Statistical System
BB = AR B ERE R

HVAC System Security Alarm System
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14 mega commercial projects completed during the year

RIS R

Video Surveillance System

B 9

RERERMR

Utilities Control System

SBHEK ARG
Water Supply and Drainage System

%

FEEEERGR

Parking Lot Management System

REBRMR
AC Distribution System
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AWARDS AND HONORS

Leading Enterprise in Jiangsu Property Management Market in
2019
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2019 Blue Chip Property Management Companies
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2019 Gold Medal Awards of Property Management
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2019 Top 50 Most Valuable Brand of Property Management Services
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2019 Leading Companies in terms of growth in Property
Management Services
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2019 Top 10 Listed Companies of Property Management Services
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2019 Top 500 Property Management Companies
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2019 Top 100 Property Management Companies in China
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2019 China Top 10 Property Management Companies in terms 2019 Jingangu Most Valuable Listed Company in Property

of growth Management Services
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2019 Outstanding Investment Value Enterprise
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The Most Potential Listed Company in 2019
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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We are a rapidly growing provider of property management services
in China. We have been providing property management services in
China for more than 24 years. According to China Index Academy
(the "CIA") statistics, for five years in a row, we made it to the
list of top ten property services enterprises of a growing nature in
China. In addition, according to the list of top 100 Chinese property
management services enterprises announced by the CIA, our ranking
moved up from the 34th in 2010 to 13th in 2019. As of 31 December
2019, the property management services agreements we signed
covered 109 cities in 27 provinces, accounting for a total GFA of
152.8 million square metres, and projects under management covered
44 cities with GFA under management of 60.2 million square metres
in total currently. We provide extensive property management services
and value-added services for property developers as well as residents
and tenants from the communities managed by us. We have also
developed a one-stop information services platform called Orange
APP. Our residents and customers can enjoy the services we provide
through their mobile devices. Based on our excellent services and
enhanced market reputation, we have built a property services brand
emphasizing quality and customers.

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Past records show that our revenue has been primarily derived
from two business lines — property management services and
value-added services. Our value-added services cover three business
categories comprised of developer-related value-added services,
community-related value-added services and smart community services
(originally the “professional services”).

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

We provide an extensive range of property management services to
residents and tenants, including property and facilities maintenance,
security services, maintenance and cleaning services, horticulture
services, public areas repair and maintenance and other property
management related services. We manage diverse property portfolios,
including residential and non-residential properties, from office
buildings, multi-purpose complexes and factories to parks and
industrial zones. From past records, the majority of our revenue came
from property management services.

8
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VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

Our value-added services encompass three types of services:
developer-related value-added services, community-related value-added
services and smart community services (originally the “professional
services”).

> Developer-related value-added services: We provide primarily
three types of services related to property developers:

o Sales office services: We provide onsite and standard
room maintenance and cleaning, security patrols and
surveillance, vehicle parking, reception and guidance
services to enhance the viewing experiences of potential
property owners. We also organize service activities and
other related customer services for potential property
owners.

o Consultancy services: Our consultancy services include
property consultancy services for the entire property
development cycle, including design consultancy.
After property handover, we also provide property
developers with provisional assistance, such as property
maintenance as well as liaison and coordination with
property developers during period of quality coverage.

o Building inspection services: Onsite inspection and
acceptance and risk evaluation services prior to property
handover.

> Community-related value-added services: We provide

value-added services to residents and customers in the
communities we manage, including:

. Xinyuehui* (3112 €) - Public resources management
services: we operate and manage public areas
authorized by property owners, such as the rental
advertisement display areas.

. Xinchengju* CHT#&/8) - Extensive decoration services:
We provide off-line information services to residents of
newly delivered properties, including interior decoration
and renovation and the purchases of furniture and
home electronics.

IR R EMAER L T S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
201944 % 2019 Annual Report
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. Xinchengshe* (&1t ) — APP operation services: Through
our one-stop information services platform Orange
APP, we provide related online information services
including online shopping; home electronics warranty;
cleaning, repair and maintenance; travel information
and domestic services.

. Chengxiangjia* (f§ =% ) — Asset management services:
We carry out sales services of delivered carpark spaces
in our communities, provide lease and sale agency
services for the second-hand apartments of property
owners; as well as provide business soliciting and
operation services for shop owners.

Smart community services (originally the “professional
services”): We provide professional engineering and
maintenance services, in relation to lifts and smart security
equipment, to property developers and property projects.

o Smart community service provided to property owners:
We provide solutions and repair and maintenance
services on lifts and various types of public communities
or on the smart facilities and equipment in the
residences of property owners;

o Smart community service provided to developers: We
provide smart engineering subcontracting services for
the newly-built property projects of developers.

* {EHRE * For identification purpose only
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Qi Xiaoming (Chairman)
Ms. Wu Qiangian
Mr. Lan Ziyong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Xiaosong (appointed on 8 July 2019)
Mr. Lv Xiaoping

Mr. Lu Zhongming

Mr. Wang Zhenhua (resigned on 8 July 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. You Jianfeng
Ms. Lam Yuk Ling

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Zhang Yan (Chairman)
Mr. Lu Zhongming
Mr. Zhu Wei

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhu Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Xinmin
Mr. Qi Xiaoming

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Xu Xinmin (Chairman)
Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Lv Xiaoping
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

Suites 3203-3207,32/F, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Merchant Bank, Changzhou Branch
Changzhou Branch Tower 1

No. 88, Tongjiang Road South, Changzhou
Jiangsu, the PRC

Agricultural Bank of China
Tower 1 No. 88

Tongjiang Road South
Changzhou, Jiangsu, the PRC

China Construction Bank, Beijing Road West
Branch of Nanjing

No. 43-6, Beijing Road West, Nanjing
Jiangsu, the PRC

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Qi Xiaoming
Ms. Lam Yuk Ling
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Maples Corporate Services Limited
PO Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman
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Cayman Islands
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Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands
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EBRREBEASTLARAA
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www.xinchengyue.com

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Maples Corporate Services Limited
PO Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

12th Floor, Seazen Holdings Tower B
No. 5, Lane 388, Zhongjiang Road
Putuo, Shanghai

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

31/F, Tower Two

Times Square

1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER AGENT

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1755

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.xinchengyue.com
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS SUMMARY

mEXE Comprehensive Performance

BZE12A31ALEE
For the year ended 31 December

AREFT RMB'000 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
WA Revenue 400,257 573,372 866,370 1,173,388 2,024,026
FIE M % Annual growth % - 43.3% 51.1% 35.4% 72.5%
EF Gross profit 100,445 161,935 242,246 345,022 599,879
FIEIN% Annual growth % - 61.2% 49.6% 42.4% 73.9%
ER=E Gross margin 25.1% 28.2% 28.0% 29.4% 29.6%
FIEIN% Annual growth % - 3.1% -0.2% 1.4% 0.2%
ANEERRFEENL  Net profit attributable to
R equity shareholders
of the Company 22,209 43,333 73,406 152,154 282,011
FIE N % Annual growth % - 95.1% 69.4% 107.3% 85.3%
FR R Net profit margin 5.8% 9.1% 10.6% 14.1% 14.9%
FI-IN% Annual growth % - 3.3% 1.5% 3.5% 0.8%
DEBRIRER Performance by Segments
BZ12A31HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
AR¥EFTT RMB'000 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
MEEERBEERA Revenue from property
management services 293,878 399,201 567,177 732,025 848,955
FI-IN% Annual growth % - 35.8% 42.1% 29.1% 16.0%
BERBE WA Revenue from value-added
services 106,379 174,171 299,193 441,363 1,175,071
FIEMN% Annual growth % - 63.7% 71.8% 47.5% 166.2%
Hrp Including
BRI EREWA  Revenue from developer-related
value-added services 74,442 108,641 175,497 296,746 647,748
FI-IN% Annual growth % - 45.9% 61.5% 69.1% 118.3%
HEEEREBRA Revenue from community-related
value-added services 17,190 27,273 43,304 47,890 176,093
FHEIM% Annual growth % - 58.7% 58.8% 10.6% 267.7%
BEEERK Revenue from smart community
(ETEZERHK ) WA services (originally the
"professional services") 14,747 38,257 80,392 96,727 351,230
FI-IN% Annual growth % - 159.4% 110.1% 20.3% 263.1%
MEEERBEER Gross profit from property
management services 62,943 96,457 143,468 203,503 242,343
EFEEE Percentage of gross profit 62.7% 59.6% 59.2% 59.0% 40.4%

14  HHRBREEBEER AT S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
201944 %R 2019 Annual Report
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS SUMMARY

BZ12A318LLEE

For the year ended 31 December

AREETTT RMB'000 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
BEREER Gross profit from value-added

services 37,502 65,478 98,778 141,519 357,536
EFMELL Percentage of gross profit 37.3% 40.4% 40.8% 41.0% 59.6%
Hrp Including
BRI EMRIEER  Gross profit from developer-

related value-added services 18,896 28,977 38,529 75,718 180,428
EFELE Percentage of gross profit 18.8% 17.9% 15.9% 22.0% 30.0%
HEREREER Gross profit from community-

related value-added services 15,361 23,851 36,803 39,118 113,194
EFNELL Percentage of gross profit 15.3% 14.7% 15.2% 11.3% 18.9%
BEEERY (R Gross profit from smart

[BEERKE ) EF community services (originally

the “professional services”) 3,245 12,650 23,446 26,683 63,914
EFRIELE Percentage of gross profit 3.2% 7.8% 9.7% 7.7% 10.7%
MEEERHFERE  Gross margin of property

management services 21.4% 24.2% 25.3% 27.8% 28.5%
BERKEERE Gross margin of value-added

services 35.3% 37.6% 33.0% 32.06% 30.4%
Hep Including
FHRERERKEERNZE Gross margin of developer-related

value-added services 25.4% 26.7% 22.0% 25.5% 27.9%
HEZEREEFZE Gross margin of

community-related

value-added services 89.4% 87.5% 85.0% 81.7% 64.3%
BEERERK (R Gross margin of smart community

[BE¥BRHK ) EFMZE  services (originally the
“professional services”) 22.0% 33.1% 29.2% 27.6% 18.2%

IR R EMAER L T S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
201944 % 2019 Annual Report
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS SUMMARY

EEEERBE Summary of Balance Sheet
BZ12A31HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
ARBET T RMB'000 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HeERBEESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 119,869 442,922 633,456 1,281,269 1,339,092
B 5 EWE Trade receivables 28,518 52,518 76,918 129,118 262,767
REEE Current assets 342,032 549,933 759,830 1,517,513 2,051,971
BERE Total assets 364,510 595,489 813,573 1,572,198 2,199,567
EHEE Contract liabilities 74,743 108,413 180,714 248,764 390,342
ESREMEMNRE Trade and other payables 228,461 283,673 345,327 416,746 773,760
e s Total liabilities 375,890 479,187 624,529 694,307 1,232,697
EEE Net assets (11,830) 116,302 189,044 877,891 966,870
TEILEE Liquidity ratios 91.0% 114.9% 121.8% 220.4% 168.9%
ReERERRE Summary of Cash Flow Statement
HZ12A31BLLEE
For the year ended 31 December

AREFIT RMB'000 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
RESER Net cash generated from

EENIREER business operations 91,504 93,911 198,253 185,586 544,683
BEES (£H), Net cash (used in)/generated

EENBESTHE from investments (255,168) 285,272 (7,719) 9,261 (263,579)
mEEEELE (#EA) Net cash generated/(used in)

MRS E5E from financing 119,253 (56,130) - 429,926  (224,867)
HERERESEEY Net (decrease)/increase of

G4 /& hnEsE cash and cash equivalents (44,411) 323,053 190,534 624,773 56,237

IR RIS EE AR 2T S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
201944 %R 2019 Annual Report



R ISE ) SHE S

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS SUMMARY

XBBBERE Summary of Business Figures
BZE12A31HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

FERHK 1,000 sg.m. 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
EEmMRE GFA under management
HMEE Handover 4,453 8,151 8,874 7,530 18,524
Hrh Including
HEE - MW ZAE Handover — Seazen Group 3,662 2,255 5,375 4,295 12,350
EE —£=7 Handover — third parties 791 5,896 3,499 3,235 6,174
Sl Terminations 0 0 87 920 1,259
Hrp Including
I — TR Terminations — Seazen Group 0 0 0 0 26
WIE—%8=xH Terminations — third parties 0 0 87 920 1,233
HAEEERE GFA under management as at

the end of the period 19,339 27,490 36,277 42,887 60,152
FEEEE — FEM%  GFA under management

— Net increase % - 42.1% 32.0% 18.2% 40.3%
Hrh Including
EEEE - TR GFA under management

— Seazen Group 18,548 20,803 26,178 30,473 42,797
HEEEE-F=7 GFA under management

— Third parties 791 6,687 10,099 12,414 17,355
HAREHEE Contracted GFA as at the end of

the period 32,253 47,663 67,808 112,199 152,777
BHEME — FHMN%  Contracted GFA -Net increase % - 47.8% 42.3% 65.5% 36.2%
EHep Including
HREE — IR Contracted GFA

— Seazen Group 30,790 37,127 51,673 87,689 119,413
BHEE -E=7 Contracted GFA — Third parties 1,463 10,536 16,135 24,510 33,364

IR RIS EE AR 2T S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
201944 % 2019 Annual Report
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To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of the Company, | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

2019 marked the first complete accounting year for the Company
since its listing. As a newly listed company, the Company has been
strictly complying with its information disclosure obligations for public
companies and maintaining close contact with the capital markets.
Net profits for both 2018 and the first half year of 2019 disclosed
by the Company during 2019 recorded rapid growths. The Company
received a positive response from majority of investors and its market
value has repeatedly reached historical highs. At the same time, the
Company has been recognized by more and more organizations from
industry and third-parties, and has been successively awarded “Top
10 Listed Property Management Service Providers in 2019”, “13th
of Top 100 Property Management Service Companies in China in
2019", “Top 50 Property Management Service Enterprises in terms of
Brand Value in 2019", “"Top 10 of the Top 100 Property Management
Service Companies in China in terms of growth in 2019", “Blue Chip
Property Management Companies in 2019” and other awards by the
organizations, including China Property Management Association, the
CIA, China Property Management Research Institution.

THE GOLDEN ERA OF THE PROPERTY
MANAGEMENT INDUSTRY

The property management industry was one of the most eye-catching
industries in the capital market in 2019, with 11 companies tapping
into the capital market through IPOs or restructurings during this year.
The growth in the property management sector throughout the year
was among the highest in Hong Kong capital market, among which,
six companies recorded annual stock price increases of more than
100%. The property management industry is one of the only few
industries that managed to maintain the certainty in its growth, while
the trade protectionism resulting in uncertainty in the global economy

Z— e growth in 2019, for which the property management industry was
sought after by the capital markets.
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China is at a preliminary stage of expansion in consumer services and
the property management industry is just at the beginning of a radical
industry change. We believe that it is currently the golden era for
the property management industry for the below reasons: 1) increase
in industry demand: Chinese residents are paying more attention
to service experience, which will stimulate innovation in property
management services and promote the continuous growth in industry
scale and prices; 2) high-tech empowered approach: the property
management industry connects communities and residents with a
large number of IoT, big data, and application scenarios of Al. At
present, more and more high-tech applications have been applied in
property management companies; 3) convergence of high-end talents:
with more and more companies going public, property management
companies offer more incentives to attract high-end talents. With the
increasing frequent application of high technology, high-end talents
are increasingly demanded by the industry.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2019, the Company has achieved a rapid and high quality growth.
While achieving rapid growth in each financial indicators, the
Company also recorded rapid growth in the satisfaction of its property
management service. In 2019, revenue of the Company amounted to
RMB2,024.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 72.5%,
mainly attributable to a year-on-year increase of more than 250%
in community value-added services and smart community services
(i.e., the original “professional services”). In 2019, net profit of the
Company amounted to RMB301.9 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 82.9%, while net profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company amounted to RMB282.0 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 85.3%. Profitability of the Company in 2019
has also been further enhanced. Overall gross profit margin of the
Company increased by 0.2 percentage points to 29.6% compared
with 2018, while net profit margin of the Company increased by 0.8
percentage points to 14.9% compared with 2018. Net cash flow of
the Company from operating activities amounted to RMB544.7 million.
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With regard to property management service business, revenue of
property management of the Company amounted to RMB849.0 million
in 2019, representing a year-on-year increase of 16.0%. As of the
end of 2019, the Company recorded gross floor area (“GFA") under
management amounting to 60.2 million sq.m., representing a year-
on-year increase of 40.3%, and contracted GFA amounting to 152.8
million square meters, representing a year-on-year increase of 36.2%.
The ratio of the contracted GFA and the GFA under management of
the Company maintained at a relatively high level of 2.54. Thanks to
the rapid growth in both contracted GFA and GFA under management,
the Company’s revenue generated from property management services
will be expected to grow steadily. In 2019, the Company has made
efforts to explore opportunities from third parties by increasing its
number of staff to business development teams of the Company by
100% compared with the end of 2018. The Company’s contracted
GFA acquired from third parties in 2019 reached 10.1 million sq.m.,
of which more than 70% are new projects. In 2019, the Company
expanded its expansion channels by establishing joint venture property
management companies with small-medium sized regional real estate
developers. These joint venture property management companies
will provide property management services for all real estate projects
developed or will be developed by these developers in the future.
In 2019, we established joint ventures with 3 real estate developers
and locked up a total of more than 8 million sq.m. of potential GFA
under management. In 2019, the gross profit margin of our property
management services increased by 0.7 percentage points compared
with 2018, reaching 28.5%, which was mainly attributable to: 1)
new project ratio of the Company continued to increase, while new
projects generally have a higher gross profit margin; 2) the Company
continued to optimize the project portfolio and gradually removed
some of the projects with poor profitability and have no potential
for improvement out of our business portfolio; 3) the Company has
improved the incentive mechanism for the first-line management team
so that the first-line management team could reap the project profits
and satisfaction results they have achieved.

20

IR RIS EE AR 2T S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited

201944 %R 2019 Annual Report



ER®E
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EHEEERSHFE - R2019F - 2F &%
WAERTARBI761EE L ALLEER
267.7% AR RIBALLHIS.7% ¢ [EfF - #£
EEEREHEFEINARBI13 258 T
IEARRATEER L FI18.9% © # & 1 E IR W
ARRR EF - RSHRARAREEETEER
RIBARBAFTEBRBORRIER - BEE
BEBREB - ARFH2018FMBABEN
HEMNIEET  ZEBKL2019F IS 2258 14 18
K 2FHEBMEN4561E: FREAR
Bt BRI NRAEFTINEEHE NG
MUARARABFIZEMNAEER - HREMAM
T OABREBERBOZLOENDRAEAZEENGT
e RFI2019FEE HIEE TRETE R E
BEEEMEMNMISBEERMITHED &
BTHEENUR -

ERERBERE B R2019F 5 2F 4
EWANENARBII2EE T RLEER
263.1% > ZEBRMHPRIER FZBRZNA
AREESETIRBEIFENRNME - BN
BETRBIXMNBEEENFEEEERES
TRAZEEIBZIER - 2019F » HF—H=ET
TIMEAREEERIHIAR - BE - A2 72019
FULBE® EEEHE BRI ARAR ([ LEE
WD ETHEEEREAGEF AT I21E
2HEBER 0 FBEMETHEERE EBKR
20199 AMMAEARRINFEE XM ES
—HAAEEREMEEHE - RMEEEER
ERAFTRREGERAARTEZREREH
ROFTIG R 2 o

With regard to community-related value-added services, annual
revenue in 2019 amounted to RMB176.1 million, a year-on-year
increase of 267.7%, representing 8.7% of the total revenue of the
Company. Meanwhile, gross profit of the community-related value-
added services amounted to RMB113.2 million, representing 18.9%
of the total gross profit of the Company. The rapid growth in revenue
from community-related value-added service was due to the significant
growth in asset management business segment and ready-to-move-
in services segment of the Company. As for the asset management
business segment, the Company has started a pilot parking space sales
agency business since 2018, which had achieved a breakthrough in
growth in 2019, with 4,561 parking spaces being sold throughout the
year. Regarding the ready-to-move-in business segment, the growth
momentum was driven by the increase in the number of new handover
projects and the new self-operated business developed by the
Company. The core competency of community value-added services
for us is the marketing ability to owners. In 2019, we focused on
cultivating marketing capabilities for business units from headquarters
to various projects level and certain self-operated products, all of
which achieved significant results.

With regard to smart community services, the annual revenue in 2019
amounted to RMB351.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 263.1%. The rapid growth in this business segment is mainly due
to aggressive expansion in smart engineering construction of the
Company. The business scope of our smart projects construction has
expanded from residential projects to large smart mall projects. In
2019, we completed a total of 14 large-scale smart mall projects.
At the same time, the parking management system of Shanghai
Shuyuan Information Technology Co., Ltd. ( E/8&URE BRI ER A F)
(“Shanghai Shuyuan”) acquired by the Company in 2019 completed
a total of 21 parking projects throughout the year. The smart home
business of Shanghai Shuyuan was treated as a self-operated product
targeting to owners upon handover of our new projects since
September 2019. We believe that smart home solutions and products
will become a new growth point of smart community business of the
Company.
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With regard to developer-related value-added services, annual revenue
amounted to RMB647.7 million in 2019, representing a year-on-year
increase of 118.3%. The growth of this business was mainly due to
the year-on-year increases in number of new sales offices and the
delivery GFA of Seazen Group Limited (listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with
stock code: 1030, together with its subsidiaries, the “Seazen Group”)
in 2019. We will, as always, provide quality services to Seazen Group
and strengthen the strategic cooperative relationship between the two
parties. We provided sales offices service or consulting services for 30
cooperating third-party developers in 2019. Revenue from value-added
services provided by third-party developers accounted for 5.8% of that
from developer-related value-added services.

PROSPECTS

Earlier this year, the country was faced with an unprecedented
outbreak of COVID-19. Against such a backdrop, the property
practitioners nationwide, as the most basic social management
unit, are actively cooperating with relevant authorities in epidemic
prevention and control. We are determined to fulfill the social
responsibilities of property enterprises and always take pride in our
efforts to make property owner’s health and safety as our top priority.
In view of the recent advances in virus research, and the concerted
efforts made by the whole nation to fight against the disease, we
believe that the situation can be quickly brought under control and
social economic activities will get back on a normal track.

In the prevention and control of the outbreak, the front-line staff
of the Company has demonstrated excellent service spirit which we
believe such spirit are perceived by the owners, which will in turn
further strengthen the trust and connection between the Company
and the owners, thus laying a solid foundation for the sound and
rapid development of the Company’s business.

In 2019, the Company formulated a new three-year strategic plan and
established a corporate vision of “achieving excellence for a happy
community”: response to customer’s demands in an efficient way,
develop digital and intelligent technology to build a happy life, provide
quality service for the enjoyment of the owners, and improve our
system so that our employees can enjoy working here. We have built a
three-year core strategic initiative of “one core and two increments”.
We took customer service satisfaction as our core concern, strived to
increase our business by acquiring projects from third parties based
on our strategic distribution, and developed services focusing on
sustainable business for owners to generate profits.
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We will further optimize the employee incentive system of the
Company, including equity incentive for middle and senior
management, special incentive mechanism for city companies and
business units, and partner incentive mechanism for project Group.
The Company will further enhance system innovation of project
management and customer services, promote the project Group
management system and network customer service mechanism
one step at a time in an all-around way, improve customer service
experience and management efficiency, so as to control costs
effectively. Moreover, the Company will continue to optimize risk
management and control mechanism, including internal financial
and cost control mechanism, internal audit system and emergency
management mechanism, and will complete the construction and
implementation of the intelligent platform of the Group, thereby
manage risk prevention and control from post event to during the
course of the event and with the ultimate aim of reaching pre-event
risk management and control.

We firmly believe that the property management industry is at its
golden era, and the Company is also at a new starting point of
corporate development. To this end, we will continue to fulfill our
obligations to the society, our customers, staff and shareholders,
continue to make improvement and create opportunities for value
creation.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
Qi Xiaoming
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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The Group is a fast-growing national property management service
provider and once again has been ranked among the Top 10 of the
Top 100 Property Management Service Companies in China in terms of
growth selected by China Index Academy in 2019. At the same time,
the Group ranked 13th among the Top 100 Property Management
Service Providers in China in 2019, and moved up three places from
2018, maintaining a strong upward momentum.

In terms of property management services, as the completion rate
across the real estate industry picks up, residential property delivery
will see leap frog development. Based on the good cooperation
relationship between the Group and Seazen Group, our GFA under
management is beginning to grow rapidly, which will certainly increase
our revenue from property management service. In terms of value-
added services, the Group proactively deployed community-related
value-added services and smart community services according to
its established plans. With sufficient team members and improved
business capability, these two business segments saw phenomenal
growth.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

In 2019, the revenue of the Group amounted to RMB2,024.0 million,
representing an increase of 72.5% over the same period in 2018,
which was RMB1,173.4 million.

The revenue of the Group derived from four segments: (i) property
management services; (ii) developer-related value-added services; (iii)
community-related value-added services; and (iv) smart community
services.

20195 2018%F BRE

2019 2018  Growth rate

AR¥FT ARKFT %

RMB’000 RMB’000 %

Y% E R Property management services 848,955 732,025 16.0
i B P IR B AR 7% Developer-related value-added services 647,748 296,746 118.3
tRIZE RS Community-related value-added services 176,093 47,890 267.7
BER RS Smart community services 351,230 96,727 263.1
CH Total 2,024,026 1,173,388 72.5
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. YEE R . Property management services
2019 F REFMYESTERBWA LA In 2019, the property management services revenue of the
R840 08 BT - B2018E R AR Group amounted to RMB849.0 million, representing an increase

of 16.0% over the same period in 2018, which was RMB732.0
million, accounting for 41.9% in the revenue. The increase in
property management services revenue was in line with the
increase in GFA under management and unit price of property

¥732.08 8 T N116.0% © 15 AR
41.9% - ¥ T IR RS UL A BE Z R AFIEY
EEMRULRESEBEENRAM

B management fee.
TR AEBAESEBHE(LISR The change in GFA under management of the Group is set out

in the following table:

HENANEGHEZABLFE
As of or for the year ended 31 December

20195 20185

2019 2018
ES nx
EEMRH B
EEER AR N1 N BRE EEmR HEY LN
Proportion Proportion
of revenue of revenue
from property from property
GFA under Area  management Net Growth GFA under Area management
management  proportion service increase rate  management proportion service
FEEA % % FEoR % TR % %

thousand thousand thousand

5q.m. % % sq.m. % sq.m. % %
e Seazen Group 42,79 71 715 12,34 40.4 30,473 711 78.1
=5 Third parties 17,355 289 25 4,94 398 12,414 289 219
L Total 60,152 100.0 100.0 17,265 403 42,887 100.0 100.0
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TREAIANEEFALEEHENSEH Details of the change in GFA under management of the Group
4q are set out in the following table:
BE12A3185
BEZBHLEE
As of or for the year ended
31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
FFEF5K FF5K
thousand sq.m. thousand sq.m.
NEEE At the beginning of the period 42,887 36,277
e Handover 18,524 7,530
Hep - Including:
EE — WA Handover - Seazen Group 12,350 4,295
MEE =7 Handover - Third parties 6,174 3,235
1k Terminations 1,259 920
A : Including:
Ay — R Terminations - Seazen Group 26 0
B —F=F Terminations - Third parties 1,233 920
RHEAR At the end of the period 60,152 42,887

HE2019F12A8318 REFENEE
H1& /26028 & T 75K - 20184 [
Hl42 9B B F H oK EF403% - EAE
WMENEEBMBEL L R71.1%342.8
BEYAK EZAMNEEEEWGLR
28.9%k17.48 8B F K o B E20194F
12A318  REEEBHEENFRIES
FE - HhHHBIB60%EEmENER
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As of 31 December 2019, the GFA under management of the
Group amounted to 60.2 million square meters, representing
an increase of 40.3% over the same period in 2018, which
was 42.9 million square meters, among which, the GFA

under management of Seazen Group accounted for 71.1% or

amounted to 42.8 million square meters, while the GFA under
management of the third parties accounted for 28.9% or
amounted to 17.4 million square meters. As of 31 December
2019, the age of existing projects of the Group is relatively

young, and more than 60% of GFA under management of

those projects is less than five years.
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The increase in the GFA under management is mainly due
to the delivery of new houses. As the completion of the real
estate industry picks up, the growth rate of the GFA under
management of the Group starts to gain traction, and there
will be a lot of new houses delivered each year in the future.
Apart from the projects from Seazen Group, the Group has
kept its focus on new third-parties projects as the main
expansion target. Meanwhile, the third-party projects expanded
in the past are being delivered gradually. Among the 6.2 million
square meters of third-party projects that have been handed
over in 2019, the newly delivered projects amounted to 5.2
million square meters, accounting for 84.7%. The proportion
of third-party area of the Group showed no sign of decline
when large amount of handovers took place in Seazen Group,
reflecting the effectiveness of the third parties expansion
strategy.

The regional distribution of GFA under management of the
Group is set out in the following table:

BZ12A31BRBEZBHLEE
As of or for the year ended 31 December

2019 2018%F
2019 2018
LEYES =R/
EERY% HEE B2 fRi% BHEE
it A % EE% WA % HE %
Percentage Percentage
in property in property
management Percentage management Percentage
services  in GFA under services in GFA under
Regions revenue % management % revenue % management %
R=A Yangtze River Delta 83.3 80.8 82.7 86.7
Hep  IHA Of which: Jiangsu Province 58.9 60.7 62.0 68.1
R Bohai Rim 2.2 3.7 1.9 1.7
e Es Midwest 11.5 12.5 1.3 9.6
H=A Pearl River Delta 0.1 0.5 0.0 0.0
Hitn@ Other regions 2.9 2.5 4.1 2.0
A Total 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
i E-ABE I B NT Notes:  Yangtze River Delta includes: Jiangsu, Shanghai and Zhejiang

REeesE - IR - K2 dER i

PERELE - @ T 4 - L -
RIS~ BRA - UF - Il
B5E

Bohai Rim includes: Shandong, Tianjin, Beijing and Hebei
Midwest includes: Anhui, Jiangxi, Hunan, Hubei, Henan, Shaanxi, Shanxi,
Sichuan and Chongging

K=ABeE: ER Pearl River Delta includes: Guangdong
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Driven by the rapid growth of the GFA under management of
the Group, our strategic priority areas became more evenly
distributed, especially in Midwest and Bohai Rim, where the
proportion of the GFA under management continued to
increase. The Group will strengthen its expansion efforts in key
areas in the future to boost the growth in management scale in
each region, so as to benefit from economies of scale.

Change of contracted GFA of the Group is set out in the

following table:

BZ12A31BREBEZAHLEEE

As of or for the year ended 31 December

20195 20184F
2019 2018
HEH
BHERE [ RN BRE AQNEE
Contracted
Contracted GFA Net Growth Contracted
GFA proportion increase rate GFA
FFBHK %  FEBK %  TFEIK
thousand thousand thousand
sq.m. % sq.m. % 5q.m.
PRI Seazen Group 119,413 78.2 31,724 36.2 87,689
E=F Third parties 33,364 21.8 8,854 36.1 24,510
A&t Total 152,777 100.0 40,578 36.2 112,199
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The regional distribution of contracted GFA of the Group is set
out in the following table:

9
BE12A31ARBEZAHLFE
As of or for the year ended 31 December

20195 20184F
2019 2018
it & HENEEY% 1EEHEEY
Percentage in Percentage in
Regions contracted GFA % contracted GFA %
k= Yangtze River Delta 55.7 64.1
Hep ) T#4E Of which: Jiangsu Province 42.4 48.6
RS Bohai Rim 10.0 7.7
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As of 31 December 2019, the contracted GFA of the Group
amounted to 152.8 million square meters, representing an
increase of 36.2% from 112.2 million square meters of the
same period in 2018, among which, the contracted GFA
of Seazen Group accounted for 78.2% or amounted to
119.4 million square meters, while the contracted GFA of
the third parties accounted for 21.8% or amounted to 33.4
million square meters. Benefited from the good cooperation
relationship with Seazen Group and the steady capability
growth of business with third parties, the contracted GFA of
the Group has maintained a high growth rate, laying a solid
foundation for further management development.
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Developer-related value-added services

In 2019, the revenue from developer-related value-added
services of the Group amounted to RMB647.7 million,
representing an increase of 118.3% from RMB296.7 million
of the same period in 2018, among which the revenue from
developer-related value-added services provided to third parties
accounted for 5.8%. During the year, the rapid growth of
revenue from this segment is mainly due to the increased
demand for such service from developers, the number of sales
office and delivery batches provided by us has significantly
increased.

Community-related value-added services

As the key development segment of the Group, the
community-related value-added services have made satisfying
achievement in 2019. During the year, the revenue from
community-related value-added services of the Group
amounted to RMB176.1 million, representing an increase of
267.7% from RMB47.9 million of the same period in 2018.
In 2019, the Group strengthened the service categories and
worked to provide targeted services for house owners, which
has made remarkable achievements. As a result, the proportion
of community-related value-added services revenue grew
rapidly, accounting for 8.7% in total revenue, representing an
increase of 4.6 percentage points from 4.1% in 2018.

Xinchengju (¥7#& /E): Provision of extensive decoration
services, with revenue reached RMB79.8 million,
accounting for 45.3% in community-related value-added
services revenue

In line with the large amount of new house to be delivered
each year in the future, the Group has upgraded the business
mode for original ready-to-move-in business in 2019. In other
words, certain types of products or services are sold by the
Group's sales staff or property management service personnel,
to tap into the potential decoration needs for each project. The
rapid growth of revenue from Xinchengju (¥1#/E) service, on
the one hand, is due to the rapid increase in the GFA under
management, on the other hand, is attributed to the mode
upgrading directly, with a penetration rate for a single project
surpassing 40% in some highly standardized niche services. The
Group will strive to provide more service categories for owners,
covering longer housing life cycle to improve owner experience.
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Chengxiangjia (f#Z2): Provision of asset management
service, with revenue reached RMB60.9 million,
accounting for 34.6% in community-related value-added
services revenue

As the business commenced operation at the end of 2018,
Chengxiangjia (f§ = XR) witnessed a jump in its service revenue,
which shows this segment is of great value. Currently, the
revenue from Chengxiangjia (FE=Z %) business is mainly from
the agency sales of the remaining parking spaces. In 2019,
the parking spaces sold by the Group are 4,561 from 12 cities.
With the development of Chengxiangjia (f§ % X) business,
the Group’s ability to sell large valuable assets have has been
enhanced. To this end, more services related to owner's assets
are expected to be launched in the future.

Xinyuehui (#71%%&): Provision of public resource management
service, with revenue reached RMB23.3 million,
accounting for 13.2% in community-related value-added
services revenue

As there is a sustainable demand for public resource
management service, the increase in its revenue is in line with
the increase in the GFA under management. The Group also
added more convenience services in 2019, such as charging
service for electric bicycles, shared service and recycling service
in the communities.

Xinchengshe (#7#&%t): Provision of sales of online products
and service, with revenue reached RMB12.1 million,
accounting for 6.9% in community-related value-added
services revenue

The revenue from Xinchengshe (¥#E4L) service amounted to
RMB12.1 million, representing an increase of 136.8% from
the same period in 2018. The main types of products for
sale include household appliances, rice, fruits and household
supplies.
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Smart community services (originally the
“professional services”)

The Group provided smart equipment related services to
property owners and families in the community area, as well as
smart engineering construction services to developers. Revenue
from smart community services amounted to RMB351.2 million
in 2019, representing an increase of 263.1% as compared
to RMB96.7 million for the corresponding period in 2018.
The significant increase in revenue from smart community
services was mainly due to the increase in smart engineering
construction services.

Smart community service provided to property owners:
revenue amounted to RMB45.1 million, accounting for
12.9% of the services income from smart community
services

Such service is targeted at the communities after handover,
to meet the continuous maintenance and upgrading needs
for elevator and smart facilities within the communities. In
addition, such service also aims to provide indoor smart home
solutions or products for property owners in the residential
area. Revenue from such service is positively correlated with the
scale of management of the Group.

Smart community service provided to developers: revenue
amounted to RMB306.1 million, accounting for 87.1% of
the services income from smart community services

The smart community service provided to developers by the
Group recorded a fast growth in 2019, which brought a
substantial income for the Group. Such service involves the
installation of smart facilities for the new communities to be
handed over, and is an extension of smart community services
for property owners, which will help the Group to provide more
systematic equipment maintenance service for property owners
after handover.
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Cost of sales

revenue, our overall gross profit margin has increased.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the cost of sales of the Group
amounted to RMB1,424.1 million, representing an increase of 71.9%
as compared to RMB828.4 million in 2018. The increase of the cost of
sales was mainly due to the rapid growth of our businesses. However,
because the cost was growing at a slightly slower rate than that of the

EMREFE Gross profit and gross profit margin
2019F 2018%F
2019 2018
T Eilk IR ERRED EH EH% ERAL
Gross  Percentage Change in Gross Percentage
Gross profit of  gross profit Gross profit of
profit margin  gross profit margin profit margin - gross profit
ARBTFR % % % ARETFL % %
RMB'000 % % % RMB'000 % %
NEEERE Property management services 242,343 285 404 0.7 203,503 278 59.0
REREERE Developer-related
value-added services 180,428 21.9 30.0 2.4 75,718 255 22.0
iR ERE Community-related
value-added services 113,194 64.3 18.9 -17.4 39,118 81.7 1.3
BEEERS Smart community services 63,914 18.2 10.7 9.4 26,683 276 7.7
Ea Total 599,879 29.6 100.0 0.2 345,022 29.4 100.0
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the gross profit of the Group
amounted to RMB599.9 million, representing an increase of 73.9% as

compared to RMB345.0 million for the corresponding period in 2018.
Gross profit margin was 29.6%, up 0.2 percentage points from 29.4%

for the corresponding period in 2018.
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Property management services: gross profit margin
was 28.5%, gross profit amounted to RMB242.3
million, and percentage of gross profit was 40.4%

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the gross profit margin
of property management services was 28.5%, representing
an increase of 0.7 percentage points as compared to the
corresponding period in 2018. The increase in gross profit
margin was due to (i) the delivery of new projects; (ii) the
optimization of the existing project portfolios; and (iii) the
Company has improved the incentive mechanism for the first-
line management team so that the first-line management team
could reap the project profits and satisfaction results they have
achieved. Following the delivery of new projects and charging
of property management fees, the Group still expects possible
growth of the gross profit margin of property management in
the future on the premises that there are no change in other
circumstances.

Developer-related value-added services: gross
profit margin was 27.9%, gross profit amounted to
RMB180.4 million, and percentage of gross profit
was 30.0%

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the gross profit
margin of developer-related value-added services was 27.9%,
representing an increase of 2.4 percentage points as compared
to the corresponding period in 2018. The increase of its gross
profit margin was due to (i) the change in income structure;
and (ii) the enhancement of cost control.

Community-related value-added services: gross
profit margin was 64.3%, gross profit amounted to
RMB113.2 million, and percentage of gross profit
was 18.9%

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the gross profit
margin of community-related value-added services was
64.3%, representing a decrease of 17.4 percentage points as
compared to the corresponding period in 2018. In 2019, more
new business model and services were added by the Group
to community-related value-added services, which changed
the income structure of community-related value-added
services and caused a change in gross profit margin. Although
the gross profit margin of community-related value-added
services recorded a decrease, the Group believed this to be a
predictable and healthy performance, and reflected that the
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value-added services provided to property owners by the Group
are becoming diversified and balanced. The introduction of the
new business model has also led the gross profit of community-
related value-added services record a year-on year increase of
189.4%.

] Smart community services: gross profit margin was
18.2%, gross profit amounted to RMB63.9 million,
and percentage of gross profit was 10.7%

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the gross profit
margin of community-related value-added services was 18.2%,
representing a decrease of 9.4 percentage points as compared
to the corresponding period in 2018. Similarly, the decrease in
gross profit margin was due to the change in income structure,
mainly resulting from the provision of vast smart community
services by the Group to developers during this year.

Administrative expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2019, administrative expenses were
RMB233.9 million, representing an increase of 58.4% over RMB147.7
million for the corresponding period in 2018. The Group recorded
certain option expenses in 2019, but it has less impact on the Group
than that of the listing expenses in 2018. Meanwhile, thanks to the
Group's long-term effective cost control measures, the growth rate of
administrative expenses was lower than that of the Group’s income.

Other gains

During the year, the Group’s other gains amounted to RMB5.7 million,
representing a decrease of 69.0% over the corresponding period in
2018. The change was mainly caused by the fluctuations in exchange
rates during the year.

Income tax

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the income tax was RMB90.1
million, representing an increase of 86.3% as compared to RMB48.4
million for the corresponding period in 2018. The tax rate was 23.0%,
slightly higher than 22.7% in the corresponding period of 2018. The
increase in the tax rate was mainly due to the application of a 25%
income tax rate to individual new subsidiaries at the end of the year,
which raised the overall tax rate.

Under the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group is
exempted from income tax in the Cayman Islands.
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For the Group entities incorporated in Hong Kong, as the Group did
not derive any revenue that is subject to Hong Kong profits tax for the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not make provision for
Hong Kong profits tax accordingly.

Profit for the period

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’'s profit was
RMB301.9 million, an increase of 82.9% from RMB165.1 million for
the corresponding period in 2018; the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was RMB282.0 million, an increase of
85.3% as compared with RMB152.2 million for the corresponding
period of last year; and the net profit margin was 14.9%, up 0.8
percentage points from 14.1% in the corresponding period of last
year.

Liquidity, reserves and capital structure

As of 31 December 2019, the Group maintained a sound financial
position. As at 31 December 2019, the current assets of Group were
RMB2,052.0 million, representing an increase of 35.2% as compared
to RMB1,517.5 million as at 31 December 2018. The cash and cash
equivalents of the Group were RMB1,339.1 million, representing
an increase of 4.5% as compared to RMB1,281.3 million as at 31
December 2018. The Group has sufficient cash, bearing no bank loans
and is in a net cash position. As at 31 December 2019, the current
ratio of the Group was 1.7, which was at a very stable level.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's total equity was RMB966.9
million, representing an increase of 10.1% as compared to RMB877.9
million as at 31 December 2018. The change in equity was due to (i)
profit accumulation; (ii) payment of cash dividend; and (iii) the writing
off on ordinary share repurchase.

Treasury policy

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and maintain a strong and healthy
liquidity position to ensure that the Group is well placed to take
advantage of future growth opportunities.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands (the “Companies Law"”), amounted to approximately
RMB506.3 million (as at 31 December 2018: RMB689.2 million).
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Trade receivables

For the year ended 31 December 2019, trade receivables reached
RMB262.8 million, representing an increase of 103.5% from RMB129.1
million at the end of last year. The Group conducted a strict control
over trade receivables in the second half of 2019, and the turnover
days of trade receivables were 35 days, which was considered to be at
a relatively exceptional level.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment amounted to RMB9.0 million as at
31 December 2019, representing an increase of 6.7% as compared
to RMB8.4 million as at 31 December 2018. It is mainly due to the
additions of equipment required for normal operations.

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables mainly consist of
other receivables due from property owners, utilities, operational
prepayments and others. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
amounted to RMB100.3 million as at 31 December 2019, representing
an increase of RMB4.9 million as compared to RMB95.4 million as at
31 December 2018. It is mainly attributable to the increase in pre-paid
utilities and project deposits as a result of the increase in number of
projects under management.

Trade and other payables

As at 31 December 2019, trade and other payables amounted to
RMB773.8 million, representing an increase of RMB357.0 million as
compared to RMB416.7 million as at 31 December 2018. The increase
was mainly due to an increase in trade and other payables due to third
parties and an increase in accrued salaries.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities mainly represent customer advances for property
management services of RMB390.3 million as at 31 December 2019,
representing an increase of 56.9% as compared to RMB248.8 million
in 2018. It was mainly due to the increase in the number of projects
under management and customers.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no borrowings.

Significant Investment

During the year, the Group held no significant investment.
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not pledge any assets.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Since all of the Group’s business were located in China, revenue and
profits for the year ended 31 December 2019 were calculated in
Renminbi. The foreign currency held by the Group was mainly the
proceeds from listing, all of which were in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group did not consider that there was significant foreign currency
exchange risk.

Future Plans for Material Investment or Capital Assets

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this report, there are no
current plans to acquire any material investment or capital assets other
than in the Group’s ordinary business.

Subsequent Event

Following the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (the “COVID-19
outbreak”) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented across
the country, including extension of the Chinese New Year holiday
nationwide, postponement of work resumption after the Chinese New
Year holiday in some regions, certain level of restrictions and controls
over the travelling of people and traffic arrangements, quarantine of
certain residents, heightening of hygiene and epidemic prevention
requirements in factories and offices and encouraged social distancing,
etc.

In light of the negative impact brought upon by the COVID-19
outbreak in short term, it may lead to increase of costs incurred
by additional hygiene and epidemic prevention requirements when
rendering basic property management services, as well as decrease
of revenue from value-added services including property developer-
related services and smart community services due to various level
of restrictions and controls over property development activities and
community activities.

The Group is not yet able to quantify the aforesaid influence due to
the COVID-19 outbreak. However, the Group will pay close attention
to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and its impact and will
continue to perform relevant assessments and take proactive measures
as appropriate.
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DIRECTORS
Executive directors

Mr. Qi Xiaoming, aged 51, is our chairman, executive Director, chief
executive officer and general manager. He also serves as the chairman
and executive director of Tibet Xinchengyue Property Services Co., Ltd.
("Tibet Xinchengyue”). Mr. Qi joined our Group in January 2015 and
has been responsible for the overall business operation of the Group,
directly managing project development and customer service. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Qi served as the assistant to the manager of
the executive management department in Jiangsu Seazen Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangsu Seazen"”), a subsidiary of Seazen Group and the assistant
president and general manager in Changzhou Future Land Property
Development Co., Ltd. (“Changzhou Future Land”), Chengzhong
Branch from September 2002 to March 2015. He also served as
the assistant president of Seazen Group Limited (stock code: 1030,
formerly known as Future Land Development Holdings Ltd., a company
which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) from March
2015 to June 2016. Jiangsu Seazen and Changzhou Future Land are
the subsidiaries of the Seazen Group.

In July 1992, Mr. Qi graduated from Hefei Industrial University of
Technology with a bachelor degree in engineering.

Ms. Wu Qianqgian, aged 36, is the executive Director and deputy
general manager and has been responsible for customer research
and brand management of the Group. Ms. Wu joined the Group
in August 2012 and has assumed multiple positions, including the
Company’s assistant manager and the assistant general manager and
general manager of changzhou branch. Before joining the Group, Ms.
Wu served as the customer service manager and sales manager of
Changzhou Future Land from June 2007 to July 2012.

In June 2006, Ms. Wu graduated from Yancheng Teachers University
with a bachelor degree in management.

Mr. Lan Ziyong, aged 40, is the executive Director and deputy
general manager. Mr. Lan joined the Group in March 2011 as an
assistant manager of the Company. Before joining the Group, Mr. Lan
served as the deputy manager of sales department and secretary to
the president of Jiangsu Seazen from January 2007 to February 2011.

Mr. Lan was conferred a bachelor degree in engineering management
and a master degree in management by Chongging University in June
2004 and December 2006 respectively.
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Non-executive directors

Mr. Wang Xiaosong, aged 32, joined the Group in July 2019 as a
non-executive Director. Mr. Wang joined Jiangsu Seazen in 2009, as a
civil engineer and subsequently as a project manager. From November
2011 to January 2013, Mr. Wang became the vice president and
general manager of the marketing department of Jiangsu Seazen,
responsible for and gained valuable experience in sales and market
research. Mr. Wang has served as a director of Jiangsu Seazen since
April 2013. In February 2013, Mr. Wang was appointed as president of
Jiangsu Seazen, and has been responsible for its general management;
and from 14 December 2015 to 26 October 2016, he served as the
general manager of Seazen Holdings Co., Ltd.* (FT¥iZRx =@ DA
[R 2 7)) ("Seazen Holdings"), a subsidiary of the Seazen Group listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601155). Since March
2015, Mr. Wang has been a director of Seazen Holdings. He was
appointed as the president of Seazen Holdings on 24 August 2018.
He served as the chairman of Seazen Holdings since 3 July 2019. Mr.
Wang has acted as a non-executive director of the Seazen Group since
October 2013.

Mr. Wang graduated from Nanjing University (F 5K £) with a bachelor’s
degree in Environmental Sciences in 2009.

Mr. Lv Xiaoping, aged 58, has been serving as our non-executive
Director since April 2018. Before joining the Group, he served as
the deputy general manager of Jiangsu Xincheng Enterprise Group
Co., Ltd. from September 2001 to August 2004, and as the general
manager of Seazen Holdings from 30 March 2015 to 15 December
2015. From August 2004 to February 2013, Mr. Lv served as the
director and the president of Jiangsu Seazen, principally responsible
for the overall management of the Group's residential property
development business carried out by Jiangsu Seazen. From February
2013 to January 2016, Mr. Lv served as the vice chairman of Jiangsu
Seazen and has been acting as the director of Seazen Holdings since
December 2015. In November 2012, Mr. Lv was appointed as the
non-executive director of the Seazen Group. He was appointed as the
executive director and CEO in January 2016 and has been holding the
positions until now.

Mr. Lv graduated from Naval University of Engineering in July 1983
with a bachelor degree in engineering and graduated from China
European International Business School with an MBA degree in June
2007.
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Mr. Lu Zhongming, aged 48, has been serving as our non-executive
Director since April 2018. From December 2001 to May 2010, he
served as the general manager of the finance department of Jiangsu
Seazen. From June 2010 to March 2015, he was holding the position
of vice president of Seazen Holdings. In March 2015, Mr. Lu joined the
Seazen Group and has been serving as the vice president.

In June 1999, Mr. Lu graduated from Nanjing Institute of Finance &
Economics and was conferred an MBA degree by Tongji University in
December 2013.

Independent non-executive directors

Ms. Zhang Yan, aged 50, is an independent non-executive Director.
She was an independent director of Tibet Xinchengyue from August,
2016 to February 2018. Before joining the Group, Ms. Zhang worked
for Changzhou Accounting Firm as a clerk, deputy director and
director between August 1992 and December 1998. From January
1999 to December 2000, she served as the chairman and chief
accountant of Changzhou Zhengda Accounting Firm Co., Ltd. Later,
she joined Jiangsu Gongzheng Accounting Firm in January 2001
and had been serving as the managing deputy chief accountant and
director of the firm's Changzhou branch until August 2008. Since
August 2008, Ms. Zhang has been an associate professor at Business
School of Jiangsu University of Technology. From December 2011 to
December 2017, Ms. Zhang served as an independent non-executive
director of EGing Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on Shanghai Stock Exchange, SSE stock code: 600537) and is an
independent non-executive director of Jiangsu Changhai Composite
Materials Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
SZSE stock code: 300196) since February 2016 and is an independent
non-executive director of Changchai Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, SZSE stock code: 000570) since April 2020.

In June 1992, Ms. Zhang graduated from Finance and Economics
School of Soochow University with a bachelor degree in economics.
She was certified as a senior accountant and registered appraiser in
2002 and 2011 respectively.
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Mr. Zhu Wei, aged 58, is our independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Zhu was an independent director of Tibet Xinchengyue from August
2016 to February 2018. Since June 1994, Mr. Zhu has been working
in Jiangsu Zhuhui Law Firm and has served as a partner, director and
the chairman of partners’ meetings. Since December 2002, Mr. Zhu
has also been serving as a postgraduate tutor in Soochow University.
Since October 2015, Mr. Zhu has been an independent non-executive
director of Changzhou Langbo Sealing Technology Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange, SSE stock code: 603655).

In July 1983, Mr. Zhu graduated from Southwest University of Political
Science and Law with a bachelor degree in law. He was conferred
a diploma in law by University of London in December 1997 and a
doctor degree in constitutional law and administrative law by Soochow
University in June 2007 respectively. In August 1998, Mr. Zhu was
certified as a national first-grade lawyer.

Mr. Xu Xinmin, aged 69, is our independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Xu has the title of economist and has accumulated over 20 years
of experience in the real estate industry. Mr. Xu served as the deputy
secretary-general of the China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce
where he was in charge of the work under the research committee
for community services from December 2014 to December 2017.
From August 1992 to February 2001, Mr. Xu acted as the director of
the department of housing management of Changzhou Real Estate
Administration Bureau in Jiangsu and subsequently the director of the
property management office of Changzhou Real Estate Administration
Bureau in Jiangsu. From March 2001 to April 2010, Mr. Xu served
as the director of the general affairs department of China Property
Management Institute. Mr. Xu served as the deputy secretary
general of China Property Management Institute from March 2001
to April 2010, where he was mainly responsible for overseeing the
organization and implementation of nationwide property management
demonstration evaluation and acceptance. In July 2001, Mr. Xu
was appointed as a senior consultant of the Property Management
Committee of Chinese Universities. Since September 2014, Mr. Xu has
been the independent non-executive director of Colour Life Services
Group Co., Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1778).

In June 2005, Mr. Xu graduated from Beijing Forestry University.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zuo Wei, aged 42, is the chief financial officer and deputy
general manager. Mr. Zuo joined the Group in April 2019 and has
been responsible for the finance and accounting of the Group. Mr.
Zuo has over 19 years of experience in professional accounting and
financial management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zuo served
as multiple financial management positions in Shanghai, Nanjing,
Chongging and other regional branches of Vanke Group from July
2001 to August 2015. From August 2015 to October 2017, he served
as deputy general manager in Shanghai business division of CIFI
Holdings Group. From October 2017 to April 2019, Mr. Zuo served as
general manager of financial management department in residential
development business division of Seazen Holdings.

Mr. Zuo graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
with a bachelor degree in management in July 2001, majoring in
accounting, and completed the MBA study at Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law, obtained his master degree of MBA in December
2012.

Mr. You lJianfeng, aged 41, joined the Group in January 2016 as
the vice general manager and has been responsible for strategic
management and investor relationship of the Group. Before joining
the Group, Mr. You worked in Adfaith Management Consulting Inc.
from July 2002 to August 2006, and served as a senior analyst in
Shanghai Huijiang Real Estate Consulting Co., Ltd. from July 2007 to
February 2011. From February 2011 to April 2012, he was the product
management director of Noah Private Wealth Management Co., Ltd.
and the product management director of Shanghai Fanghui Equity
Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd. between April 2012 and
November 2013. From November 2013 to December 2015, he served
as the financing director and vice general manager of the financial
management department of Jiangsu Seazen.

In July 2002, Mr. You graduated from Peking University of Finance
in Guanghua School of Management with a bachelor degree in
economics and obtained his bachelor degree in management by
finishing a minor in e-commerce in Department of Computer Science
and Technology. In June 2008, he was conferred a master degree of
MBA by Fudan University.
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Mr. Wang Zhongqi, aged 37, is the deputy general manager of the
Company. Mr. Wang joined the Group in May 2018 as deputy general
manager and has been responsible for the Group’s community-
related value-added services and various business sectors. Mr. Wang
has over 13 years of experience in diversified operation in property
management industry. Before Joining the Group, Mr. Wang joined the
Longfor Group as school recruitee from July 2006 to August 2014,
and held management position in community-related operation in
Chongqging and the group’s headquarter. From September 2014 to
April 2018, Mr. Wang served as operation expansion director in Ever
Sunshine Lifestyle Services Group Limited.

In July 2006, Mr. Wang graduated from Southwest University of
Political Science and Law business management with a bachelor
degree of business administration, and obtained his bachelor degree in
law by finishing a minor in law.

Ms. Liu Xiyue, aged 38, is the deputy general manager of the
Company and has been responsible for human resources, organization
and administration of the Group since she joined the Group in
September 2019. Ms. Liu has over 10 years of experience in the field
of human resources management. Before joining the Group, Ms. Liu
held the human resources management position in Seazen Group, and
served as assistant general manager of human resources in residential
development department, deputy general manager of marketing
company and human resources center of the group from January 2014
to August 2019. From January 2011 to January 2014, Ms. Liu held
the human resources management position in headquarter of Shui
On Land in Shanghai. From July 2006 to June 2008, Ms. Liu served as
market research analyst in Consumer Behavior Research Co., Ltd.

In July 2006, Ms. Liu graduated from School of Business, University
of Shanghai for Science and Technology with a bachelor degree in
management, and in June 2011, Ms. Liu graduated from School of
Law, Shanghai University with a master degree in law.

*  For identification purpose only
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The Board is pleased to submit the report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended on 31 December
2019 (the “Reporting Period”).

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liabilities on 16 January 2018. The Company was
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 6 November 2018
(the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are property management
services, including property and equipment maintenance, security
services, cleaning services, gardening services, public area maintenance
and other property management related services, and value-added
services, including developer-related value-added services,
community-related value-added services and smart community services
(originally the “professional services”). For the analysis of the
Group's principal activities for the year ended 31 December 2019, see
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

RESULTS

For the Group’s results of the year ended 31 December, 2019, see
the section headed “Financial and Business Summary” of this annual
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.18
per share for the year ended 31 December 2019. The final dividend
is still subject to approval by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 18 June 2020 (the “AGM"), and is expected to be paid on 10
July 2020 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 24 June 2020.
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Our dividend policy

Subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, through a
general meeting we may declare dividends in any currency but no
dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by
the Board. The articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”) provide that dividends may be declared and paid
out of our profit, realised or unrealised, or from any reserve of the
Company lawfully available for distribution including share premium.

The declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Directors, and the amounts of dividends actually declared and paid will
also depend upon the following factors:

. our general business conditions;

° our financial results;

° our capital requirements;

. interests of our Shareholders; and

° any other factors which the Board may deem relevant.

Our future dividend payments to our Shareholders will also depend
upon the availability of dividends received from our subsidiaries in the
PRC. PRC laws require that dividends be paid out of the net profit
calculated according to PRC accounting principles, which differ in
certain aspects from HKFRSs. PRC laws also require enterprises located
in the PRC to set aside part of their net profit as statutory reserves
before they distribute the net proceeds. These statutory reserves
are not available for distribution as cash dividends. Furthermore,
distributions from our subsidiaries may be restricted if they incur debts
or losses or as a result of any restrictive covenants in bank credit
facilities or other agreements that we or our subsidiaries may enter
into in the future.

Any final dividend for a fiscal year will be subject to our Shareholders’
approval. The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

ASSET CHARGES

As at 31 December 2019, none of the assets of the Group were
charged.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year of 2019 and the
discussion regarding the future business development of the Group,
the principal risks and uncertainties which the Group is exposed
to and the compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group are set out in the section
of Chairman’s Statement on page 18 to page 23. The analysis of
the Group’s performance in the year of 2019 with key financial
performance indicators is set out in the section of Management
Discussion and Analysis on page 24 to page 38 of this annual report.

The Group firmly believes that sustainability plays an important role
in its development and is actively applying its ideas to every detail
of the business operations and devoted to delivering a better future
for the society and the Company as well. The Group will publish an
independent environmental, social and governance report according
to Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results and summary of assets and liabilities of the Group during
the last five financial years are set out on page 14 to page 17 of this
annual report. The summary shall not constitute a part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PURPOSES OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 6 November 2018 with the issue of 220,000,000 new
shares (including the issue of 20,000,000 new shares upon the
partial exercise of the over-allotment option), with total net proceeds
from the listing of approximately RMB538.4 million after deducting
underwriting fees and related expenses.
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As of 31 December 2019, the Company has utilized RMB167.7
million of the proceeds from listing, which are and will continuously
be used in accordance with the plans as disclosed in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds - Use of Proceeds”
of the prospectus of the Company dated 24 October 2018 (the
“Prospectus”), namely:

FIERERE (ABEARY)
Net proceeds (RMB million)

BHE Bk B A E8 A KEBA REBAFGRENARNEBERD
Available Expected timeline for the use

Items Percentage to utilize Utilized Unutilized of the unutilized proceeds

ERYEEEIEE 60% 323.0 21.6 3014 ZZE=—F+ZRA=+—HZLZH

Obtaining property

management projects

BERBERS 15%
Expansion of the value-added

services business

KREFRERMRES 15%
Investment in advanced

technology and employees

BEEe R —MREERR 10%
Working capital and general

corporate purpose

Mt BRBTASRNERRERERAREMENZ
EfbE - A RBERRERELES) -

TEEFRMHER
TEEF

HE2019F12A831HIEFE AEEAIAHA
EPMX 5B AEBEEWARS1.3% (2018:
325%) MASKEZE —HAEFPHRSEEE
NEFEWARI50.3% (2018: 31.8%) °

R|EMA - BRERESLEN BEEF - T
RSN ERBE AREMARR BESMAE
BARBNDETRMNEEN5%IA L) RALE
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On or before 31 December 2021

80.8 31.3 495 —E-—F+_A=+—HzzA
On or before 31 December 2021

80.8 61.0 198 —E-—F+_-_A=+—H=ZA
On or before 31 December 2021

53.8 53.8 00 —ZFE=-——F+=-—A=+—Hzza]
On or before 31 December 2021

Note:  The expected timeline for the use of the remaining proceeds is based on the
best estimates made by the Group and will be subject to change based on future
development.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the turnover with the top
five customers of the Group accounts for 51.3% of the Group’s total
revenue (2018: 32.5%), while the turnover with the largest single
customer of the Group accounts for 50.3% of the Group’s revenue
(2018: 31.8%).

During the Reporting Period, except Mr. Wang Zhenhua, none of the
Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of the Shareholders
(who to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s
five largest customers.
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Major suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the turnover with the top
five suppliers of the Group accounts for 21.9% of the Group’s cost
of sales for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 35.2%), while
the turnover with the largest single supplier of the Group accounts for
12.7 % of the Group’s total procurement (2018: 22.2 %).

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors, or any of their
close associates, or any of the Shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

GEARING RATIO

Our gearing ratio was calculated based on total borrowings divided by
total equity as at the respective date. As at 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2019, the gearing ratio were 0% and 0% respectively. The
Group did not have any borrowings.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out on note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out on note 26 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out on note 27 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately RMB506.3 million (as at 31
December 2018: RMB689.2 million).
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DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual report,
the Directors were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Qi Xiaoming
Ms. Wu Qiangian
Mr. Lan Ziyong

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Zhenhua (resigned on 8 July 2019)
Mr. Wang Xiaosong (appointed on 8 July 2019)
Mr. Lv Xiaoping

Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, the
Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only
until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association, at every
annual general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall retain office
until the close of the meeting at which he retires and shall be eligible
for re-election thereat.
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Therefore, Ms. Wu Qiangian, Mr. Wang Xiaosong, Mr. Lv Xiaoping and
Mr. Xu Xinmin shall retire from office by rotation and have offered
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Details of the retiring Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set
out on the circular to be sent to the Shareholders.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on page 39 to page 44 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmation of independence from each
independent non-executive Director made in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent during the year ended 31
December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company with an initial term of three years effective from
the Listing Date. The respective executive Directors or the Company
may terminate the contract by a prior written notice of at least
three months. The appointment of an executive Director shall be in
accordance with requirements on Directors’ retirement by rotation
under Articles of Association and applicable Listing Rules.

Each of the non-executive Directors (save for Mr. Wang Xiaosong)
and independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company with a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date. Mr. Wang Xiaosong had signed a
letter of appointment with the Company to serve as a non-executive
Director, with a term of three years commencing from the date of
his appointment as a non-executive Director (i.e. 8 July 2019). In
accordance with their respective letters of appointment, each of the
independent non-executive Directors is entitled to receive a fixed
amount of director’s emoluments while the non-executive Directors are
not entitled to receive any remuneration. Relevant appointments shall
be in accordance with the requirements on Directors’ retirement by
rotation under Articles of Association and applicable Listing Rules.
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Except for those disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered
into any service contracts with any members of the Group, excluding
the contracts expiring within a year or may be terminated by the
employers without paying any compensation (legal compensations

excluded).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

On 25 November 2019, the Company entered into an agreement
with Mr. Wang Xiaosong (as attorney for and on behalf of Mr. Wang
Zhenhua, a controlling Shareholder) in relation to the provision of
certain property management related services to companies (including
the Seazen Group) in which Mr. Wang Zhenhua can exercise or control
the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power at their general
meetings and their subsidiaries (the “2020 Services Framework
Agreement”). Mr. Wang Xiaosong is the son of Mr. Wang Zhenhua,
thus, was considered as having a material interest in the 2020 Services
Framework Agreement. Such transactions were approved by the
independent Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 16 January 2020.

On 6 May 2019, Changzhou Wanrui Intelligent System Engineering
Co., Ltd*(BMBEZ R RXA LR BR AT, a subsidiary of the
Company (as purchaser) entered into a contract with Mr. Wang
Zhenhua (a controlling Shareholder of the Company and the then
non-executive Director) and Ms. Wang Jianmei (as vendors) to acquire
100% equity interest in Shanghai Shuyuan which is principally engaged
in the research, sales and construction in relation to intelligent home
indoor products and intelligent car parking system products.

Save for the transactions, arrangements or contracts set out above
and in the sections titled “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under “Report of the Directors”
of this annual report and note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transaction, arrangement or contract that is
significant in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a person who was
a Director or his or her connected entity had, directly or indirectly,
a material interest subsisted at any time during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business were entered
into or existed during the Reporting Period and as of the date of this
annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 6,076 full time
employees in the PRC. Total employee benefit expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately RMB587.8
million, which included (i) wages, salaries and bonuses, (ii) pension
(iii) housing funds,
insurances, (iv) other employee benefits and (v) share option scheme,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”.

costs, medical insurances and other social

The Company persists in establishing and optimizing a value-oriented
unified remuneration system based on a proactive and effective
incentive mechanism, materializing optimization of resources allocation
and maximization of corporate efficiency; adhering to the philosophy
of market allocation based on value of position, contribution in terms
of capability and performance difference; maintaining competitiveness
of remuneration, attracting, motivating and retaining core staff. Staff
remuneration is mainly comprised of wages of different positions,
wages in terms of performance, allowances and grants, and social
insurance.

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
remuneration policy and structure for the remunerations of all
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group's operating results, individual performance of the Directors and
senior management and comparable market practices.

Details of the remunerations of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out on note 8 to the financial statements.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
PROGRAMS

The details of the Company’s retirement and employee benefit
programs are set out on note 8 to the financial statements.
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
INFORMATION

Mr. Cai Wenwei, the chief financial officer of the Company, resigned
on 1 April 2019 and Mr. Zuo Wei was appointed as the chief financial
officer of the Company with effect from 1 April 2019. Mr. Wang
Zhenhua, a former non-executive Director, resigned on 8 July 2019,
and Mr. Wang Xiaosong was appointed as a non-executive Director on
the same day.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that no information
is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO
(including interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of SFO, to be entered into the register maintained by
the Company, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) were as
follows:
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R/ NBR S A EmEBA 3,000,000 0.37%
Mr. Qi Xiaoming Beneficial owner
WFEBELEE BHEAA 1,030,000® 0.13%
Mr. Lan Ziyong Beneficial owner
REELL EHEBAA 1,030,000 0.13%

Ms. Wu Qiangian Beneficial owner
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On 2 September 2019, Mr. Qi Xiaoming was granted 1,500,000 share options by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme.

On 2 September 2019, Mr. Lan Ziyong was granted 1,000,000 share options by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme.

On 2 September 2019, Ms. Wu Qiangian was granted 1,000,000 share options by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
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Directors and chief executive of the Company held or was deemed
to have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (as
defined in Part XV of SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of SFO (including interests and short positions which were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of SFO, to be entered into the
register maintained by the Company, or otherwise which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period,
there were no rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were there any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its
controlled companies, or affiliates and their subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other corporations.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
in accordance with Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required to be entered in the register kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO:

NAEAATEERZHFA Long position of the Company’s ordinary shares
BR & B RERMEE FEROBE BRESOEIL

Approximate

Identity and nature of Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholders interest shares held  shareholding
IiRE ((EEED ZREFEMAIAA (BFFE1) 600,000,000 73.34%
Wang Zhenhua (“Mr. Wang”) Founder of a discretionary trust
(Note 1)
Infinity Fortune Development Limited ZEEERER (E2) 600,000,000 73.34%
Interest in a controlled corporation
(Note 2)
First Priority Group Limited RiEEE R (MEE2) 600,000,000 73.34%
Interest in a controlled corporation
(Note 2)
Wealth Zone Hong Kong 2 EERER (HEE3) 600,000,000 73.34%
Investments Limited
Interest in a controlled corporation
(Note 3)
Innovative Hero Limited EmEB A (H5E4) 600,000,000 73.34%

Beneficial owner(Note 4)
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Notes:

1. Mr. Wang was the founder of Hua Sheng Trust, through which, Standard Chartered
Trust (Cayman) Limited held long position in 600,000,000 shares through its
controlled corporations in its capacity as the trustee. Mr. Wang resigned as
non-executive Director on 8 July 2019.

2. Standard Chartered Trust (Cayman) Limited, as trustee of Hua Sheng Trust, which
was established by Mr. Wang as settlor in favor of his family members, held,
through its nominee, Global Nominees Ltd., 100% of the issued share capital of
Infinity Fortune Group Limited, which in turn held 100% of the issued share capital
of First Priority Group Limited.

3. Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited is 100% held by First Priority Group
Limited.

4. Innovative Hero Limited is 100% held by Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2019, the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any persons
(other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange in accordance with Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were required to be entered in the register
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally adopted by a written resolution of the Shareholders
on 20 October 2018. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Company to grant options to eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to
the Group.
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Participants of the Scheme

The Board may, at their absolute discretion, invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes of participants to take up
options to subscribe for Shares:

Any employee (whether full time or part time) of our Company, its
subsidiaries or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which our Group
holds any equity interest, including:

(a) any executive Director of our Company, its subsidiaries or
Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive Director (including independent non-
executive Director) of our Company, its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

() any senior management of our Company, its subsidiaries or
Invested Entity;

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the options may
be granted to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants. For the
avoidance of doubt, any person who falls within any of the above
classes shall not, by itself, unless the Board otherwise determines, be
construed as a grantee of option under the Share Option Scheme.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to our
Company as consideration for the grant.

Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of our Company must not in aggregate exceed
80,000,000 Shares, being 10% (the “Scheme Mandate Limit")
of the Shares in issue on the date of Listing (but taking no account
of any Shares which may be issued under the exercise of the Over-
allotment Option (as defined in the prospectus)), being 800,000,000
Shares. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised or outstanding options) to each eligible
person in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of our Company for the time being (the “Individual
Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such further
grant must be subject to the issue of a circular to the Shareholders
and the Shareholders' approval in general meeting of our Company
with such eligible person and its associates abstaining from voting.

Time of acceptance and exercise of Option

An option may be accepted by an eligible person within 15 days from
the date of the offer of grant of the option.

Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions on
the exercise of the option, an option may be exercised one year after
the date on which the option is granted and shall expire on the earlier
of the last day of (i) a six-year period from the date of such grant and
(i) the expiration of the Share Option Scheme.

Subscription price for Shares

The subscription price (the “Subscription Price”) for Shares under the
Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations on the date of grant
of that option, which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing
price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of that
option; and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.
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Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of six years
commencing from the Adoption Date.

As at 1 January 2019, the number of Shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme was nil. As at 31 December 2019, the number of
Shares in respect of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was 16,000,000,
representing approximately 1.96% of the total issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2019.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme of the Company as at the date of this annual report is
64,000,000, which is approximately 7.82% of the issued share capital
as at the date of this annual report.

For further information regarding the Share Option Scheme, see
“Statutory and General Information — Share Option Scheme” of the
Prospectus. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is around 4
years and 7 months.

On 2 September 2019 (the “Date of Grant”), a total of 16,000,000
share options (the “Share Options”) were granted to three executive
Directors and 29 employees of the Company (the “Grantees”), closing
price per share immediately preceding the Date of Grant amounted to
HK$5.86. The Share Options are valid for a period commencing from
the Date of Grant until 19 October 2024, and vesting of the Share
Options is conditional up the fulfilment of the following conditions:
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(i) REHBBRF12EA81% - RFEBRA (i) upon 12 months from the Date of Grant, and annual individual
FEREVERIEGKR]ER  HEERE performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”, 40% of the
BEHI40% total number of Share Options;

(ii) RELBER24E A% RFEEEA (ii) upon 24 months from the Date of Grant, and annual individual
KBRELEHAK] SR BEBERE performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”, 30% of the
BEM30% 0 & total number of Share Options; and

(iiy R AERE36MEAE - REEEA (i) upon 36 months from the Date of Grant, and annual individual
RBEELVER 618 SR HGEBRE performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”, 30% of the
EEE30% © total number of Share Options.

REZE2019F12A31BILEFER - BIREZ# During the year ended 31 December 2019, changes of the Share

BEBEWT Options are as follows:

#2019F1818 12019512A31H

BRESRH 6@ BRESRH

BRESEARE REBH ROBE FRRH (Bn) ERfTE  FREX  FhE# RHG#E
Number of Shares Number of Shares

involved in the Granted Exercise  Exercised Lapsed  Canceled involved in the

Name of Share Share Options on during price during during during  Share Options on

Options holders Date of Grant 1 January 2019 the year (HKD)  theyear the year the year 31 December 2019

BiES

Executive Directors

BUNAS 201959728 - 1,500,000 6.18 - - - 1,500,000

Mr. Qi Xiaoming 2 September 2019

RfefERt 20199 A2H - 1,000,000 6.18 - - - 1,000,000

Ms. Wu Qiangian 2 September 2019

WTBERE 201959/2H - 1,000,000 6.18 - - - 1,000,000

Mr. Lan Ziyong 2 September 2019

It - - 3,500,000 - - - - 3,500,000

Sub-total

HHARA 201949424 - 12,500,000 6.18 - - - 12,500,000

Other Grantees 2 September 2019

It - - 12,500,000 - - - - 12,500,000

Sub-total

o - - 16,000,000 - - - - 16,000,000

Total
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board resolved to adopt the share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 15 November 2019 (the “Adoption Date”). The
objectives of the Share Award Scheme are: (i) to provide the Selected
Participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company; (ii) to encourage the Selected Participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and the Shares or the benefit
of the Company and its Shareholders; (iii) to provide the Company
with a flexible means of either retaining, incentivising, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to the Selected
Participants. For further details of the Share Award Scheme, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 15 November 2019.

As of 31 December 2019, no share award has been granted under the
Share Award Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, no other Share Option Schemes or share
award schemes were entered into by the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period, or subsisted at the end of the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'’
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions and
Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Report of the Directors,
no controlling Shareholders or its subsidiary had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether for
the provision of services or otherwise, to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

INTERESTS IN

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

On 8 July 2019, the Company repurchased 1,900,000 Shares through
the Stock Exchange, at total consideration approximately of HK$10.6
million, and the highest and lowest price paid per share is HK$5.83
and HK$5.30 respectively. As of the date of this annual report, all
repurchased shares had been canceled. The Board is of the view that
the aforesaid repurchase would lead to an enhancement of the net
asset value per Share and/or its earnings per Share and will benefit the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2019,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under Articles of
Association and Company Law of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On 20 October 2018, our controlling Shareholders (”Controlling
Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-competition in favor
of the Company (for itself and on behalf of all members of the
Group) (“Deed of Non-Competition”),
have undertaken that they would not and, would procure none of
their associates (other than any member of the Group) to directly
or indirectly, engage in any business which competes or is like to

pursuant to which they

compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business as described
in the Prospectus in the PRC or any other places where the Group
carries on business (“Restricted Business”).

For details regarding deed of no competition, see “Deed of
Non-competition” in the section of “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders and Future Land Group”in the Prospectus.

Each of our Controlling Shareholders has made a declaration (the
“Declaration”) as to the compliance with the terms of the Deed
of Non-Competition for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
“Relevant Period”).
Shareholders had fully complied with the Deed of Non-Competition
during the Relevant Period, the independent non-executive Directors
of the Company (the “INEDs”) noted that: (i) each of the Controlling
Shareholders has made the Declaration; (ii) no Restricted Business was
reported to be undertaken by the Controlling Shareholders (other than,
for the avoidance of doubt, through the Group) during the Relevant
Period; and (iii) there was no particular situation rendering the

In determining whether the Controlling

compliance with, and enforcement of, the Deed of Non-Competition
being questionable. The INEDs were satisfied with the Controlling
Shareholders' compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition during
the Relevant Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year ended 31
December 2019, none of the Directors or their associates had engaged
in or had any interest in any business which competes or may compete
with, directly or indirectly, the Group’s business.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed below, the Board confirmed that none of the
related party transactions set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted non-exempt connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Save as disclosed below, for the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group has not entered into any other connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions which are required to be disclosed
in this annual report pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Connected transaction

1. The Office Lease Agreement date 1 April 2019 (Details please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 1 April and
4 April 2019)

o Counterparties: Tibet Xinchengyue and Shanghai Jiamu;

o Connected relationship: Shanghai Jiamu is a subsidiary
of another listed company, which the controlling
Shareholder of the Group can control over it;

o Transaction purpose: Office lease :

o Total consideration and terms of the transaction:
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 1 April 2019, the term of the leased office
shall commence on 1 April 2019 and expire on 16
December 2021. During the period from 1 April
2019 to 31 December 2019, the year ending 31
December 2020 and the period from 1 January 2021
to 16 December 2021,
payable by the Group in respect to the leased office
amounted to RMB1,001,651.22, RMB1,335,534.96 and
RMB1,335,534.96, respectively.

the total maximum amount
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2. The Group entered into the Equity Transfer Agreement with
the transferor for the acquisition of 100% equity interest
in Shanghai Shuyuan on 6 May 2019 (please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 6 May 2019 for details).

o Counterparties: Changzhou Wanrui Intelligent System
Engineering Co., Ltd.* (BINBEEERXHFTEAERAF]), being
a subsidiary of the Company (as purchaser) and Mr. Wang
Zhenhua and Ms. Wang Jianmei (as vendors);

° Connected relationship: Mr. Wang Zhenhua is the controlling
shareholder and non-executive Director (as he then was);

° Transaction purpose: the Group intends to actively participate
in the intelligent engineering construction business newly
initiated by developers for establishing business management
models of high standard to achieve a high-quality and rapid
growth of the Group’s smart engineering construction business.
The acquisition of Shanghai Shuyuan, which is principally
engaged in the research, sales and construction in relation to
intelligent home indoor products and intelligent car parking
system products, will strengthen the Group’s capability to
develop smart communities in properties managed by the
Group and expand the Group’s service coverage from common
areas of such properties to indoors. In addition, Shanghai
Shuyuan’s capability of the designing and developing intelligent
products as well as planning smart communities will enable
the Group to develop its own intelligent products and, more
importantly, enhance its core competitiveness;

. Total consideration: RMB29,941,500.

Continuing connected transaction

The Company entered into the 2020 Services Framework Agreement
(please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 25 November
2019 for details) with Mr. Wang Zhenhua on 25 November 2019.

o Counterparties: Tibet Xinchengyue and Mr. Wang Xiaosong (as
attorney for and on behalf of Mr. Wang Zhenhua);

Connected relationship: Mr. Wang Zhenhua is a controlling
Shareholder;
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Transaction purpose: entering into an annual services
framework agreement in relation to the provision of certain
property management related services to companies (including
the Seazen Group) in which Mr. Wang Zhenhua can exercise
or control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power
at their general meetings and their subsidiaries (“Mr. Wang'’s
Associated Companies”), and agreeing on the annual cap on
such connected transactions;

Total consideration and terms: providing property management
services and value-added services for Mr. Wang’s Associated
Companies, with the maximum aggregate annual transaction
amount of RMB1,300 million;

The transaction was approved by the independent Shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting held on 16 January 2020.

BINAN T HHA2019912 527 A )8 AT As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 27 December 2019, in
%= BER2020F RISIERBZEIE TEETH order to ensure that the transactions contemplated under the 2020
RGEIR—MEEGRET EEHEERASD Services Framework Agreement will be on normal commercial terms,
GrREZENBITHE - EMBUTAE L ECE and that the relevant fees will not fall below the prevailing market rate,
AFEIBENERERGE 2ESIEE (WMER) & the guidance price of such services for similar type of development
MEBVRASENE=AFPKRIMNER =K projects issued by the local government (if applicable) and the fees
EEEEUA T charged to the third party customers independent of the Group, the
Group will adopt the following measures:
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the finance department of the Group will be responsible for
regular monitoring of the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the 2020 Services Framework Agreement
to ensure that the annual cap will not be exceeded, in
particular, the Group will cease to enter into any new subsidiary
agreement if such will cause the total contractual income to
exceed the annual cap for that financial year;

internal review will be conducted by the finance department of
the Group to assess, on a monthly basis, whether the provision
of property management services and value-added services has
been made in accordance with the terms of the 2020 Services
Framework Agreement and in accordance with the aforesaid

pricing policy;
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(iii) prior to entering into any subsidiary agreements, the personnel
of various departments including the legal department, finance
department and operation department of the Company
will review and assess the specific terms and conditions of
the transactions to ensure their consistency with the 2020
Services Framework Agreement. During such internal review
process, the relevant personnel will examine, among others,
(a) information of the parties; (b) the term of the agreement;
(c) the type and scope of services to be provided by the Group
thereunder; and (d) whether the contract price is in line with
the aforesaid pricing policy, in order to ensure comment (if
any) from various departments of the Group will be properly
addressed;

(iv) the Company will engage its auditors to conduct an
annual review of the continuing connected transactions to
be conducted pursuant to the 2020 Services Framework
Agreement; and

(v) the independent non-executive Directors will review the
continuing connected transactions to be conducted pursuant
to the 2020 Services Framework Agreement on an annual basis
and confirm in the annual report of the Company for the year
ending 31 December 2020 whether such continuing connected
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms
or better, and in accordance with the 2020 Services Framework
Agreement on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

During the Reporting Period, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the above non-exempt continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that such transactions have been entered
into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(iii) according to the relevant agreements governing such

transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor has carried out a number of scheduled auditing
procedures for the continuing connected transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 and confirmed
that nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe
the continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services;

(3) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(4) have exceeded the relevant cap amounts disclosed in the
relevant announcements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made no charitable and other
donations.

MATERIAL LEGAL ACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not involved in any
material legal actions or arbitrations. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company was not involved in any unsettled material
legal actions or claims or in any such material legal actions or claims
that might threaten the Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY CLAUSES

During the Reporting Period and as of the date of this annual report,
no former or current permitted indemnity clauses have benefited
the Directors (whether entered into by the Company or others) or
any directors of their affiliated companies (if entered into by the
Company). The Company has arranged appropriate insurance covering
director and officer liabilities for its Directors and senior officers.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 6 May 2019, Changzhou Wanrui Intelligent System Engineering
Co., Ltd.* (EMMEEERERXAFITREERAR]), a subsidiary of the
Company, purchased 100% equity interest of Shanghai Shuyuan, a
company incorporated in the PRC which is principally engaged in the
research, sales and construction in relation to smart home indoor
products and smart car parking system products, at the consideration
of RMB29,941,500.

Save as to the aforesaid, during the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Company did not have any material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s audit committee (“Audit Committee”), together with
the management and external auditors, has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. The information regarding the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
corporate governance report on page 72 to 92 of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any disclosure obligations under Rules
13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float approved by the Stock Exchange and allowed by
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME AND STOCK
SHORT NAME

On 20 May 2019, the Shareholders passed a resolution at the 2019
AGM to change the name of the Company from “Xinchengyue
Holdings Limited” to “S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited” in English
and from “HHMIRIERER 2 E"to "HMBIRRBEBER 2 A"in
Chinese. The new name of the Company was registered in the
Cayman Islands on 21 May 2019 and the Certificate of Incorporation
on Change of Name was issued by the Registrar of Companies in the
Cayman Islands to the Company on 21 May 2019. The Certificate
of Registration of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong
Company was issued by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong to
the Company on 24 June 2019. The stock short name of the Company
for trading in the shares on the Stock Exchange was changed from
“XINCHENGYUE"to "“S-ENJOY SERVICE”in English and from “¥f
IR "to "FMIRARA "in Chinese with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 4
July 2019. The stock code of the Company of “1755"on the Stock
Exchange remains unchanged.

Further details of the change of company name are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 1 April 2019 and 28 June 2019
and the circular of the Company dated 15 April 2019.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers has acted as auditor of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019. PricewaterhouseCoopers has audited
the attached financial statements, which were prepared pursuant to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Qi Xiaoming

Chairman

Executive Director

Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 13 March 2020

* For identification purpose only
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report for
the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the "CG Code") as its own code of corporate governance. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, the Company has complied with
all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the
Reporting Period. The Company will continue to review and enhance
its corporate governance practices to ensure the compliance with the
CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee the particular affairs of the
Company, the Board has established three Board committees, including
the Audit Committee, the remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), and the nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) (collectively, “Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated to the Board Committees the responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests
of the Company and Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance covering
any legal actions against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.

72

IR RIS EE AR 2T S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited

201944 %R 2019 Annual Report



TEERRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEEEM

RAFHAY EFTSHIBRNTES  38F

BMITESERIBBIIFRNTESTMANX -
™~

BITESE
BN
RfFELL
WFEELE

FUTES

FiRERLE (H2019%7 A8HEHT)
FREMSELE (R2019F7 ASHER(E)
BNFERE

PE FLBRSEAE

BAFYITES

AL
RERE
FERTR A

EERRENAFRZ [BEERSMERE] —

ff

R|EHA > EFGC BT EWRAE310(1)
M3N0QGEREEEL =R BIUIFERTES
(EREL—ZBUFRTETARAEENE
XERIFARABEHBEEFTRAND) R

.
E °

ARRIEET EMRAIEI0AGRBERRER
PEEEEREAB =D 2 —BYIFNTE

EHME °

Board composition

As of the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Qi Xiaoming
Ms. Wu Qiangian
Mr. Lan Ziyong

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Zhenhua (resigned on 8 July 2019)
Mr. Wang Xiaosong (appointed on 8 July 2019)
Mr. Lv Xiaoping

Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management”.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had met the requirements
of Rules 3.10 (1) and 3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules regarding the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
(among which, at least one independent non-executive Director shall
possess appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise).

The Company has also met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules regarding
the appointment of independent non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board.
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The Company believes that a diversified board of Directors is beneficial
to the Company’s performance. Therefore, the Company has adopted
a board diversity policy, specifying that the diversification of the Board
members will be considered in multiple respects while determining the
composition of the Board, including (but not limited to) gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, race,
skills and knowledge. All appointments of the Board will be based on
the principle of “the best person for the job” and take into account
the objective conditions and the benefits of a diversified Board in
selection of candidates. The summary of the board diversity policy is as

follows:

1. Policy vision

The Company understands that a diversified Board is beneficial
to the improvement of the Company’s performance. The
differences in ideas, background, ways of thinking and working
methods may create values for our stakeholders, particularly for
our customers, Shareholders, employees and the communities
managed by us.

2. Measurable targets

The screening of Directors is based on a series of diversified
The Company undertakes to implement the
policy of equal opportunity for all in all respects, without

categories.

discrimination due to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, race, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and service term or other factors.

3. Supervision and report

The Nomination Committee will annually report the
composition of the Board in terms of diversification in the
corporate governance report of the annual report and supervise
the implementation of the policy.
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For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

1. The Board comprises nine Directors, two of which are female;
and
2. The members of the Board have different cultural and

educational background; some of them have obtained
diversified professional qualifications.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Therefore,
the Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of Directors in the section
of “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report, no
Directors have any personal relations (including financial, business,
family or other material relations/correlations) with any other Directors
or the chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, and Nomination Committee.

In regards to the CG Code provision of requiring Directors to
disclose to the issuer the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organizations and other significant commitments, as well
as their identity and the time involved in the issuer, all the Directors
have agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely
manner.
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Induction and continuous professional development

All newly appointed Directors will be provided with necessary
induction training and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as
their responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.
The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide all Directors
with updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules
and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to
time. The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the
Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Company encourages all Directors to seek continuous professional
development and thus develop and update their knowledge and skills.
The joint company secretaries, from time to time, update and provide
written training materials relating to the roles, functions and duties of
directors.

According to the information provided by the Directors, they have
accepted the training as follows during the year ended 31 December
2019:

Nature of courses for
continuous professional

EEnR Name of Directors development

N R Mr. Qi Xiaoming A/C/D

REERL Ms. Wu Qiangian C/D

MFBELEE Mr. Lan Ziyong c/D

TIRESAE (FA2019F7 A8HBHT) Mr. Wang Zhenhua (resigned on 8 July 2019) C/D
TRENSGAE (R2019F7A8HEZT) Mr. Wang Xiaosong (appointed on 8 July 2019) C/D
BN Mr. Lv Xiaoping c/D

B FBR S A Mr. Lu Zhongming C/D

R+ Ms. Zhang Yan C/D

KERE Mr. Zhu Wei C/D

TR AEAE Mr. Xu Xinmin c/D

FaE Notes:

A: HEMTER,/ HEEL XnEE /R RE Al Attend seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or briefings.

B: RPFER,/ REH R dmBRE B: Address at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums.

C: SRR E A - BARA T EKAEAE C: Attend training courses provided by law firms and related to the Company’s

business.
D: MEZBEEZENOME  BERELCEER EF D: Read documents covering a wide range of topics, including corporate governance,

R - ETARRIREMERDE]

director responsibilities, Listing Rules and other relevant laws and regulations.
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Chairman and chief executive officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

Mr. Qi Xiaoming is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for the overall management of the Group
and guides the Group's strategic development and business plans.
Considering the Group’s current development status, the Board
believes that the structure of the same person holding the two
positions of chairman and chief executive officer can provide the
Company with a strong and consistent leadership and benefit the
implementation and execution of the Group’s business strategies.
Nonetheless, we will review the structure from time to time based on
the circumstances at that time. The Board will continue to evaluate
relevant situations and separate the two roles of chairman and chief
executive officer at a proper time taking into account the Group's
overall status.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company with an initial term of three years effective from the
Listing Date. The respective executive Directors or the Company may
terminate the contract by serving not less than three months’ written
notice to the other party. The appointment of an executive Director
shall be in accordance with requirements on Directors’ retirement by
rotation under Articles of Association and applicable Listing Rules.

Each of the non-executive Directors (save for Mr. Wang Xiaosong)
and independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company with a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date. Mr. Wang Xiaosong had signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for a period of three years
commencing from the date of his appointment as a non-executive
Director. In accordance with their respective letters of appointment,
each of the independent non-executive Directors is entitled to receive
a fixed amount of director’'s emoluments while the non-executive
Directors are not entitled to receive any remuneration. Relevant
appointments shall be made in accordance with the requirements on
Directors’ retirement by rotation under Articles of Association and
applicable Listing Rules.
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Except for those disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered
into any service contracts with any members of the Group. None of the
Directors has entered into a service agreement which is not terminable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors (or the nearest number but no less than one-third of the
Directors, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three (3)) are
subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting and
each Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three years
at an annual general meeting. Any Director newly appointed by the
Board to fill a causal vacancy of the Board or serve as a new Director
shall submit himself/herself for election by Shareholders at the next
general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition
and offering proposals regarding the appointment, re-election and
succession plans of Directors to the Board.

Board meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly,
at least four times a year, and at approximately one time each quarter.
Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular Board
meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend regular
meetings and discuss the matters on the agenda.

For other Board and Board Committees meetings, reasonable notices
will be given. The agenda and accompanying Board papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committees members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient
time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the
meetings. When any Directors or Board Committees members are
unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to the
Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the
joint company secretaries with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and records.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committees meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail including the matters considered by the
Board and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, and
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board Committees meeting are sent to the Directors for
consideration within a reasonable time after the meeting is held. The
minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by all Directors.
The Chairman also held a meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors without presence of other Directors during the year.

During the Reporting Period, the Board held 10 Board meetings and
2 general meetings were held. Information regarding the attendance
of Board meetings and general meetings by individual Directors is as
follows:

EHEEEgRE EHERRAGRE
EHEEEEERH EHERRAERE
Number of attendance/ Number of attendance/

number of attendance number of attendance

required of

required of

BE Directors Board meetings general meetings
B/ NRSE A& Mr. Qi Xiaoming 10/10 2/2
RfEER T Ms. Wu Qiangian 10/10 1/2
MfELE Mr. Lan Ziyong 10/10 12
TiR#ERLE (R201967 A8HET) Mr. Wang Zhenhua 4/5 0/2
(resigned on
8 July 2019)
TREMEAE (R201967 ASHERT) Mr. Wang Xiaosong 4/5 0/2
(appointed on
8 July 2019)
BN AE Mr. Lv Xiaoping 10/10 12
B FEBA S A Mr. Lu Zhongming 10/10 12
RIEZ L Ms. Zhang Yan 10/10 1/2
KERE Mr. Zhu Wei 10/10 0/2
R EA Mr. Xu Xinmin 10/10 12
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Model code for securities transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific inquiries with all the Directors, each of the Directors has
confirmed that he/she has complied with the required standards as set
out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves its right to decide all major matters of the
Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. Directors could
have recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to access
and consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.

Corporate governance functions

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors and their corporate governance
functions include:

. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with laws and regulatory requirements;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manuals applicable to the employees and Directors;

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and offer proposals and report relevant
matters to the Board;
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o to review the Company's compliance with the corporate
governance rules and disclosure in its corporate governance
reports; and

o to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with its
whistle-blowing policy.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Lu Zhongming, our
non-executive Director, and Ms. Zhang Yan and Mr. Zhu Wei, our
independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Zhang Yan is the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of
an issuer must comprise a minimum of three members, comprising
non-executive directors only, and at least one of them is an
independent non-executive director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. Our Directors
confirm that we had complied with such requirements during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include:

° to oversee the Company’s relations with the external auditor
and be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and deal with
any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

° to review and monitor the Company’s financial statements and
reports, including the significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them, and to consider any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts; and

° to review and discuss financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function;
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ERZEENEERERE 2 XRB M EAE The full text of written terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
NEHE A AR available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

EZEZEGREZE2019F12A318 LFERH The Audit Committee convened 2 meetings during the year ended 31
2RBH - UFREZEERATAR : December 2019 to discuss and consider the followings:

. B AEBANBFENDFER - N . to review the annual results of the Group for the financial

MEMEZHMRE ST EEREZBR year, and the audit report prepared by the external auditor
PEERER RN EZSRE on accounting matters and major findings during the audit
process;

. EHAEBEHZE201996A30H 1F N A o to review the interim results of the Group for the six months

Rz ended 30 June 2019;

. HUBRRRER &R E2F AR . to review the financial reporting systems, compliance
(BREARAI G RMBRAREFIES procedures, internal controls (including the adequacy of
MER - EF  BlRERBERS resources, qualifications, training courses and budgets of
)~ EREE RS RAE I REEINE employees of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
ZHEEL R c EFE SV EREEEZ departments), risk management systems and procedures,

ZEERTE T REXNERINE and the reappointment of external auditors. The Board has
ZEAME L AT B R o not deviated from any recommendations made by the Audit

Committee regarding the selection, appointment, retirement or
removal of the external auditors.

EEZZEENELEEZEEZNERENT The attendance of each member of Audit Committee at such meetings

e is set out in the table below:
EHEERZEEGRY
EHEEXZEGRH
Number of attendance/
number of attendance
required of Audit
2% Directors Committee meetings
P RBRSEAE Mr. Lu Zhongming 2/2
R Ms. Zhang Yan 2/2
KEFRE Mr. Zhu Wei 2/2
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Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Xu Xinmin and
Ms. Zhang Yan, our independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Lv
Xiaoping, our non-executive Director. Mr. Xu Xinmin is the chairman of

the Nomination Committee.

REZEBENIEREBRRE

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:
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review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy,

identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors to determine their eligibility;

make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer; and

develop policy concerning diversity of Board members, review
the policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidates or incumbents
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skills and ability to commit
time and efforts to carry out duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations will then be submitted to the Board for decision.
The full text of written terms of reference of Nomination Committee is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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REZEEREZE2019F12A31B L FERH The Nomination Committee convened 2 meetings during the year
2REH  BREEZEENEEREZEERNE ended 31 December 2019. The attendance of each member of
MERTE - Nomination Committee at such meetings is set out in the table below:

EHEREESERE

EHEREZEERY

Number of attendance/
number of attendance
required of Nomination

EE Directors Committee meetings
BN ERAE Mr. Lv Xiaoping 2/2
Rzt Ms. Zhang Yan 2/2
FFETR A E Mr. Xu Xinmin 2/2
FNZEEE Remuneration committee

FMEEERABIIFNTEFTRELERT The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Zhu Wei and

MERAEARBITESR/ DAL LA - KIE Mr. Xu

Xinmin, our independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Qi

SERFNEZESHNEE - Xiaoming, our executive Director. Mr. Zhu Wei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

FHEEENTERE B The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

. AR ZREERSRERE O H M .
Eﬁ(%ﬁ&,\\uﬁuﬁﬁlﬁaxift%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ&‘
MR HIRT MR - MEF S RHE

o
. %%%%@%@%*&&a%@ﬂ&m .
B B
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EEENNITESERSRE R E N H M
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LR ERBHNEHMTE

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and

either (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management; or (ii) to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.

FMEE SN S MBS E 2 X AT MK The full text of written terms of reference of the Remuneration

N AT AR o Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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HFWEZESREE2019F12A318 LFE B The Remuneration Committee convened 2 meetings during the

2REE ST NEEEKELEZEZEENE year ended 31 December 2019. The attendance of each member of
MERTE - Remuneration Committee at such meetings is set out in the table
below:

EHEFMESERE

EHEFMZEEERH

Number of attendance/

number of attendance

required of Remuneration

) Directors Committee meetings

B NER S A Mr. Qi Xiaoming 2/2

KRIZFAEE Mr. Zhu Wei 272

FFRTREE Mr. Xu Xinmin 2/2
BEERESREEE N REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

HZE2019F 128310 IHEE 85 ek 2 LE For the year ended 31 December 2019, the details of the remuneration
NARFEREIOEEZMENA LN SHEIEE of the Board members and the Company’s senior management set out

MEF B ERIIMT

on page 39 to 44 of this annual report are as follows:

FEE (AR%T)

A

Remuneration range (RMB) Number of person

200& — 5008
0— 2008

REE2019F 128318 ILFE - MIEEEN
ERRERETMME -

2 million = 5 million
nil — 2 million

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year ended 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’
REPORTING
STATEMENTS

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, which give
a true and fair view of the status of the Company and the Group and
of the results and cash flow of the Group.

The management has provided the Board with such explanations
and information as necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are submitted to the Board for approval. The Company has provided
all members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going-concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page
F-123 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, the Audit Committee, the senior management and the
internal audit department are the four levels of structure of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining adequate risk management and internal control systems
to (i) safeguard the investments of Shareholders and assets of the
Company and avoid inappropriate use or disposal; (ii) comply with
relevant laws, rules or regulations; and (iii) keep reliable financial and
accounting records in accordance with relevant reviewing standards
and regulatory reporting requirements and review the effectiveness
of such systems on an annual basis. Risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.
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The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to be responsible
for the oversight of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on a
yearly basis. Such review covers all important aspects of supervision,
including financial, operational and compliance monitoring. As
disclosed in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the Company’s risk
management and internal monitoring systems. The Audit Committee
oversees the risk management process and reviews the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems by conducting the
following procedures:

o Review the Company’s risk management process and policy;

° Review with senior management at least annually reports
demonstrating the compliance with the risk management
policy;

o Discuss with senior management at least annually the

Company’s major risk exposures and the steps the senior
management has taken or should take to assess and mitigate
such exposures; and

o Review the ongoing effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management practices.

The senior management is responsible for administering the Company’s
risk management process and is accountable for ensuring that the
Company’s business operations are conducted in compliance with our
risk management policy, taking into consideration the changes in the
environment and the Company’s risk tolerance. Responsibilities of the
Company’s senior management include:

° Design and implement a Company-wide risk management
policy;
o Review and update the risk management policy on a timely

basis, ensuring it remains relevant and adequate, taking
into account changes in the environment, industry and the
Company’s operations and risk profile and, where necessary,
recommend changes to the risk management policy for the
Audit Committee to review;
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o Ensure that the Company’s risk management process is aligned
and integrated with the annual strategic and business planning
process;

o Design and establish a risk management methodology which
provides the appropriate tools to identify, evaluate, and
manage business exposures;

° Establish a Company-wide risk reporting process to ensure that
the Company’s senior management, the Audit Committee and
the Board are apprised of all material risk issues and business
exposures;

° Ensure that necessary management controls and oversight
processes are in place to monitor compliance with the risk
management policy and the risk management methodology;

° Approve and monitor key risk positions and exposure trends,
risk management strategies and risk management priorities;

° Review and discuss the Company’s overall risk profile, key and
emerging risks and risk management activities through periodic
risk discussions among senior management; and

o Review the key business strategies and initiatives to assess their
impact on the Company’s overall risk position.

Risk management process

In addition to the Board’s oversight responsibilities, the Company
has developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks and to resolve material internal control defects
(if any). The senior management, through the Company’s internal
audit department, is responsible for the annual risk reporting process.
Members of the internal audit department meet with various members
of the senior management to review and assess risks and discuss

E’JET—J“ R BREITEAR - TR B AR solutions to address material internal control defects (if any), including
fEEtE - BB T EaREREE THREE any changes relevant to a given year. Risks are compiled, ratings are
77[C1RE - ? EERZERNESTE MBS - assigned and mitigation plans are documented. The risk assessment is
reviewed by certain members of senior management and presented to
the Audit Committee and the Board for their review.
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Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management based on
(i) the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial
results, (i) the probability that the risk will occur, and (iii) the velocity
or speed at which the risk could occur.

The main features of the Company’s risk management and internal
control structure include: (i) exclusive departments are designated
to be responsible for the implementation of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems and the heads of the
major operational units or departments are responsible for managing
and mitigating the risks identified; (ii) the management ensures that
appropriate measures have been taken against material risks that
affect the Group’s business and operations; and (iii) the internal
audit department provides the management and Audit Committee
with independent confirmation regarding the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has ensured that the risk
management and internal control provisions under the CG Code
have been complied with. The Board, during its annual review on the
risk management and internal control systems, has confirmed the
adequacy of the resources and staff qualifications and experiences
of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

Inside information

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and significant
events that may impact the price of the shares or their trading
volume and decides whether the relevant information is considered
as inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably
practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and
the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive
Directors and the joint company secretaries also have responsibility for
approving certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by the
Company under powers delegated by the Board from time to time.

Internal audit department

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major responsibilities of
the internal audit department are reviewing the financial conditions
and internal control of the Company, and conducting comprehensive
audits of all branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular
basis.
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AUDITOR'’S REMUNERATION

The approximate remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditor to the Company during the Reporting Period
is as follows:

SHEARETT)
RS B Service category Amount (RMB’000)
EAZ RIS Audit services 2,480
SEEAZ RS Non-audit services 100
#at Total 2,580
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THRREBBRESENBRLEF  BREE
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. You Jianfeng (“Mr. You”) is the Company’s joint company
secretary, responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company
has also engaged Ms. Lam Yuk Ling (“Ms. Lam”), manager of TMF
Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial services provider), as
its joint company secretary to assist Mr. You to fulfill his duties as
company secretary of the Company. Her primary contact person at the
Company is Mr. You.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. You and Ms. Lam have undertaken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and
non-selective disclosure of information, which will enable the
Shareholders and investors to make informed investment decisions.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides an opportunity
for Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the Board Committees
will attend the annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
questions. The auditor of the Company will also attend the annual
general meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor's report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company and
Shareholders and maintains a website at www.xinchengyue.com,
where up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue (including election of
individual Directors) at general meetings.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each Shareholders’ meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meetings and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at the
Company’s general meetings according to Articles of Association. Any
two or more Shareholders with the right to vote on the Company’s
general meetings and hold a paid-up capital of no less than one-tenth
on the date of submitting a request, or any one Shareholder who is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) holding as at the date
of submitting a request no less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company, shall have the right to call an extraordinary general
meeting at any time with such a written request to the Board or any
one of the joint company secretaries of the Company to address any
matters stated in such request. Such meeting shall be held within three
months upon submission of such requests. If no such meeting is held
by the Board within 21 days upon submission, the persons submitting
such requests may convene a meeting according to normal procedures
and all expenses reasonably incurred to the persons submitting such
requests due to the Board’s failure to convene such a general meeting
shall be compensated by the Company.
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HEREREALEESENER  IRAQAAE As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, relevant

A AERF - procedures are available on the Company’s website.
MESERHEN Inquiries to the Board

RERMGMEESELBERNARNER - 7] Shareholders who intend to put forward their inquiries about the
FREBRAARNABHCESTENAEENA - Company may contact the Board Office at the Company’s headquarters
T HE U Axcy.ir@xinchengyue.com © via e-mail at xcy.ir@xinchengyue.com.

BEXHHEXR CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

AARIER2018F 10 20 H IR A LIEF] RERT On 20 October 2018, the Company adopted the amended and revised
WAEMERKARAA - W ETBEBER - Memorandum and Articles of Association, effective on the Listing
RS B A B 2 48 4 52 K40 I 48 BN I 4 Date. There was no change in the Memorandum and Articles of
ZaE o Association during the Reporting Period.
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ABOUT THE REPORT
Reporting Scope

The Company hereby issues the 2019 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (“ESG Report” or the “Report”) to demonstrate
our concepts and practices in environmental and social areas to our
stakeholders. For the details of corporate governance, please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

The Report covers the Company and its subsidiaries during the period
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019. There is no significant
adjustment to the reporting scope compared with 2078 Environmental,
Social and Governance Report released on 22 May 2019.

Reporting Standards And Principles

In line with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(the "ESG Reporting Guide"”) in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, the
Report is in compliance with the “Comply or Explain” provisions in the
ESG Reporting Guide. The Report is prepared in accordance with the
following reporting principles:

> “Materiality”: The Group determines material ESG issues by
stakeholders engagement and materiality assessment which has
been disclosed in the Report;

> “Quantitative”: Information on the standards, methodologies
and source of conversion factors used for the reporting of
emission and energy consumption has been disclosed in the
Report;

> “Consistency”: The statistical method for the reporting of
environmental key performance indicators during the Reporting
Period was adjusted compared with 2018. The statistic method
in the following years will be consistent with that of the
Reporting Period.
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ESG MANAGEMENT
ESG management strategy

The Group has established a complete ESG management system. The
Board is the highest decision-maker of ESG management in the Group.
The Board oversees the Group’s ESG issues and takes full responsibility
for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. The Board develops ESG
management approach and strategy, including evaluating, prioritizing,
and managing material ESG-related issues and their risks to the Group’
business. The Board regularly reviews the Group’s ESG performance,
and examines and approves the Group’s annual ESG report.

The management of the Group arranges work of ESG working group
based on the ESG management approach and strategy established
by the Board. The management reports ESG-related risks and
opportunities to the Board, and provides the Board with the annual
ESG performance and annual ESG report.

To work on the ESG management, the Group has established an
ESG working group composed of employees from the Office of
the Board of Directors, Quality Management Department, Human
Resources Department, Operation Department, Audit and Supervision
Department and other departments, as well as from working teams of
each subsidiary. The ESG working group is responsible for carrying out
daily ESG work and preparing annual ESG report. The ESG working
group reports to the management on the daily ESG performance and
the progress of annual ESG report.
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MmERLBE

MR TEBNAEEES  BREBUT I We have identified significant stakeholders, including the
B BEFP AEEH BT HelkiRES government, shareholders, customers, partners, employees, society
BB EIDZEAEBRIES > BEEBFEM and environment, etc. We actively adopted various communication
FHREER - 7 HRMOPIEBRAIESGE B L AR KB mechanisms to communicate with all significant stakeholders to

Stakeholders engagement

REBEHERMEE ©

S

Stakeholders

understand their opinions and suggestions on our ESG performance
and future development strategy.

M ERER

Expectation and requirements

A

Communication mechanism

B

Government

IR

Shareholders

tm BF
! % Customers

(o) BIfEBH
m Partners

BIE
Compliance with laws
HOEMTR

Paying taxes according to laws

SERRE - OHKRR

Continued development and return to

shareholders

EEHE
Information disclosure
HEEBIER

Investor relations
NERE

Corporate governance

B8 8 AR5

Quiality service

BEPRERRE

Protecting customers’ rights and
interests

&P

Keeping promise

AF - RIE - ARKE

Equal, open and fair procurement
Him R

Win-win development

AEERE

Daily management
IHEEE

Work meeting
EEWmE

Supervision and inspection

RERE
Shareholders’ meeting
EEEE
Information disclosure
KEEBREH

Activities promoting investor relations

B ERIRTS

Butler service

B RBFREE

Maintaining customer relations
IR AR5

Jiuyue service

BEdE

Smart community

BEAE

Cooperation in projects

HIERZ BT

Investigation and evaluation of suppliers
NEEEEE e

Public tendering and bidding

REFE

Procurement platforms
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Stakeholders

HEEER

BES

Communication mechanism

BT
Employees

ﬁg
Society

BiE
Environment

Expectation and requirements

TEREFRE

Salaries and welfare
EEZ 20 ITIFRE

Healthy and safe working environment
NEMEARERES

Fair opportunity for promotion and
development

RAASEH

Enhancing public benefit awareness
fRAE AL R AN A2 R

Facilitating the harmonious development
of the community

RERE

Environment protection

RS REAME

Improving the energy consumption
efficiency

e

Remuneration management
8T

Employee training

BIES

Employee activities
FEEBR

Annual physical examination
BT EBEHE

Staff assistance schemes

HEAmBH

Participating in social public benefit
activities

HEIBEEE

Cooperation in community projects

BOIIRIR
Focus on environmental protection
B B AL BE
Energy conservation and emission
reduction
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. BPRB
Customer service

- HEEE
Quality control
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Supply chain
EEEE management
Material issues - REF

Anti-corruption

Materiality assessment

In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide, we have constructed
an ESG materiality assessment model through research on internal
stakeholders and communication with external stakeholders to identify
and determine the following key issues, to which we present key
disclosures and responses in the Report.

- BI%RE
Employee
development

- REREEZE
Health and safety

. BIES \
Employees’ interests ERERE
and rights Energy management
. STER| - KERER

Labour standards Water management

el P T REmEE

Public welfare
and charities

Relevant issues

HEE 12

Emission management
. BEEYER

Waste management

- BIE® ’

Employee activities

BEEMFEER

Materiality Assessment Results
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R¥EEF SERVING CUSTOMERS
EEREEE Service quality management and control

BPETHBERRMM T EERER - BIEE We comply with relevant national and local laws and regulations,
TRAMEETRED) T BEEERBEE including but not limited to the Property Management Requlations,

=

= ° etc., and strictly control the quality of services.

REE - SRS EEER AR CNH [ #E The Group S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as

REK])  BYTERNEEEEER Ik “S-Enjoy Service”), has established an excellent quality management

5 GB/T 19001-2016/I1SO 9001:20155MNaF 7R 7% © system and obtained GB/T 19001-2016/ISO 9001:2015 external
certification.
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Based on our Integrated Management Manual, we strive to
provide high-quality services to our customers while upholding
the quality policy of “adhering to the concept of ‘quality is
value’, constantly encouraging ourselves to provide satisfactory
property service and continuously making improvement”.

We sort out various tasks in the service process, compile
detailed quality operation files, and provide implementation
guidelines for employees on specific issues. We also provide
trainings for employees to communicate the quality control
concept to them.

At three levels of the quality management department of the
headquarters, the quality departments of the branches and
the property service centre, we conduct regular service quality
inspections and evaluations and special night inspections from
time to time. For the problems identified in the inspection, we
strive to supervise and rectify them and conduct acceptance
check, so as to enhance the on-site service quality of projects.

ARBEMOELEEE BTN PRERTED Due to our business characteristics, we do not use product labels,
R BEAEMEESEMNEN  BUSBRLZ and there is currently no advertisement placement, so there is no

- BEITENEEECE management policy on labels and advertisement.
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Customer satisfaction enhancement

We formulate and implement the Guidelines for Customer Relationship
Maintenance, regularly communicate with customers through door-to-
door interviews, telephone interviews and other channels, actively deal
with the problems and suggestions raised, and timely provide feedback
to customers. In addition, we regularly hold owners’ talks to gain the
customers’ opinions and suggestions in a face-to-face manner and
make a timely responding. We also report periodically to the owners’
committee on project management in the current year.

We hire professional third-party companies to conduct annual
customer satisfaction surveys to understand the performance of
property service staff at sales sites as well as the evaluation of property
service by the property owners. We analyse the results of the annual
customer satisfaction surveys to find shortcomings in our service and
accordingly take improvement measures.

We established the 2079 Double Event Management Policy to guide
the implementation of “Formaldehyde Measurement” activity and
“Yue House-moving” activity in 2019. Before new owners move
in, we provide free formaldehyde measurement service for newly
renovated houses. Meanwhile, when new owners move in, we assist
them to move and give our blessings. The new owners can experience
our warm service through these two activities, which will effectively

improve our customer satisfaction.
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TOPIC: UPGRADE OF “BUTLER SERVICE"” SYSTEM

As customers’ demands for property services continue to increase,

the quality requirements for the “Customer Service Butlers” who
have the most contact with owners have also continuously increased.
After analysing the data of third-party satisfaction survey and
focusing on the main points that customers are most concerned
about, we upgrade the “Butler Service” system and develop a new
“Butler Grading” incentive method: we establish “Heart Butler”,
“QOrange Butler” and “Yue Butler”, and put forward quantifiable and
reasonable grading standards respectively.

Since April 2019, the “Butler Grading” has been fully implemented
in the service community of S-Enjoy Service to motivate the work
potential of customer service butlers and to provide customers with
more intimate and satisfactory service.
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Customer requests response

We formulated the Guidelines for Customer Reception, Guidelines for
Handling Orange APP and Butler service Work Orders, Management
Measures for 4008 Customer Service Policy Operation, providing
customers with various request channels including phone calls and
Orange APP. To make sure that customers’ requests are timely and
effectively responded, we divide repair requests, complaints and
consultations into different levels and set corresponding response time
limits, order acceptance time limits and handling time limits to ensure
that their requests are responded within 30 minutes and resolved
within 24 hours.

20194 - iEaAPPRE AL 2:2883,638F
erxrREErs126,626«
Fyemss - 567

rummns: 93/NF495 08
FBHAPPERIS BT TR - 96 %

In 2019, Orange APP has accumulated 883,638 registered users
We responded to owners’ 126,626 service requests

Average response time: 56 seconds

Average processing time: 93 hours 49 minutes 08 seconds
Favourable rate on repair and issue reporting through Orange APP: 96%
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Theme Activity in June

Harmonious community creation

On the basis of providing basic property services to owners, we
continue to take 9 extended services as the tentacles, and carry out
the targeted "Jiuyue Service” at “58+N"” emotional experience touch
points to bring customers a comfortable living experience. In 2019, we
updated the “Jiuyue Service” 58+ Emotional Touch Points Management
Operation Guidelines, which provided more detailed guidance and
policy guarantee for the “Jiuyue Service”.

We developed the Guidelines for the Construction of Community
Cultural Operations and the “Heyue Service” Activity Calendar. We
carry out various forms of community cultural activities with different
topics every month to create a good and harmonious community
atmosphere and enhance owners’ sense of belonging.

31 bk 152 M2 55
- H &P % 3 s sl

TAEEES
Theme Activity in October
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HE UREFE TOPIC: JIUYUE CARNIVAL

201998 » E=fn [MRIRBFE | # 2 x{k In September 2019, the 3rd “Jiuyue Carnival” Neighbourhood
ENEAZUBRRR - NKEESNATIR] BEFIEK - B Cultural Festival was launched enthusiastically. With the theme
BHETHEN[ME ] R LTEBECHE & of “Yue” throughout all activities, including the online theme
WHHES K] BKEEE - UEZEH photography contest named “Yue Zan” held by the headquarters, the
HERAEMILE] (18]l - TIRE] - [18 funny running activities named “Yue Running” held by subsidiaries,
Bl TELH  HERBHREE Tt E the “Yue Study”, “Yue Drawing”, “Yue Reunion” and “Yue
FRHEE R - REMBNE - Celebration” activities held by communities, etc., we continuously and
actively promote the spread and construction of community culture
and health, and then promote neighbourhood harmony.

RE

Yue Reunion Yue Celebration
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R R Privacy protection

BMEEETREBAERELBREERE In compliance with the laws and regulations relating to personal

BHET(EPEREEEREES) (BXE data privacy, we formulate the Guidelines for Customer Information

BIEZEIES]) S - WECAP#®) R Management and Guidelines for Document Management and define

TEPEEEBHNERSGE @ BRI ENE the scope of use of customer information in the User Agreement to

ANB R 2 ERE o regulate the protection of customer information and ensure that the
personal data collected is treated confidentially.

v/ EFREFPEERETBRE - T5HE v Soft copy of the customer information is protected with
H passwords and copying is strictly forbidden;

v/ HEREFPEEERBEENEEER v Hard copy of the customer information files is managed by
BEE TEBEEEE  BEHREH the designated information manager and shall not be viewed,

copied or destroyed at will;

v/ EBRANEFEEREENELSEREER v/ The customer information in the system is managed by the
EIR - REMENEIERER designated information administrator with corresponding

management authority;

v BEHEABEEE  SHREBER v/ The files are managed by specific personnel. Prior to viewing or
BREGEBEABNEL  TEINRESR borrowing the files, pre-approval by the management personnel
AR ° is required. The contents of the files must be kept confidential.

ERBBEREP  BMABRBRETFZE B3 To protect owners and create an assuring residential environment,
BETHITWETALHE - BBEINKAEEH we require our employees to perform and follow security duties via
BEEE - - BAELD AFASER B strict management and control over visitors and visiting vehicles,

ANEERERD BREZEPLHEBRESH careful examination of strangers, checking and recording of occasional
X ARFREZL  HODHRERE - visitors, and visitor screening by a real-time monitoring centre.
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CONTRIBUTING TO THE COMMUNITY
Partners

We always adhere to equal and fair supplier management system
and seek for win-win development with partners. For suppliers of
sanitation, gardening, intelligence, elevator, fire protection and
construction and maintenance, we adopt the Operation Guide
on Service Supplier Management to standardise the exploitation,
selection, appraisal and development and management on them. We
make comprehensive appraisal on suppliers based on their enterprise
qualification, management level and service quality to determine the
Qualified Supplier List, and select suppliers by invitation of bid or
open tender in accordance with the Operation Guide on Procurement
Bidding.

We supervise, manage and assess suppliers based on the Operation
Guide on Field Work Management of Service Suppliers, arrange
specialised personnel to regularly record and evaluate suppliers’ work
quality, and the Monthly Assessment Sheet on Suppliers’ Services is
reported monthly. At the year end, suppliers are classified into various
grades through comprehensive performance appraisal method.

In order to avoid unlawful profit-making activities, we require the
partners to sign the Sunshine Cooperation Agreement while signing
the commercial cooperation contracts with the Company, so as to
regulate the activities of both parties.

We are committed to conveying our notions of environmental
protection, safety and corporate social responsibility to related parties.
We develop the Notice to Related Parties, and inform them when
we cooperate to strengthen our cooperation in environmental and
occupational health and safety protection. We conduct irregular
monitoring and inspection over the significant related parties to
monitor their performance in environment, health and safety. For the
related parties who do not meet our requirements, we will propose
rectification suggestions; for companies that still fail to meet our
requirements after rectification, we will take corresponding measures
such as reducing orders, changing suppliers, etc., so as to manage the
environmental and social risks of the supply chains.

IR R EMAER L T S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
201944 % 2019 Annual Report

105



RiR - g RER®RE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

HZE2019F12A318 » AEBEHEBHLHER
AR ZRHERE313R - APk 85 EER
HEWMTEAR :

As of 31 December 2019, there were a total of 313 greening suppliers
and cleaning suppliers in the Group, and the number of suppliers by
geographical region is shown below:

188
56
35
24
6 4
. I — .
L& +E iipan ZH TS HAth
Jiangsu Shanghai  Zhejiang Anhui Shandong  Others

KRB ER

BB ETREEEER - BIEETRM (F
FEARKMBAE) (PEARALFME R A
FEY(REARLMEBZZAZE) - (PEA
REMBRTIEEHRFE) F(REARLRE
REEE) F o HBMSIE IR E B THH
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Anti-corruption

We comply with relevant laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Bidding Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Unfair Competition Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Money Laundering Law
of the People’s Republic of China, etc. We formulated the Code of
Professional Conduct of Employees and revised and updated it in
2019 and carried out relevant training for employees. Employees
are required to sign the Letter of Commitment of Integrity, and are
prohibited from bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

We established reporting channels such as reporting hotline,
reporting mailbox, reporting e-mail and on-site reporting, and
reporting information is published in external official website,
internal network, and workplaces of subsidiaries, business operation
places and contracts. Employees and external partners could report
violations of laws and discipline via the above channels and Audit
and Supervision Department will conduct independent investigation
and report the results to the Audit Committee in a timely manner.
We hold an avoidance policy for those who have an interest in
reporting information, provide protection to the informants, and keep
the relevant information of informants and specific contents of the
reported matters strictly confidential.
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Charitable activities

We regularise charity and public benefit activities through Methods
on Management of Charity and Public Benefit Activities. We provide
distinctive community activities to the society in various forms (i.e.
Care for the elderly, Community poverty alleviation, Green action)
combined with characteristics of our business.

(2019¢4H CHRMEFPRBESCESSE N

EEAMEIRREER FRAEFRF
BITER] AETENERED ] BBRES
72 =X 48 #92,000%8 18 # 4 LA &2 A 20,000
IL O BBTTEMNE AV EEIMER -

In April 2019, we joined hands with the China Green Foundation to
support the Million Forest Project Charity Programme and launched
the “Acts for Real Walking” with the theme of “Joining the New,
Moving Afar”. We contributed to desert greening through the power
of walking and donated 2,000 shuttle trees and RMB20,000.
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We actively responded to the guidance of the State Council Leading
Group Office of Poverty Alleviation and Development and participated in
the special poverty alleviation action jointly organized by China Poverty
Management Institute and the China Community Poverty Alleviation

Alliance — “Power of the Community”. We purchased and assisted to

sell more than RMB100,000 of agricultural by-products to help the HEESAMIIEFS
community on poverty alleviation in the form of consumption poverty eu—lﬂﬁn-m—ﬁﬂﬁ
alleviation, oriented purchases, etc. i M o S D

th: (f) asmimunune o teratane EREE
In December 2019, at the second council of the China Community #n ém&"z! Q
Poverty Alleviation Alliance, we were awarded the title of “Consumption wir: e
Poverty Alleviation Model Community” because of our outstanding
achievements in the special actions on consumption-driven poverty
alleviation of “Power of the Community”.

N J

BPRBGEREBSARENEEZNERA We made a positive response to the charity call of the Community
BEERUARHELSEARSE - 2019511 Chest and donated funds to provide social welfare services. In
A BHEEBLAZEET [AmEiE] - November 2019, we were awarded the “Public Welfare Excellence

Award” by the Community Chest.
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Professional Skills
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Induction Training
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Specialized Training

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES
Employee development

We pay attention to talent development and relevant investment, and
provide diversified development space to employees. We formulate the
Training Management Policy to specify the training for employees, and
explore trainers internally through Internal Trainer Management Policy.
In 2019, we established the Administrative Measures for Employee
Certificates to encourage employees to improve their professional
qualities and obtain corresponding certificates. We provide monthly
welfare subsidies to employees who have obtained certificates so as to
improve the overall quality and professional skills of employees.

To better cultivate talents that meet the needs of the Company and
to help employees grow rapidly, we have optimised the talent training
system by building a S-Enjoy talent training pyramid and carrying out
trainings through the “Five Xin” programmes (Xinhuo programme,
Xinling programme, Xinjiang programme, Xinyao programme and Xinyi
programme).

= AR HIMRE £ F B SRR .

# Group Stmtamr Mulina' Enterprises Visiting /
Expatriate Training

e AAHAAA: W Bl SR

) 3/ MR ETE

Middle Level Mngt

o AABRERH: WE. Wk
» Talent Training Program: Xinling,
Xinhuo

. HE
Managemenl Trainee

o B RN
& Xinyi Training Camp
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In May 2019, the Yuetuo Manager Training Camp was
carried out for new functional managers and programme
managers.

2019474 » 2019 @ FBIERS -

In July 2019, 2019 Xinyi Training Camp was successfully

organized. h
[~ - =
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In July 2019, the S-Enjoy Service Second Skills Contest
was successfully organized.
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During the Reporting Period, the percentage of employees trained and
the average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category are shown in the table below:

[EE-2H:Y BEEEN
EEESL T 1535 FI B &
The average
The percentage training hours
of employees completed per
trained employee
BR85S By gender
Bk Male 61.1% 10.8
M Female 82.8% 13.5
RESER By employee category
BEEEAE Senior management 100.0% 34.9
EBAER Junior staff 76.6% 12.4
BREZR Health and safety

BPREERBRERFERELZE  BRETEH
EZZ2AERER  BRETRR(REA
REMBSEE) (FEARKMEBLELEE
EY (PEARKNMBBERSE) 5 RE
TREZ2@EN THERE -

BHMEHETRREAZ 2 TENEBEBSIATH
m|m :

v MRS TREERER 2B
BR WESTREERZE2EEER

27705

PoRE

v FREMBERRELZNHHE MNIF
A EETHZMERRELZE2ER
ZEEHHLZEERBNHERTHE

We comply with relevant laws and regulations related to health and
safety, including but not limited to the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases, etc. We highly
value occupational health and safety, and provide a safe and healthy
workplace for employees.

Our initiatives in promoting health and safety include the following
aspects:

v S-Enjoy Service established occupational health and safety
management system and obtained Occupational Health and
Safety Management System Certification;

v Conduct education and training of occupational health and
safety, so that employees can foster and enhance the sense
of occupational safety and master the common sense of
preventing safety risks;
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v REIRHSF RN TSR v Provide annual physical examination for employees;

v/ FEHRFEN - BRER ZEEREE v/ Perform periodical self-review for accidents and injuries, and
TT#: properly handle employees’ work injuries;

v EHHEITLZERE  BMREZEENE v Carry out regular safety inspection to ensure the implementation
i of safety measures;

v B R EEE) - T HASRITE B R AR AN v/ Carry out regular fire drills and training with communities;
g s

v AOBIEOMER  THHREESI@EE v Care for employees’ physical and mental health, conduct
R WERBIMEEAE S THET regular care interviews with employees, and launch employee
Fk e engagement surveys to learn more about employees’ needs.

BEBHA - AREEREBEEIRTHBER During the Reporting Period, no work-related fatality occurred in the

TEEANTIERZA2,1265K ¢ Group, and the number of days lost due to work injury was 2,126.5
days.
=0 HBEEE CASE: FIRE DRILL

201911 A HfffE LR T8 I&HS In November 2019, we joined forces with local communities of
HEE Mt R EE) 0 BITEPESEE) - Shanghai, Anhui, Jiangsu, etc. to hold fire drill activities. The activities

S EMEMNERNSA  RAELR -« E include the introduction to the use of fire equipment, fire drills,

ShENEEEE  WRETHEZER communication of emergency escape knowledge, etc., to enhance the

B IRAEETHEIIZEEH - fire safety skills of employees and to raise the fire safety awareness of
owners.
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LEGAL EMPLOYMENT

>

Recruitment and dismissal

In strictly compliance with relevant laws and regulations
including but not limited to the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, etc., we formulate the Employee
Recruitment and Employment Management Policy and
Talent Referral Management Measures and other policies
to recruit talented employees based on the principle of
“open recruitment, employer and employee choice, selection
of candidates with better performance” through campus
recruitment, internal referral, online recruitment and head-
hunting. In 2019, we launched an internal recommendation
activity named “One Recommendation for Ten Thousand Yuan”
to encourage all employees to recommend outstanding talents
for the Company.

We sign Labour Contracts with employees in compliance
with relevant laws. In the Policy for Employees’ Award and
Punishment and the Labour Contract, we detail the employee’s
award and punishment and the conditions for the termination
of the Labour Contract.

Remuneration and promotion

In Remuneration Management Policy and Welfare Management
Policy newly formulated in 2019, we provide a complete
remuneration system for our employees. Remuneration is
classified into different grades based on various positions, and
each grade contains several levels. Competitive remuneration
is offered according to employees’ positions, performances
and abilities. Employees’ remuneration comprises basic salary,
post salary, overtime wage, performance pay, seniority pay
and year-end bonus. Different remuneration structures are
applicable to employees based on their job categories. We pay
social insurance for employees in compliance with national
and local policies and regulations, and provide benefits such as
night shift allowance, meal subsidy, phone allowance, traffic
allowance, holiday subsidy, high temperature subsidy and
consolation fund for our employees to show our concern for all
employees.
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In 2019, we revised the Performance Management Policy of
S-Enjoy Property, and implemented performance management
through first-level organisation (headquarters), second-level
organisation (each functional department at headquarters,
and each subsidiary and branch) and third-level organisation
(functional departments at each subsidiary and branch, and
each property service centre/office). We conducted monthly,
quarterly and annual performance assessments on a regular
basis. The assessments results are applied to bonus distribution,
remuneration adjustment, post adjustment, employee
competency evaluation, etc.

TOPIC: “WIN-WIN TOGETHER, ENJOY THE
FUTURE” PARTNER PROGRAMME

2019F4 8 - HMEEMABR2019F 4%
)\E@ﬁ:ﬁj CHIABAKY]#ETTE
CWERITTABAENER - [A 8 AK
%IJJ ERERBREEERE N B IZFER
BEARAUABREBINAREENRYS - &
RERSRAEQREFHRRE -

In April 2019, we held the “2019 Partners Kick-off Conference” in
Changzhou, announced the “Partner Mechanism”, and held a partner
signing ceremony. The “Partner Mechanism” aims to inspire partners
or partnership teams to strengthen management and services by
setting challenging goals and rewards, and ultimately achieving a win-
win situation between partners and the Company.
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Working hours and holidays

In 2019, we revised the Employee Attendance Management
Policy and implemented an eight-hour work system at the
headquarters. In compliance with the national regulations,
the time of the headquarters and the work nature, each
subsidiary and branch arranged shifts and reported to the
headquarters for recording. Also, irregular working hours and
integrated working hours in accordance with local policies are
implemented in special posts.

We also revised the Employees Leave Management Policy
which stipulates that employees are entitled to rest days, public
holidays, personal leave, sick leave, work injury leave, marriage
leave, maternity leave and breastfeeding leave, paternity leave,
bereavement leave, annual leave as well as other statutory
holidays in China.

Equal opportunity, diversification and anti-
discrimination

We recruit talents according to the principles of fairness,
impartiality and openness and select the outstanding ones
under the same conditions. In compliance with national and
local laws and regulations, we allow no discrimination with
regard to race, gender, colour, age, family background, ethnic
tradition, religion, physical condition and original nationality
to ensure that all employees enjoy equal opportunities in
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare.

Labour standards

We comply with relevant laws and regulations, including but
not limited to the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and
the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour, etc. We
respect employees’ legitimate rights and interests and check
the employees’ identity cards and other personal information
when they are employed, so as to eliminate the use of child
labour. We strictly abide by the statutory working hours,
control the overtime work, and ensure the rest time as well
as physical and mental health of employees. If it is necessary
to arrange employees to work overtime due to work needs,
overtime wages are paid according to laws. Forced labour is
not allowed.
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> BIES > Employee activities
BMEFRARZEZENERTEE & We carry out various kinds of activities annually to enrich
EEIXEMBEE - employees’ spare-time life.

Urer m DR
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In October 2019, we launched the 2019 hiking activity in Gehu,
Jiangsu, with 119 middle and senior managers participating in the
55 km hiking activity.

J

HZE2019F12A318 » REEZMER - EEH
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As of 31 December 2019, the total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group, and geographical region is shown in the following

table:
EEHH

Total workforce
R BIE D By gender
Bt Male 2,454
pegi Female 3,622
REBERS By employment type
i Full-time 6,076
FRE Part-time 0
RERE D By age group
30 AR Below 30 2,996
30-507% From 30 to 50 2,647
507k A Above 50 433
R itb 15 8l 5 By geographical region
& Shanghai 441
T &R Jiangsu 2,383
peripan Zhejiang 586
A, Others 2,666
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PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

Based on the business characteristics of property service, our emissions
mainly comprise of greenhouse gas emissions from electricity and
heating in workplace, as well as nonhazardous waste emissions from
workplace; the resources used mainly include electricity and water
used in workplace, and water used in gardening and cleaning.

We strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations, including
but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s
Republic of China, etc. We formulate the Office Management
Guidelines to advocate “green office” and “green community” and
reduce the impact of the community on the environment. We have
established environmental management system in S-Enjoy Service
and obtained the external certification of GB/T 24001-2016/ISO
14001:2015. We adopt a variety of measures and policies of energy
conservation, water saving and emission reduction (including but not
limited to greenhouse gas emission) to lower negative impacts on the
environment.

> Green office:

o Advocate all employees to save electricity: shut down
office equipment in a timely manner after work, and
turn off lights after leaving the office;

o Encourage paper conservation, promote double-sided
printing and reuse of waste paper, and reduce the
generation of harmless waste;

o Advocate the economical use of office supplies, extend
their service life as much as possible and reduce the
consumption of consumables;

o Turn off the faucet timely after using water and perform
routine maintenance on water equipment to prevent
water leaks.
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Green community:

LED tubes are used in outdoor public areas with shunt
control and time control for the energy conservation
purpose;

Classified meters are installed in communities with
specialized power transformation and supply, public
areas in basement (lighting, power), elevators,
landscapes and property houses, and conduct energy
analysis;

Owners’ representatives meetings, on-site publicity,
community activities, distribution of waste sorting
brochures, mobile WeChat communication, etc. are held
to actively promote waste sorting;

The Requirements on the Management of Closed and
Cleared Waste Houses and Waste Bagging Collection is
formulated. Special construction waste dumping sites
are built to collect and manage the construction wastes
generated by owners to avoid secondary pollution;

A general meter is set at the inlet of the municipal
water header pipe in communities while sub-metres
are set according to areas, and water use analysis is
conducted;

Dry-wet sweepers and ride-on sweepers are adopted to
reduce water use;

Artificial rime system is used for gardening and watering
to reduce water consumption in gardening.
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We reduce greenhouse gas emissions through a variety of
energy-saving measures; the water resources we use come
from municipal water, and thus, there is no problem with water
sourcing. By implementing a series of green office measures,
such as a paperless office and electricity shunt control, we
can minimize the impacts of our operation and offices on the
environment. Also by waste sorting and recycling, we expect
that we can substantially reduce the generation and discharge
of waste. The use of large amounts of non-renewable energies,
forest resources or impacts on biodiversity are not involved
during our operations. Therefore, Aspect A3. (The Environment
and Natural Resources) is not applicable to the Group.

WAENRDE
Office Waste Sorting

BR[WRS I XEARER
Conduct the “Waste Sorting” Owners
Representative Meeting
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BAREVIER - Key Performance Indicators:

CIRBIRIERR AR A RI20185F1RE « HEMES The greenhouse gas emission data and resource use data disclosed
WE) PR EARE R MEBRNERE A in the Xinchengyue Holdings Limited 2018 ESG Report covered the
HIBEBEAEBREZRNOESD - RIS H portion of the Group's advances on behalf of owners. During the
W REBERE TIREHBERBASUERNSN Reporting Period, the Group improved the statistic method for the
A AREMEBENEBERTIEEENE reporting of environmental key performance indicators. The data
FRMNME D REFENRT T EBEALRR disclosed in the Report did not cover the portion of the Group’s
EHRFE - advances on behalf of owners. The statistic method in the following
years will be consistent with that of this Reporting Period.

235870

Emissions’ 2019
RERBHRAE (B_atikEs)?

Total greenhouse gas emissions (tCOze)? 51,865
BEREERZE (M_atmEs " EBTARBKRA)

Intensity of greenhouse gas emission (tCO,e/million RMB revenue) 25.62
EmEEEDHINESE ()3

Total non-hazardous waste (tonnes)? 1,293.38
mEFEDERE (B BSETARBIKA)

Intensity of non-hazardous waste (tonnes/million RMB revenue) 0.64
&R

Use of Resources* 2019
el EFERE (JKER) S

Total energy consumption (MWh)> 76,175
BERERTE KRR, AREBBEETEA)

Intensity of energy consumption (in MWh/RMB million revenue) 37.64
waiEKkE (BE)

Total Water consumption (tonnes) 2,314,594
wRKEE (W, AREEBEITRA)

Intensity of water consumption (tonnes/RMB million revenue) 1,143.56
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(B k2B SRAREESHBEBLTRERSRZEF
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HRAEENEER T RERMHER - M
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REERRERERSMEELRAR  BERAMEE
EREAEE KEEBETHE  UARE (FE
TERE) 25 -

Note:

Due to our business characteristics, the Group does not generate any exhaust
emissions; the Group cannot monitor discharge amount of wastewater and
pollutants due to the discharge of waste water into municipal pipes. Therefore, KPI
A1.1 (The types of emissions and respective emissions data) is not disclosed in the
Report. The hazardous wastes generated during the Group's operation are waste
toner cartridges and waste ink boxes in a small amount, which are recycled by
qualified recyclers, with less impact on the environment. Therefore, KPI A1.3 (Total
hazardous waste produced) is not disclosed in the Report;

The greenhouse gas emissions of the Group only include the Scope 2: energy
indirect emissions (emissions from purchased electricity and heat) and do not
include Scope 1: direct greenhouse gas emissions. Greenhouse gas emissions are
presented as CO: equivalent. The calculation method and conversion factors come
from the Accounting Methods and Reporting Guide for Greenhouse Gas Emissions
from Public Building Operators issued by the National Development and Reform
Commission;

Due to business characteristics, non-hazardous waste generated by the Group’s
operations and by customers/owners are collected and processed by the local
municipal departments, and the Group is unable to separately measure the non-
hazardous waste generated by the Group’s operations. The non-hazardous waste
disclosed in the Report are calculated through multiplying the number of people
at each project by the local residents’ domestic waste emission coefficients, which
come from the Manual of the First National Pollution Source Census of Urban Life
Sources and Pollution Emission Coefficients issued by the Leading Group Office of
the State Council’s First National Pollution Source Census;

The use of packaging materials is not related to the operation of the Group.
Therefore, KPI A2.5 (Total packaging material used for finished products) is not
applicable;

The Group’s energy consumption only includes indirect energy consumption. The
total energy consumption is calculated by electricity and heat consumptions, and is
presented as MWh (kWh in ‘000s).
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. BAMBRENE  AFEEARHIE
BE -

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

S-ENJOY SERVICE GROUP CO., LIMITED

(formerly known as “Xinchengyue Holdings Limited”)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of S-Enjoy Service Group Co.,
Limited (formerly known as “Xinchengyue Holdings Limited”, hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages F-131 to F-248, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

a summary of significant accounting policies.

TSR BT EB T, Bl IR K A 22 1
HiF ¢ +852 2289 8888, HH : +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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OPINION (Cont'd)
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is recoverability of trade
receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

B 5 EUGRIA R AT UL Bl 1

Recoverability of trade receivables

FELHGEMBHmEMTA (ERG b R AE) RHTzE23
(B ZEHIE) o

Refer to note 4 (critical accounting estimates and
judgements) and note 23 (trade receivables) to the
consolidated financial statements.

R2019%12A31R0 © ERENESRUGKEREFE/A
R¥263BET (BHEEBEARB304ESTRERBAR
®a1EBT) -

As at 31 December 2019, the net carrying amount of trade
receivables of the Group is RMB263 million, including gross
amount of RMB304 million and allowance for impairment of
RMB41 million.

RAEE ZREFIEN R EYE - EXERAEEVBRE
ERIERA AT E & AR ERBRFERBLRE
B Z REIFIE VIR TR T LATER

For assessing the recoverability of trade receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the trade receivables.

BMHERNMEERRERSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HPHEREBORIET TR ENG LY BE5E
B 5 &R IE &Y BT W m) 1 ATk 6 B S E I E 1T TR
EI\ ;

We obtained an understanding and evaluated
management’s design and tested the key controls
over the Group's assessment of the recoverability of

trade receivables;

BIMEEERRAEGT MIRERGHNELENX
BALKNELEE  REEEEEHNFHENHEEER
We agreed the historical data, including sales and
bad debts related to the sales information, on a
sample basis, used in the calculation of historical
default rate percentage to the accounting and
operation system;

BPRBERMEEPAETENTRIARSZE B
BRFEE IR B E AR AT B =T

We assessed management’s assessment of current
conditions and forward looking factors based on
our understanding of the client’s industry and with
reference to external data sources;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Cont'd)

RMNEZNTEERRERSR (B)

EEBERBEBANNTERGERLENEBESL - B
HERAANEERBENEEERER - ERFERBERRE
INEBE e SR ETTIME - WETT R LA E AR50 BB
MEE -

The Group calculated the historical default rate percentage
based on the payment profile of debtors, including sales
and bad debts related to the sales in the observed period.
The expected lifetime loss is estimated based on internal
historical data with adjustment to reflect current conditions
and forward looking factors.

BB E ZRWFIAN AT EIER SR gEZER - AR
HHEEARERENEIEMEEBARIEHNERS T
R RIgR -

We consider recoverability of trade receivables a key audit
matter because the amount is significant and there are
significant management’s estimates and judgements involved
in the assessment of expected credit losses.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont'd)

. BMEREERZRAMBBXHERNTEEZSE
W B E AR E2019412 A31 B E S WA
BYRR B HEATHIBORIS,

° We tested the aging profile of trade receivables as
of 31 December 2019 used in the calculation of
allowance for impairment of trade receivables, on
a sample basis, to sales invoices and other relevant
documents;

. BPRERBE T E 5 RUFIEREEET EoER
M

o We checked mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of allowance for impairment of trade
receivables as at year end;

. BMEHE S RWRIEN REE B RE TR
E - WIREWHREE KA E X -

. We checked, on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables to cash receipts and
the related supporting documentation.

ERFTEEF - B3R - BEEE S RIGRIEN A
W B 1 BT i 50 PR O (i 5 2 HI B 1S B PSR IR 2 2% -
Based on the procedures performed, we found
management’s estimates and judgements used in the
assessment of recoverability of trade receivables were
supported by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont'd)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont'd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Kam Chin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

BZE2019%F H=E2018%F
12A31H 12A31H
IHFE IEFE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ibg=s AR¥T ARBET T
Note RMB’'000 RMB’ 000
(&&&:5 -
Mi3E33)
(Restated,
Note 33)
LON Revenue 6 2,024,026 1,173,388
$HE R ARTE A AN Cost of sales and services 6,7 (1,424,147) (828,366)
E| Gross profit 599,879 345,022
HEREHER Selling and marketing expenses 7 (11,349) (6,943)
T E R Administrative expenses 7 (233,891) (147,699)
SERERENEENRE Net impairment losses on financial and
EEFE contract assets 3.1.2 (10,324) (12,336)
HAb U A Other income 9 26,116 11,286
HihE A Other expenses 10 (867) (439)
H b as 550 Other gains — net 11 5,709 18,409
KeERHE Operating profit 375,273 207,300
B Finance income 17,118 6,168
BT AR Finance costs (400) _
WA — E58 Finance income — net 12 16,718 6,168
R T 1S 5 31U Profit before income tax 391,991 213,468
FriS®i& Income tax expense 14 (90,137) (48,390)
FRAE Profit for the year 301,854 165,078
DT ALTELFE : Profit is attributable to:
B WNEIE Z=DN — Owners of the Company 282,011 152,154
— FEEIR RS - Non-controlling interests 19,843 12,924
301,854 165,078
FRAZEBA Total comprehensive income for the year 301,854 165,078
Total comprehensive income is
DTATEMBEZEBA attributable to:
B WNEIE Y=DN - Owners of the Company 282,011 152,154
— IRV R - Non-controlling interests 19,843 12,924
301,854 165,078
BEREAN (UERARETERR) Earnings per share (expressed in RMB)
— GRERZF — Basic earnings per share 15 0.34 0.24
— BREERF - Diluted earnings per share 15 0.34 0.24

bR & 2T WA IR FE SRR Y P R — GFBIFE o

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be
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ma BRI R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20195124318 As at 31 December 2019

20194 R20184F
12A31H 12A318
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
B &E AR®TF T ARBT T
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
(&% -
FEE33)
(Restated,
Note 33)
FREBEE Non-current assets
ME - BEKERE Property, plant and equipment 16(a) 8,952 8,389
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 16(b) 11,427 -
mHEEE Intangible assets 17 11,651 12,031
BT S REE Deferred income tax assets 31 40,372 24,220
s Deposits 24 3,534 2,812
RARBEGAEM Financial assets at fair value through
FHEHBANSREE other comprehensive income 19 1,660 1,660
BARBEAEEN Financial asset at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 20 70,000 -
B I8 Prepayments 21 - 5,573
RBEEHATE Total non-current assets 147,596 54,685
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 10,620 11,731
BHEE Contract assets 130,819 -
BAn BEFAEBRN Financial asset at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 20 208,412 -
E S REUGRE Trade receivables 23 262,767 129,118
FERFIE e M EMEW I Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 24 100,261 95,395
BeRREEED Cash and cash equivalents 25 1,339,092 1,281,269
RBEERLSE Total current assets 2,051,971 1,517,513
EERE Total assets 2,199,567 1,572,198
= Equity
AAREE ABLRES Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
N Share capital 26 56,508 56,639
[ Reserves 27 397,724 610,656
REB AT Retained earnings 469,840 187,829
924,072 855,124
FEER R R Non-controlling interests 42,798 22,767
e Total equity 966,870 877,891
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ma BRI R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

20195124318 As at 31 December 2019

20194 20184
12H31H 12HA318H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
BisE AR¥T ARBET T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(&e&E5 -
FI5E33)
(Restated,
Note 33)
a& Liabilities
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 16(b) 3,873 -
B Provisions 29 394 1,050
BELEHRIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 31 13,428 4,646
FRBEEARE Total non-current liabilities 17,695 5,696
FBEE Current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 16(b) 3,827 -
EHEE Contract liabilities 6 390,342 248,764
B 5 LEMENIE Trade and other payables 30 773,760 416,746
BIEAFTS i B & Current income tax liabilities 47,073 23,101
RBAEHARE Total current liabilities 1,215,002 688,611
BEHAE Total liabilities 1,232,697 694,307
ERREEHBE Total equity and liabilities 2,199,567 1,572,198
RBEERE Net current assets 836,969 828,902
it ERE B RS AR 2% E ER R R M s — OF BOGE - The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read

FEF-131EF-2488 /) B 75 7R & 74202093713
BEZEESHEATHATEERARE

RN
Qi Xiaoming
Director

EF

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages F-131 to F-248 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 13 March 2020 and were signed

on its behalf:

RIEE
Wu Qiangian
Director

EF

IR R EE AR 2T S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
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REEREEIR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

RREEE NER
Attributable to owners of the Company
Bx EEHEE  EtEE  REER it EEREER  ERER
Non-
Share  Statutory Other  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ Reserves  Reserves  earnings Total interests Equity
M ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR AREFT ARETR
Note  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
H2018F1 B 1AM &8 Balance at 1 January 2018 - 6,576 54,427 92,853 153,856 35,188 189,044
HEEHTHEHE M Business combination under
common control 33 - - 6,561 1,822 8,383 560 8,943
120185181048 (%) Balance at 1 January 2018,
adjusted - 6,576 60,988 94,675 162,239 35,748 197,987
2EBA Comprehensive income
FRFHE Profit for the year - - - 152,154 152,154 12,924 165,078
ERREREANEETA Transactions with owners
ETHR S recognised directly in equity
M EREEAAARAA Dividends declared by Xincheng
ERARE Fuyue Management Consulting
Co., Ltd. - - - (59,0000 (59,000) - (59,000)
M EREEREARAR Capital contribution from the then
ERRRLE shareholder of Xincheng Fuyue
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. - - 127,000 - 127,000 - 127,000
FERRRLE Contribution from non-controlling
shareholder - - 2,07 - 2,07 2,725 4,7%
AATHEEALE Capital contribution from the
owners of the Company - - 226,997 - 226,997 - 226,997
BERFEMARDERERR  Buy-back of minority interests
BRATRE D EER of Tibet Xinchengyue Property
Management Co., Ltd. - - (53,302) - (53,302) (28,630) (81,932
BB EIREREABMRAT  Acquisition of Xincheng Fuyue
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. - - (241,455) - (241,455) - (241,455)
BEAMLEST Capitalisation issue 41,445 - (41,445) - - - -
BEARAREERTERER  Issuance of ordinary shares pursuant
RiTERERRE to initial public offering and
exercise of over-allotment option 15,194 - 523226 - 538,420 - 538,420
M2018F12 31 A &S Balance at 31 December 2018 56,639 6,576 604,080 187,829 855,124 22,767 877,891
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REEREEIR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

KAREEAES
Attributable to owners of the Company

k& EERE  HtEE REER A FERMEE BEEE

Non-
Share Statutory Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  Reserves  Reserves  earnings Total interests Equity

i ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

R2019F1 B1R &S Balance at 1 January 2019 56,639 6,576 604,080 187,829 855,124 22,767 877,891
2EHA Comprehensive income
FERFHE Profit for the year - - - 282,011 282,011 19,843 301,854
EERERRANREFA Transactions with owners
EITHR S recognised directly in equity
ARAENHRE Dividend paid by the Company 32 - - (82,000) - (82,000) - (82,000)
ERAHTHERAR Business combination under
common control 33 - - (29,942) - (29,942) - (29,942)
DBEREERRBRAR Capital contribution from the then
ERRRLE shareholder of Shanghai Shuyuan
Information Technology Co., Ltd. 33 - - 2,812 - 2,812 188 3,000
BO LA ERn Buy-back and cancellation of shares 26 (131) - (9,259) - (9,390) - (9,390)
AESRMEEHEWERD  Acquisition of shares for employ
Share Award Scheme 27 - - (102,754) - (102,754) - (102,754)
EEBRIES 2 - EERMBHERE Employee Share Option Scheme -
value of employee service 28 - - 8,211 - 8,211 - 8,211
R2019F12 831 H 4 Balance at 31 December 2019 56,508 6,576 391,148 469,840 924,072 42,798 966,870
AR A e B R BREE MY P s — BRI E o The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MERETREBR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2019%12 4318 L4 Z For the year ended 31 December 2019

BZE2019F HE20184F
12A31BLFE 12A318LFE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
P sE ARBTT ARBTTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(&5
BiEE33)
(Restated,
Note 33)
RETHMEBRERE Cash flows from operating activities
KESHRE Cash generated from operations 34(a) 618,218 225,781
EENGIECE Income tax paid (73,535) (40,195)
REFPEENRSFR Net cash generated from operating
activities 544,683 185,586
RETEMEBRERE Cash flows from investing activities
HEME - BERFK Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
FriS 7R equipment 140 8,061
BARBEGAERD Interest received on financial assets at fair
TRIEENDKFE value through profit or loss 15,450 5,330
BEYWE  BENME Payments for acquisition of property, plant
AR FERETENT 3RIA and equipment and non-current prepayment (4,343) (2,457)
BERTEE Payments for acquisition of intangible assets 17 (542) (1,673)
BERAREBETA Payments for acquisition of financial assets at
BaNemEE fair value through profit or loss 20 (274,284) -
REZE (FH),EEN Net cash (used in)/generated from
B R investing activities (263,579) 9,261
METHMERERE Cash flows from financing activities
BB ARFEER M ER L E Capital contribution from owners and
non-controlling interests - 358,793
EIB T H T EFA 6 Capital contribution from the then shareholder
WENEEERRENHEE of the entity acquired through business
combination under common control 27 3,000 -
AR A7 B Bk IE Payment for share buy-back 27 (112,144) -
EEEA S E X Repayment of loans to related parties = (65,900)
SO FE IR YRR Payment for consideration of buy-back of
B BRARDVEEZHNRE  minority interests of Tibet Xinchengyue
Property Management Co., Ltd. - (81,932)
ST R HIE S KIE  Payment for acquisition of the entity under
common control 33 (29,942) -
THKETREIRE RN Payment for consideration of acquisition of
BRARMRE Xincheng Fuyue Management Consulting
Co., Ltd. - (241,455)
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MERETREBR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

B ZE2019%F HE20184F
12A31BLEE 12A318LFE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
P ARETR ARBTTT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(& E7) -
Mi5E33)
(Restated,
Note 33)
B HT = 1% B IR A IR, Dividends paid to previous shareholder of
Xincheng Fuyue - (59,000)
HEFIBAS D RHEFE Principle elements of lease payments and its
interests 16 (3,781) -
RAENRNBIAR S Dividend paid by the Company 32 (82,000) -
DB B A TR R IR BRI A% & Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders in subsidiaries - (19,000)
BITE BRI TS RIBFEE Proceeds from issuance of ordinary
shares — net - 538,420
mMETH (EAH)EEN Net cash (used in)/generated from
He 3 financing activities (224,867) 429,926
REeERBELEEYEMFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 56,237 624,773
R BERENRR S K Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
HEEEY the financial year 1,281,269 637,924
[ERSHEIFL L Effects of exchange rate changes on cash
REeEEBEMRTE and cash equivalents 1,586 18,572
REERNEELRELZEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,339,092 1,281,269
it A4 ek R AR s — R o The above consolidated statement of cash flow should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFEZ For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.1

—RER

—REH

ISR EEBR AR (AIBA [T
IRIERBRAR ] TX il ARE])
#2018F 1 H16RIRIER S S R ADA
(8822% - 1961 F B35 AN - KAk
B5]) EMEHEHMKR I REREE
FRAA - WR20184F11 A6 R 78 & A H
axRGMmARLAR ([BMm]) £RE
Mo R M EE I RPO Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104 Cayman Islands °

RARAB—RIEEZERAR - BHEK
BAAIEERPEARKEME ([4
Bl]) IR EE IR RS & AE IS ER
% o & 4L J& 2 7] Alnfinity Fortune
Development Limited o 7858 B B S 4835
ARRAERELRE ([TH4E] K&
IRIERRARER D) ©

REE2019F12A831BIEFE - A&
EEMEKERBEEKE ESERESR
BMEERAE (L8R B2
B o ZNBERZ HEEHNEBLE A
B (BtsE2.2.1) »

BRRBERN  GEVBHRRUARE
Tt TARETTD 27 -

1.1

GENERAL INFORMATION
General information

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited (formerly known as
“Xinchengyue Holdings Limited”, hereinafter referred to as
the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 16 January 2018 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap.22, law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “stock exchange”) on 6 November 2018. The address of the
Company’s registered office is PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of property
management services and related value-added services in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The ultimate controlling
company is Infinity Fortune Development Limited. The ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Group is Mr. Wang Zhenhua (“Mr.
Wang” or the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholder”).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group acquired
100% of the equity interests of Shanghai Shuyuan Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Shuyuan”) from the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder. The acquisition was accounted for as
business combinations under common control (Note 2.2.1).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB '000"), unless otherwise stated.
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PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.1

EXEHEGE

AU IR R AL TR M IE MR T
RN TBEHABERBE - BRBEER

EFI - ZEBRNRABERINFE —BIE
A -
mRERE

ARBNEEMBHRREBREFT LS
B AE R EEMBREEL ([FE
MBREEL]) RE - RAEMBEHRRTS
RIBELRAZEZRE  IREGRAA
BEFAEBEZERANSREEREZ
AAEBEEFABSNSBREEFDLERT -

CETEN S Y e C RN T
BERBTERETRRGH G A
Rt F R O BN
TR o 1 L HIBT « 3 R R B0 I
A B - AR R
W B AN R B A B R M B
A -

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the HKICPA. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial
assets through profit or loss.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.
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PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFEZ For the year ended 31 December 2019

2 BEASHBREME @ 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
21 REEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
REEBFR2019F1 A1 B RGBT ER The Group has applied the following standards and amendments
HHM B RER AT R RAEFT - for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing
1 January 2019:
BB EEAE 1698 Gish -
HKFRS 16 Leases
BB HREERF G (EFTA) BEHawEZIRAMENFT
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayments features with negative compensation
B G AR 285, (1BF]A) REERRIREEPE RER
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
BBV BIRE LR 2 FE o BBV BRELR2015FF 20175 BH v FENHE
Annual improvements to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRS standards 2015-2017 cycle
HEAGEERE 195 (BFTA) FTEHERT ~ HIRSAEE
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
B8 (MBmEREZEY) $239% FTS AR B 12 B0 TN HE e 1
HKFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatment
BB EUFE IR RBEGEREST (BFIF) BANER
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8. Definition of material
FHEAEBVHMELERFE165E - A& The Group had to change its accounting policies as a result of
ENE IS E SRR -  AREER adopting HKFRS 16. The Group elected to adopt the new rules
BIPERAER] - BRERN2019F1 A1 retrospectively but recognised the cumulative effect of initially
HERRKAREAEHNRGZE - B applying the new standard on 1 January 2019. This is disclosed
M2 PETHE - Ll AZHHE in note 2.1.1. Most of the other amendments listed above did
foAE IE S LART BRI W SR B0 & RRDOR A (1A not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
FE - BN EYENSRRREEES and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future
E-WN-7Z X periods.
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
HE2019F12A31HIEFE  5THE been published that are not mandatory for the year ended 31
FERI R ZEDBMEIEEGRN - M December 2019 and have not been early adopted by the Group.
REFEITARIZAERR  ZEFHERFEF T These standards are not expected to have a material impact
SHERMNAE AR KRR E RESA R on the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on
KRR GBEANTE - foreseeable future transactions.
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PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.1
2.1.1

BEASHHERBE @)

fRBLEE ()
B ERRRKEZRNEE

AH MR RAT AV BREERF16
FHEEHAREYBRROTE -

a0 ESCHS 2.1 F A - ANEE 52019
F1AVAREBPRAB S Bk E %A
F16WHAE - BREZENNIETHBE
WAL E - REF2018F HME AL
HF o At BRGFINAERTEmIED
REH D ENFAER2019F1 A 18 8]
BEEBBERNER M BERERR
MizE2.23 °

RIRME BT BHREERFE165E - &K
EEBERRET B ERFE1757E
ENRASERKEHE] WHEERR
HEEE ZSEEREENRBEY
REFE  WEAEZE2019F1H18K
AFA AL 2 (BRI EEITANE - 12019
F1AH HEABEREANARAES
BRFEHMETLIIERL9% ©

(i) EBRANERIITHERRE
%

REREREEMEREERE
165 B - AEEEAZEL R
AP T BB AT E R IR TS
&

. HAFAEALEENHE
EHAEAR-REEX

. FREMTHEICHES
BEBEREITRERMH
ZBRTTE - R2019F
TA1RTEZEELSY

2.1
2.1.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
Leases on the Group’s financial statements.

As indicated in note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted
HKFRS 16 Leases retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but
has not restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting period,
as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the
standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from
the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the opening
balance sheet on 1 January 2019. The new accounting policies
are disclosed in note 2.23.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities
in relation to leases which had previously been classified as
‘operating leases’ under the principles of HKAS 17 Leases. These
liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities
on 1 January 2019 was 4.9%.

(i) Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

o applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics

o relying on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous as an alternative to performing
an impairment review — there were no onerous
contracts as at 1 January 2019

IR RS EE AR 2T S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
20194 % 2019 Annual Report

F-141



PR RaR Myt

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFEZ For the year ended 31 December 2019

2 EASHERHBEw 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

21 REEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

211 EFBEREESENES (8) 2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont'd)

(i) ERERRATHEREE
J5E (#8)

. MR2019F181H - # &
FAEHRTR12ME A8
KEHEEAEHEER
i

o RYLRFEM B EGIRT5A
BHIERA - AFtEE AR

s fHAHMBEERIKRILHE
HHEERE - ERERT
AEEHEOFH -

REBTNEETEMNERIMA
EREHaNETRLEEHE
gk HIBERABARI N
AR AEEFBREERELES
FHERZEN TR KRR R4 PTE
WRhEELEREaHE -

(i)

Practical expedients applied (Cont'd)

o accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January
2019 as short-term leases

o excluding initial direct costs for the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application, and

o using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before the
transition date the Group relied on its assessment made
applying HKAS 17 and Interpretation 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.
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PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

2 EAXSHBEHEBE @)

21 REEE(H)
2.1.1 SFBERREKESENEE (&)

(i)

(iii)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont'd)

HEEENTE (i)  Measurement of lease liabilities
2019%F
2019
AR¥TR
RMB’000
R2018F 12 A31THIER Operating lease commitments disclosed as at
T R 31 December 2018 6,989
AR ER B EEEAN Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
HEBHFEEITAR rate of at the date of initial application 6,322
CR) : IMEGEEEER AR  (Less): short-term leases recognised on a straight-line
FEHEE basis as expense (126)
OR) - IREREELEER (Less): low-value leases recognised on a straight-line
FAXMEEBERE basis as expense (15)
A2019F1 81 AIAMNBEEEE Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 6,181
Hrep Of which are:
mEHERE Current lease liabilities 2,268
EnBHEAE Non-current lease liabilities 3,913
6,181
(AR ENE (iii)  Measurement of right-of-use assets

HEFEAREEENREERAE
BEMNSELE - WHER2018
F12A31 B EF BN RER
HEEBEMETMBEMRESHEE
NRORIEETAHE - WEES
MIES QS ZKE A ER
HEAMEREEEETTRAE -

The associated right-of-use assets were measured at
the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments

relating to that leases recognised in the financial position

as at 31 December 2018. There were no onerous lease
contracts that would have required an adjustment to the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFEZ For the year ended 31 December 2019

2 BEASHBREME @ 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
21 REEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
211 EFBEREESENES (8) 2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont'd)
(iii) FEAREENTIZ (HF) (iii)  Measurement of right-of-use assets (Cont'd)
EHRNERAEEELENLTSA The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following
BEERB type of assets:
2019%12H31H 20191A81H
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
ARETR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EFRBEA Buildings and parking lots 11,427 11,754
(iv) HR2019F1F1AEEEE (iv) Adjustments recognised in the balance sheet
KB EE on 1 January 2019
M2019F 1818 » St EE® The change in accounting policy affected the following
PYHTBREERBREEXP NIIE items in the balance sheet on 1 January 2019:
B :
. EREEE-EZEMAR . right-of-use assets — increase by RMB 11,754,000

#11,754,0007C

. FENFRIE-RDARE . prepayments — decrease by RMB5,573,000
5,573,0007T

. MEEESE - EMNA . current lease liabilities — increase by
R#2,268,0007T RMB2,268,000

. FEmBEEAE N . non-current lease liabilities — increase by
A #E3,913,0007T RMB3,913,000

W E2019F1A1ENREA There is no impact on retained earnings as at 1 January

MELZE - 2019.

(v) HHEAARNSFTEE (v)  Lessor accounting

RERM BRI B E EAE 1658 The Group did not need to make any adjustments to

& RNEBBEARBELEHEE the accounting for assets held as lessor under operating

EREBEAREEEN G EE leases as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16.

TR FREE
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2.2
2.2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Subsidiaries
Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Business combinations under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
consolidated financial statement items of the entities or
businesses in which the common control combination occurs as
if they had been consolidated from the date when the entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in consideration for
goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination, to the
extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income include
the results of each of the combining entities or businesses
from the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of
the common control combination.
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2 BERETBERBE (1) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

22 HEAR (&) 2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

2.2.1 &6 (@) 2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont'd)
REZEH T HFEBEEO (8) Business combinations under common control (Cont'd)
ZEEERAS —MEITHE - 50 E A uniform set of accounting polices is adopted by those entities.
BREBCHOMEEBABRS - 4 All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
BRRR S HIAREB IR AL TH - on transactions between combining entities or businesses are

eliminated.
FEHEIZES T HIFEHEE O Business combinations not under common control
N6 B £ A WS DA 6 3 FE 2 HE R4 il Y The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
EBAMAR o WE—KM B QRS business combinations not under common control. The
FEHREBRAEESE  HWKEIHN consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
AEAEENBERASEEITHR fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
AERNAREE - MEENRERE former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
SIARBLHMEENTANEERERE the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value
WARBE - EXEBEHFAKEN of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
AHAEENREENBERIAE arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
B VU EERKNEESEN AR EE contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
FTE e measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
AN 68 AR 1R 3 TE Ui B ERE SR TR The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
i 77 B I IE AR I M 5 - %ﬁ”&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’l acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
IR EERTRSMAEER - 02 interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
BEARLXNDEERE ﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁé@ and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
B EAnBEIREAEEERESG net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair
W AR EEFECERSEN value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
LEBIEHE o SRS ATE il the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
EEHREE RN A EBEE K All other components of non-controlling interests are measured
BBV BMELERERUS —FHER at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
A5t E o basis is required by HKFRS.
W B AR AN EE R R SE 4 o Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
WEBE O DB RHEST - WIET R If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
R 7 IR A R e i B BRRR (A acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously held
RWEABMOARBEENNE %= equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
AT EEENEMRASEER B =R at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
R e re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.2
2.2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
Consolidation (Cont'd)

Business combinations not under common control
(Cont'd)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform to the Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transaction with non-controlling interests that do not result
in loss of control are accounted for as equity transaction —
that is, as transactions with the owner of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners, The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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2.2
2.2.1

2.2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
Consolidation (Cont'd)
Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2.3

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"),
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive and non-executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency’).
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group's presentation
currency.

The consolidated

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where
items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised within “Other losses — net” in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

IR RS EE AR 2T S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
20194 % 2019 Annual Report

F-149



PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFEZ For the year ended 31 December 2019

2 BERETBERBE (1) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)
25 Y¥E BERRE 2.5 Property, plant and equipment
M BB RERBERELKARITES Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
R BEKABEREEMEEE BEEE depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
fagsolab-a attributable to the acquisition of the items.
18 B8 PR AN {2 11 B15% 78 B MR 89 R SR 48 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
MR gee R ANEE Rgen] SEHET recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
EHEBEBKAMNBRLT T AE probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
ENREEAEXERABIMEE (W0#E will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
g) o ARSI ABEEEENTMI DR reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for
AEREREER - 1A EMLEE LR as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
BRAREEEANRS MG AER - repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
Tﬁ%ﬂ REMGFAEAEA (0T) AR Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
HEREBERADBEAFISREER allocate their cost to their residual values, over their estimated
ﬁ : useful lives as follows:
fhata  EEHER Estimated Estimated net
EREH HEE useful lives residual value
BF 304F 4% Buildings 30 years 4%
B 104F 4% Transportation equipment 10 years 4%
BFHRE 54 4% Electronic equipment 5 years 4%
H fth #E 8% 54 4% Other machines 5 years 4%
RERERK  ESEENFREERN The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
AEREE - WELEERFE - adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
MREEMNRAESREMGTRES An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
B OAERBEENREEMRZEA recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
e - its estimated recoverable amount.

BB W AR E 18 T8 th B A5 SR IA B Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
REBEET  TREEE2ERKRARA proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other
[EfhE518 — F5 ] MR - losses — net’ in the consolidated statements of comprehensive

income.
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2.6

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments.

Licences

Separately acquired licences are shown at historical
cost. Licenses acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. They have
a finite useful life (10 years) and are subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

Computer Software

Acquired software licences are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives (5 to 10 years).
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2.7

2.8
2.8.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

Debt instruments

i) to be measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income;

i) to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit
or loss; and
iii) to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.
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2.8
2.8.1

2.8.2

2.8.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Classification (Cont'd)
Equity instruments

i) to be measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income; and

ii) to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit
or loss.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held. For investments
in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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2.8
2.8.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Measurement (Cont'd)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.

o Fair value through OCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair
value through OCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income and recognised in ‘other gains
- net’. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method.

o Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet
the criteria for amortised cost or financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net in ‘other gains — net’ in the period in which it arises.
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2.8
2.8.3

2.9

2.10

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Measurement (Cont'd)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCl, there is
no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in ‘other income’ when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in ‘other gains — net’ as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statements of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with
amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through OCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1.2 details

its debt instrument carried at

how the Group determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables.
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2 BERETBERBE (1) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (cont'd)
210 £REERE (&) 2.10 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
FE UG BB 77 MR & Ko H M E WG IB AR Deposits and other receivables due from related parties, are
REAEREERR  Hit HRER considered to have low credit risk, and thus the impairment
BB BEERA2ME ATEEEE - provision recognised during the period was limited to 12 months
expected losses.
FrEFEE S AN BB IEM T - A For other receivables other than those from related parties, the
AV ERERENEEERE L Group adopted a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
ROREERRA [ =& ) 3 - BEmmT - changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised
below:
L4 Ilﬂﬁ\ﬁ/\%ﬂﬁAﬁgu/bXE‘J{D/\/W{EE?
ERREBESER[F1R] - mA . The receivable is not credit-impaired on initial recognition
SEREERAEERR - is classified in “Stage 1” and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group.
. MR EEREEBEERBR A
fRIZ 0 - A% 5 E WK e | 8B . If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
B FE22H] B RERBEER recognition is identified, the receivables is moved to
(ERC “Stage 2" but is not yet deemed to be credit impaired.
. MEWRBELIBEERE % . If the receivables is credit-impaired, the financial
BT RES [E34] - instrument is then moved to “Stage 3.
1£&E’JF’§W RIERTEH(E E BB Receivables in Stage 1 have their expected credit loss measured
CFEEREARRI2ME A N A e AR at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
EZ’J$1¢FEE’JWMTMHHH?EHWZT losses that result from default events possible within the next 12
EIENZIEN ST - ERFE23EIRN months. Instruments in Stage 2 or 3 have their expected credit
TAMEHEEEBEANE  DIREEHE loss measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime
EXRERAENBHEEBIESE - basis.
ENEEHEEERER  FEEgEE When measuring expected credit loss, the Group considers
ATIEEER - forward-looking information.
2.11 FE& 2.11 Inventories
FERKARIZEFEMENERESE Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
PIER o pRATIIRE AL L EBE « AT& value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
REFBEACHEEKBREPNMGHIHE method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
B MEREEERY - the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.
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2.12

2.13

2.14

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and banks,
deposits held at call with financial institutions and other
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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2.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the
tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.
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2.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)
Deferred income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

(i)

(ii)

2.17 Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group only operate defined contribution pension
plans. In accordance with the rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC based employees of the Group participate
in various defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group and
the PRC based employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a percentage
of the employees’ salaries. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired PRC based
employees’ payable under the plans described above.
Other than the monthly contributions, the Group has
no further obligation for the payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of its employees. The
assets of these plans are held separately from those of
the Group in independently administrated funds managed
by the governments.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement scheme are expensed as incurred.

Housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurance
plan. The Group contributes on a monthly basis to these
funds based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to certain ceiling. The Group’s liability
in respect of these funds is limited to the contributions
payable in each year. Contributions to the housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurances are
expensed as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

(iii)

(iv)

2.17 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 and involves the payment of terminations benefits.
In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to present
value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2.18

2.19

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefit is provided to employees via
the Share Option Scheme. Information relating to the scheme is
set out in note 28.

The fair value of options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is recognised as an employee benefits expense with
a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

- including any market performance conditions (eg the
entity’s share price)

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (eg profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period), and

- including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (eg
the requirement for employees to save or hold shares for
a specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any,
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.
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2.19

2.20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Provisions (Cont'd)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

The Group provides property management services, property
developer-related services, community-related services and smart
community services (formerly known as “professional services”).
Revenue from providing services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered. The following is a
description of the accounting policy for the principal revenue
streams of the Group:

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed
amount for each month of service provided and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed.

For property management services income from properties
managed under lump sum basis, where the Group acts as
principal and is primarily responsible for providing the property
management services to the property owners, the Group
recognises the fee received or receivable from property owners
as its revenue and all related property management costs as
its cost of service. For property management services income
from properties managed under commission basis, the Group
recognises the commission, which is calculated by certain
percentage of the total property management fee received or
receivable from the property units, as its revenue for arranging
and monitoring the services as provided by other suppliers to the
property owners.
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2.20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Property developer related services include mainly i) on-site
sales assistance services, which includes cleaning and
maintenance services to property developers, which are billed
and settled monthly based on actual level of services provided
at pre-determined price and revenue is recognised when such
services are provided; ii) property delivery related and other
consulting services, which are fixed amount contract with
property developers and are billed and settled on a monthly basis
and revenue is recognised when the services are provided; and
iii) commission income for sale of car parks, which are billed to
property developers on a monthly basis and were recognised on
a net basis when the car parks were delivered to the customers.

Community related services include mainly i) Commission income
from information services is recognised on a net basis when the
service provided; ii) Revenue from merchandise sales from the
online platform is recognised when the Group sells products to
the customers. iii) Revenue from public resources management
services, which is recognised on a net basis over the time when
such services are rendered; iv) Revenue from other community
convenience services are charged for each services provided and
recognised when the relevant services are rendered. Community
related services are normally billable immediately upon the
services are provided.
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2.20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Smart community services mainly include engineering and
maintenance services of elevator and intelligent security
equipment. Revenue from smart community services are
recognised when the contracts have been approved and the
services are rendered. Revenue from smart community services
recognised over a period of time are based on the stage
of completion of such service, which is determined by the
proportion of costs incurred to the estimated total costs. As
at the balance sheet date, the Group reassesses the stage of
completion so as to better reflect the changes in obligation
performance. Revenue is recognised by the stage of completion
of the construction services. Trade receivables are recognised
when the Group has an unconditional right to payment. For the
remaining part of the services, a contract asset is recognised. The
Group recognises the loss provision using the expected credit
loss model for its trade receivables and contract assets. If the
payments received or receivable exceed the services rendered,
a contract liability is recognised for the excess. Contract assets
and contract liabilities under the same contract are presented
on a net basis. Smart community services are normally billable
immediate upon the delivery of the services.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services, the transaction
price will be allocated to each performance obligation based
on their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the standard-alone
selling prices are not directly observable, they are estimated
based on expected cost plus a margin or adjusted market
assessment approach, depending on the availability of observable
information.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the statements of financial position
as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group's performance and the
customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in exchange
for services that the Group has transferred to a customer.
Incremental costs incurred to obtain a contact, if recoverable, are
capitalized and presented as assets and subsequently amortised
when the related revenue is recognised.

IR RS EE AR 2T S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
20194 % 2019 Annual Report

F-165



PR RaR Myt

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFEZ For the year ended 31 December 2019

2 EASHHBEHEBE @) 2

W AR ()

HWEPXNREIANEEHRESEHE
BEGAEN  AIRAEEREFPEE
ARA AT - AN BB R ERT RYK
HIER (AREERE)  BANENA
BHEE - ANBERAEERBAEH
EREFKIKE (KRESEH) &
RBERTEFPOE

2.20 2.20

EAKERAEES BRI ENE  8
BREWKKIE - MREXNEHAERE
e - AIE RO RER BRI -

sRER
(i) EREZXEF

FREABFNIIRIALTIEE &
FARER/L  AREES AEIER
B (T ek EEBRIMN T
ERRNE) RAMBEEAD
BITELBRINETIIE IHRF
NEBTEAEKR (TEEEFR
0) MBHIZEE -

2.21 2.21

TR #EREF

ShREERNBERNEE Sk
EARFIMBT - UHE  FIE
O 15 B4 B R BB A I
#IRIRH BB RAR A - R
AR R T R A B AR
RIS AE BTHESN K BRI
FiH -

(i)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the
Group transfers services to the customer, the Group presents the
contract as a contract liability when the payment is received or
a receivable is recorded (whichever is earlier). A contract liability
is the Group’s obligation to transfer services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional
right to consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: the
profit attributable to owners of the company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

(ii)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account: the after income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares, and the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.
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2.22

2.23

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash management
purposes. Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

Leases

As explained in note 2.1 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The
new policy is described below and the impact of the change in
note 2.1.1.

Until 31 December 2018, leases of property, plant and
equipment where the Group, as lessee, had substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership were classified as finance leases.
Finance leases were capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, were included in other short-term and
long-term payables. Each lease payment was allocated between
the liability and finance cost. The finance cost was charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases was depreciated over the asset’s useful life
or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term
if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term.
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2 BERETBERBE (1) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
223 #HE (&) 2.23 Leases (Cont'd)

W T 2 4B KNS B FN Bl 3R A 62 5 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards

EAREE (ERFAEAN) 2HEDERK of ownership were not transferred to the Group as lessee were

EHE - BEBEGEREED 2R (30 classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating

BREMEEAAERZER) REAEE leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were

NEEREEBRTR - charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period

of the lease.

H2019F 1 A1HE - HERRAFEAE From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use

BAE WEHEEEHAEEGSRZ asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the

HiERHEERE - leased asset is available for use by the Group.

SHF B HERIEREEKMH Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.

REEZBHESE RIEHEEHK 0D ERE The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to

MEER  BEHARESEZHER the lease and non-lease components based on their relative

FEFRE LA E D o stand-alone prices.

HEEENEERBGEYLREEREE Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured

R HEARBREUNTHENRAR on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present

BEFE - value of the following lease payments:

. EE MR (BREEEEE M) . fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
R {A] YR & 52 less any lease incentives receivable

. ARG BT R ey Al #HE R . variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
o PAFE B EAE A B X rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
MEEtE commencement date

. FIspEEERTHASEETEHE . amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
0E residual value guarantees

. KEENTEES (WAKES . the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
B TEEITEZERN) - & reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

. TREEHENSR (HHEEE . payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
AR ARE B TEZER]) o lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

RESERTEERERIGNHEER Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension

MM ABEFEZA © options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2.23

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leases (Cont'd)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third party financing,
and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,
currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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2.23

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Leases (Cont'd)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the

following:
o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability
o any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date less any lease incentives received

. any initial direct costs, and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings
that are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the
Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of
office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor
is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position based on their
nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the
accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the
new leasing standard.
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2.24

2.25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (contd)

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of
the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants related to assets refer to government grants
which are obtained by the Group for the purposes of purchase,
construction or acquisition of the long-term assets. Government
grants related to income refer to the government grants other
than those related to assets.

Government grants related to assets are either deducted against
the carrying amount of the assets, or recorded as deferred
income and recognised in profit or loss on a systemic basis over
the useful lives of the assets. Government grants related to
income that compensate the future costs, expenses or losses are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss, or
deducted against related costs, expenses or losses in reporting
the related expenses; government grants related to income
that compensate the incurred costs, expenses or losses are
recognised in profit or loss, or deducted against related costs,
expenses or losses directly in current period. The Group applies
the presentation method consistently to the similar government
grants in the financial statements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.
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3 HBEREBREE @ 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 MBEBEE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.1 TR 3.1.1 Market risk

(i)  SNEREEE (i)  Foreign exchange risk
REERFENEREDEEE The Group is engaged in the provision of property
AR %% M ARRBISERTS - T A management services and related value-added services
RELANREFHE - 2B F in the PRC with almost all the transactions denominated
BES (BEBERAREE) T in RMB, except for proceeds from certain financing
JRBEIHAET ([Bx]) 3k activities, including the initial public offering, which are
gt (IZE]) 5HE » H =2019F denominated in Hong Kong Dollar ("HKD") or United
12A318 » REBKIAHEER States Dollar ("USD"). As of 31 December 2019, majority
BENARESE HETHES of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
LAB LS ETTRHE - RMB except that certain cash is denominated in HKD or
usD.
ZAN/NCIDN @S ) =N FEoRP) L 2 The Company and all of its subsidiaries’ functional
BER®ABARE - Bt - LUETEK currency is RMB. Accordingly, cash denominated in HKD
EILFHEMIR S ERIMNERR - or USD is subject to foreign exchange risk. Fluctuations
BT RETEARE®E KK in the exchange rates of HKD and USD against RMB
B BREENLEER - A% will affect the Group’s result of operations. The Group
BB AT EmANE S ORI o A currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
i B R E ) BS P SN [EL B However, management closely monitors the foreign
RN ERFEREITE) © exchange exposure and will take actions when necessary.
MR2019F12A318 > W AR As at 31 December 2019, if RMB had strengthened/
RABTTFHE/BRE10% WA weakened by 10%, against HKD with all other variables
BEMASAZESIE  £F held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
BREVEFBEAE T EAARE been RMB23,387,000 (2018: RMB55,760,000) lower/
23,387,0007T (20184 : AR higher, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gains/
55,760,0007T) * F ZA KK E losses on translation of HKD denominated bank deposits.
LA TCETE B SR1T 17 FH) 3 N E
Wz EEATE »
M2019F12A31H - A AR As at 31 December 2019, if RMB had strengthened/
RETHEEE10% WA weakened by 10%, against USD with all other variables
EEMASAREFIE  FF held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
BREEFBE TR, EAAR been RMB13,960,000 (2018: RMB116,000) lower/higher,
#13,960,0007C (2018%F : AR mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gains/losses on
#116,00070) - EZHABRE translation of USD denominated bank deposits.
EITEHERIRITE A FINE U
&=/ FEIBRTE
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3.1
3.1.1

BEERER &)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

MBEREE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
HiEEE (&) 3.1.1 Market risk (Cont'd)
(i)  1EEE R (i) Price risk
AR AEEFRFREEGE B The Group is exposed to price risk arising from
AR ANE D BRIR QA EBER investments held by the Group and classified on the
AEAM2EmBA (M 5E19) Riz consolidated statements of financial position as FVOCI
AR EEFAEE (ME20) (Note 19) and FVPL (Note 20).
MANEBEAZERER -
In the opinion of the directors, the Group's exposure to
BEERA  AEERHEKERE price risk with regard to its investments is not significant
ZHERRRILTEKX - HEAR since it is the Group’s policy not to invest significant
SEFTAERE - TEFEHEAE amounts that might have a detrimental impact to
B B S AR A BEER NI E R the Group’s financial results. All investments must be
EREE  TEREALESS approved by the Chairman of the Board before they may
FREHAEB T PIHETT o be entered into.
TEREREHMEENA R BEEY The following table summarises the impact of increase/
m/ R EER R a2 E R A decrease of fair value of the financial assets with all
P2 EhBREMEEMER other variable held constant on net profit and other
R - comprehensive income.
#F Hitg2mEEA
Net profit ocl
BZ12A318LLEE
Year ended 31 December
20194 20184 20194 20184
2019 2018 2019 2018
AR¥TRT ARKETIT AR%®TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
— F#A5% — 5 percent higher 13,921 - 66 66
— T#5% - 5 percent lower (13,921) - (66) (66)
(i) FIEEpz (iii) Interest rate risk

20194 201812 A31H » K
SEY &AM EBE  AmMi
WA EAFIRER

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group has no
interest bearing liabilities and hence are not subject to
significant interest rate risk.
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3 WHERRERE @) 3
3.1 B¥EREREZE (&) 3.1
3.1.2 ERR 3.1.2

AEBEEZRKHIA  ReEMEME
WHIBEARRE MRS EEYHRES
Bk - B5RKFIR - e REMEK
PR Re MRS FEVHNREERR
AEEEHNEREENZSEERR

(i) WITE=Z
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RITREAMARE ETWIRTT > &
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REE °

(i) EBZRRNEREHNEE

AEBRBEFTBUHEHRELENZE
9% BV AR TE FE A Ly 77 SUAHIE
BHEEERRME  ZERIAFF
MEESBRKKERANEE
BRI B A S KB AT i 4A
o RETEFEHMEEER B
UFIAREHNEECRARBE
ERBFRBRAEMASOE - B
HEEEBERITRBARMBIEESR -

(iii)  FEWEEB S 22 REMHE

AEETER - BREER ZS
REMPKIERENEERREK
KFE - RRARASMBHIZESH R
BRHBEMRIER—REENE
W BEXEEM I HERENE
MEAREENR S RAE - B
It HIRRER R R E BRI 12
EATERIER - HERERE
BT 1R e REAMFIBN %ER

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables; and cash and cash
equivalents. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables; and cash and cash equivalents represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

(i) Cash in banks

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash deposits at banks since they are
substantially deposited at state-owned banks and other
medium or large size listed banks. Management does
not expect that there will be any significant losses from
non-performance by these counterparties.

(ii)  Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for all trade receivables and contract assets. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract
assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit
loss also incorporate forward looking information.

(iii) Deposits and other receivables due from
related parties

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with
deposits and other receivables due from related parties
to be low, since the majority of the deposits is due
from government authorities as pledge for the ordinary
business and related parties have a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term. Thus, the impairment provision recognised during
the period was limited to 12 months expected losses,
which was 1% allowance rate for deposits and other
receivables due from related parties.
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3.1
3.1.2
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BEABRER (4)
EERR (#)

(iv)
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EaE )
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont’d)

(iv)

Other receivables other than those from
related parties

The Group has large number of counter parties for its
other receivables other than those from related parties.
There was no concentration of credit risk. The Group has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverability of these receivables at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition.
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BRRERER @& 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
B EEE (8) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
3.1.2 FEAR (&) 3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(iv) EMEWKRZE (FTE#FKE (iv) Other receivables other than those from
BB ) (1) related parties (Cont'd)
B EEEBEX IR ARTIE Forward-looking information incorporated in the expected
ERL o credit loss model.

The Group has performed historical analysis and
identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit loss. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating
o external credit rating
o actual or expected significant adverse changes in

business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of individual property owner or
the borrower

o significant increases in credit risk on other
financial instruments of the individual property
owner or the same borrower

J significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers in the Group
and changes in the operating results of the
borrower.
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3 BREREE @ 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 H#¥ERBREZE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
3.1.2 FERR (&) 3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)
20194 N2018F12A31H @ EiE % As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the loss allowance provision
BREETNT - was determined as follows.
72019%12A31H #2018 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
AR®TT ARKET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
TEHA B8 TEHA agi]
EEEx  REAE EERE EiEER RELE  EHRRE
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected  carrying allowance  Expected carrying  allowance
loss rate amount provision loss rate amount  provision
5 ERRE
Trade receivables
A Related parties 1% 165,481 1,655 1% 49,762 498
1R Within 1 year 5% 81,318 4,066 5% 59,311 2,953
18224 1 to 2 years 43% 26,175 11,253 36% 23,132 8,219
2E3F 2 to 3 years 62% 12,143 7,514 54% 13,588 7,336
3E4F 3 to 4 years 75% 7,763 5,846 67% 5,563 3,730
4E5F 4 10 5 years 92% 2,754 2,533 89% 4,515 4,017
HBiE5F Over 5 years 100% 8,296 8,296 100% 10,657 10,657
303,930 41,163 166,528 37,410
BHEE Contract assets
Bl Related parties 1% 132,140 1,321 - -

BANE  RERAMERRE (FEERARERE FHIRAEEZER)

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and input VAT to be deducted)

bl Deposits 1% 29,586 296 1% 20,861 209
H fth JE W R IE Other receivables
1R Within | year 5% 21,798 1,090 3% 38,815 1,296
15224 1 to 2 years 43% 12,061 5,185 36% 6,782 2,410
2E34F 2 to 3 years 62% 4,349 2,691 54% 2,520 1,361
3E44F 3 to 4 years 75% 2,260 1,702 67% 2,457 1,647
455 4 to 5 years 92% 1,253 1,152 89% 656 582
HRIBSE Over 5 years 100% 768 768 100% 129 129
72,075 12,884 72,220 7,634
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3 HXRKRER
3.1

3.1.2 ERR (&)

MBEBEER (E)

(&) 3
3.1

3.1.2

20194 M2018F12A31H A HE
E B REMENRRE (TEEEN

FOR ~ BRAF

B AL TR

EFIRER) OERERRERENE
BEBRENASET

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the loss allowance provision
for contract assets, trade and other receivables (excluding

prepayments, receivables from payment platform and input VAT
to be deducted) reconciles to the opening loss allowance for that
provision as follows:

BARE  BER

H At fE k8
(REFERATE
BEZE R# TR AEE
BHERE ARNEERE BED) BE Hat
Allowance for
prepayments,
deposits and
other receivables
(excluding
Allowance Allowance prepayments
for trade for contract and input VAT
receivables assets to be deducted) Total
AR% TR AR%ETR AR¥ TR AR% TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2019%1818 At 1 January 2019 37,410 - 7,634 45,044
REEA2ERAR Provision for loss allowance
BREEE recognised in consolidated
EHEE statement of comprehensive
income 3,753 1,321 5,250 10,324
R2019%12H31H At 31 December 2019 41,163 1,321 12,884 55,368
R2018F1H1H At 1 January 2018 27,165 - 5,543 32,708
REEAEERAR Provision for loss allowance
ERHEE recognised in consolidated
EHRE statement of comprehensive
income 10,245 - 2,091 12,336
72018 12H31H At 31 December 2018 37,410 - 7,634 45,044
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HZE2019F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

3.1
3.1.2

3.1.3

BEERER &)
BERARREE (9)
EERE (5)

2019 12A831H - B S E W KIE
BREERAMERZIE (MR IEEN
RIERA&S TR EEEER MR
M 4 E & A R ¥508,145,0007T (2018

F12A318: A R 238,748,000
) AEEBENSRSRRAARE

452,777,0007T (201812 A31H : A
R #193,704,0007T) °

nREBETERE

EREBEGEERRARENRE MRS EE
Y SCRBRBNACRESREST
BORE  BERBIES kel
AHELENEBEESENK -

TREINAEERNEEE R RAHEDH
HRDBENEBMAEE - TRARENS
BERAOARMBARSARE - ARITEDN
FEIK BHERGEREIZEAAR
MM ESREERERPBHRRRADN
fREE -

3.1
3.1.2

3.1.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2019, the gross carrying amount of
trade receivables, contract assets and other receivables
(excluding prepayments and input VAT to be deducted) was
RMB508,145,000 (31 December 2018: RMB238,748,000)
and the maximum exposure to loss was RMB452,777,000 (31
December 2018: RMB193,704,000).

Liquidity risk

Management aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents or have available funding through an adequate
amount of available financing, including loans from related
parties to meet its daily operation working capital requirements.

The table below set out the Group’s financial liabilities by
relevant maturity grouping at each balance sheet date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months from the balance
sheet date equal to their carrying amounts in the statements of
financial position, as the impact of discount is not significant.

SR—%F —EWE @it
Less than Between
1year 1and2years Total
ARBTT AR®TT AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
#2019%12A31A As at 31 December 2019
B REMMBENMFIE* Trade and other payables* 607,089 - 607,089
HEaE Lease liabilities 3,827 4,010 7,837
st Total 610,916 4,010 614,926
A2018%F12H31H As at 31 December 2018
B LEMMBENMFIE* Trade and other payables* 315,435 - 315,435
* TeEETHe R MEMTESECRAs * Excluding non-financial liabilities of accrued payroll and other taxes payable
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BMBEREE @)

AXEE
AEENAREREEREFERNE
BEMEEN  RTAKBARKER
REMFHERENE  LRFIDEN
BRI R A AP -

RTHEFRARENEE  AEEAE
EHBARRINOKRESE - BITH
P fn sk i & B B AR AMETS -

AEBNERBBLEREREZEEE
o R EIZFRERANBERE -
FRERAARRRERREFEY
8o MENREAMBIRART RN
[tz | INFREFHE -

20194 M2018F12A31H A& E
BRI Ak -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for owners and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debt less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated
statements of financial position plus net debt.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group maintained at
net cash position.
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HZE2019F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

3 BRKRER (#) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 AREBEEMER 3.3  Fair value estimation
(i) DNAEEER (i) Fair value hierarchy

AE R EE N B REAE R
FEERMFTENESRITANR
FERELOHE LG - BT
HEEAFEMABEAENSE
MR AEER S ERISRE
BEERTASERA=EER

TRHASER

This section explains the judgements and estimates made
in determining the fair values of the financial instruments
that are recognised and measured at fair value in the

financial statements. To provide an indication about the

reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value,

the Group has classified its financial instruments into the

three levels prescribed under the accounting standards.

An explanation of each level follows underneath the

table.
£ )=} £ZE @zt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bt zE ARETT AR¥Tr AR%Tn ARETx
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEMAREEFE  Recurring fair value
measurements
RW2019F12A31H At 31 December 2019
SREE Financial assets
ErLmEF Listed bonds denominated
in US Dollars 20 138,412 - - 138,412
ERER Trust products 20 - - 140,000 140,000
FETRAES Un-listed equity securities 19 - - 1,660 1,660
CREERE Total Financial assets 138,412 - 141,660 280,072
F—FE E-B - &at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Btz ARETT ARETT ARETT AR%Tx
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEEMARBEGE  Recurring fair value
measurements
R2018F12A31H At 31 December 2018
SREE Financial assets
ELmRAES Un-listed equity securities 19 - - 1,660 1,660
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BEERER &)
ARBEGE (5)

(i)

RAEEER (F)

RER - BRAEHIED R BIEH B
M F—F E-EUARE=
8 2 Rt A -

AEBENBRENRE PRER
ARBEREZENBEARSE
& oo

BB RERMBLEENTH
THWHAHAEENTATA
AEBAAEBEFALGLEZE
WARBZZFHAENEF R TR
BE) MR BERBRBRSHR
MMSREIIE - AEEFHS
TREENTERESEHER
B ZFETRIAEFE -

BB WIHERERMHEER
SRTE (PIaBINTBHTET
B)MAREBERBHEERNE
T HERTEEFMBEATERT
LEE B2 ORBEIEOETE
st e MEtE—2MI AN AR
BEAENAMEEAEAATE
RYE - BRIAEINAEE -

HEE MR ZFEEREA
WIEREATEIR TS EIE - A%
TEVNWAE=E - ZERKBEAR
JE TR A S o

R2019%F M2018%F12831H » &
EE R IE IR E F LT
RPEME BREHAE - F
it WEZFEMAREZER
ABEEFENERTITERGA
BEME(EEE -

3
3.3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)

There were no transfers among levels 1, level 2 and level
3 for recurring fair value measurements during the year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of
the reporting period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
trading and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income) is based on quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments are included in
level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s unlisted
equity securities were all valued using recent transaction
price without adjustment. Accordingly, no quantitative
information about significant unobservable inputs used in
the fair value measured of Level 3 was presented.
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3 BRKRER (#)
3.3 AREEMEH (8

(i)

(iii)

EHEAT ABERAE
BHIAREE (F=E)

TR Z2HEZE2019F12A318
2018512 A318 LI E =

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3  Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

(ii)  Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
items for the periods ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018:

¥
ERER  REES At
Unlisted
Trust equity
products  securities Total

ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000

M2018F1 A 1A KERHD Opening balance as at 1 January 2018

EEH T N2018F12831H and closing balance as at

MEIR &R 31 December 2018 - 1,660 1,660
Log: Acquisitions 140,000 - 140,000
M2019512A31A IR EE: Closing balance as at 31 December 2019 140,000 1,660 141,660

e EBAER 2 EEE

(iii)  Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

R (E=ZE) (Level 3)
BABEHE TIREBAER
it AREE FIREBAE (RT BN — MAEF1) AREENER
Range of inputs Relationship of
Un-observable  (probability-weighted unobservable inputs
Description Fair value at inputs average) to fair value
20195 20185
12A31H 12A31H 20195 20184
31Dec 2019 31 Dec 2018 2019 2018
ARETRT ARETR ARBTRL ARETRT
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EREm ig:op HREHE  AnEEVE
Trust products Discount rate The high the discount rate,
140,000 - 8%-9% - the lower of fair value
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BRKRER (#) 3
NREEMG (8) 3.3

(iv) 12EBRE

RE B 5 ER A — [EIR M 53
ERREIFYEAEBETHED
B BRE=-EAAEE &
BRERREFENEE REZER
BEER - HERBENWRE
RHERFEMHE FERLZEGH
HEEKS2E =08 XEA—
R BAEEFFRER B -

BEEVBE BERZESHMAE
EX 2 8L F R EEN S -
TRERERARIME_EBRE
“BRrEBENED - (FRHW
B —&btn - ZEEIRE — 3

BERGRAE RAE 4

AEBHRREL G RBR - EH
A RERRIEARAEBERS
R-UATRETEAVBRFENEERE
BEREENEAFRBEREARRNMGE
R BERA L -

(a) FEWRIRESE

AE BRI EE QR R LIRS
BRI AE H AT IR L -
AEBREREMRRIELBE
FESe - RETOR R AT M EHEE
HEBRRLERRETENER
ANEFRE B A -

MRBHERNEHEER B
HEEBYERRAFEERE
B E 5 K H At R IR F A LA R R
RS HMEREE - BBEAM
RETREABNFE 28X
Bff5E3.1.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
(iv)  Valuation process

The finance department of the Group includes a team
that performs the valuation of non-property items
required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3
fair value. This team reports directly to the chief financial
officer (CFO) and the audit committee (AC). Discussion
of valuation processes and results are held between the
CFO, AC and the valuation team at least once every six
months, in line with the Group’s half-yearly reporting
periods.

Changes in level 2 and 3 fair value are analysed at the
end of each reporting period during the half-yearly
valuation discussion between the CFO, AC and the
valuation team. As part of this discussion, the team
presents a report that explains the reason for the fair
value movements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Allowance on doubtful receivables

The Group makes allowances on receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group used judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the periods in which such estimate has been
changed. For details of the key assumption and inputs
used, see Note 3.1.2 above.
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4 EREHEFTRHAE @

(b)

(c)

BV HA BESE PR S B

AEBAETBRBREEME
B EHEEMBABRBBERA
NIRRT IR MBI ES - ZAfEH A
B - EHEEBBRED  FEX
HEAENERBHBEEFED
AR E - EEAEENREH
BERRASZYCHENTETR
AFHERS ey BFLARE
TE HA [ B9 T 15 A B IR T A IR B
o

EEEBRR/ARRERGH B
EEERFRERAERERERN
MEBRE BRILETE
R RRERERNELTHEAR
&= BERERAERTENR -

TRTENDAEE

THEERMSERINERITEADN
AR BERBBEEETE - A&E
BREEAERESZRE X
TZERZHERHRT SRR
EHRER - FREANERRR
RZERREHNZENFAE
B F2HEE33 -

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(b)

(c)

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in
the PRC. Judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing
of payment of the related taxations. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period. For details of the key assumptions used and
the impact of changes to these assumptions see
note 3.3.
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2 EHER
EEEREBEETELERKEMBHNR
STEELENH  TERLERKERH
TRIFNTESR  AREHERERKFMAE
BED BRI ©

HE2019F12A8318ILFE - AEEE
DHREPENERMEDESERS LIEE
k7% - BIEWEREEILERE T
HERBEEEERRY - SEEBZ
BHEBIEA—ALEL T - BRHELE
24 UREROA D ENEHRSE -
b AREIMEBEERKERBER
—{E 7] B R 1 RS 2 8D o

AEBNEELCETEHIUNFRE - i)
AREBREZE2019F12A31HIEFERN
EERAG R E HE o

2019512 A318 K2018F12A318 © &
EENFBIERBEEHMRTE -

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by CODM. The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segment, has been identified as the executive and
non-executive directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group was principally
engaged in the provision of property management services
and value-added services, including property developer-related
services, community-related services and smart community
services in the PRC. Management reviews the operating results
of the business as one operating segment to make decisions
about resources to be allocated. Therefore, the CODM of the
Company regards that there is only one segment which is used
to make strategic decisions.

The principal operating entity of the Group is domiciled in the
PRC. Accordingly, all of the Group’s revenue was derived in the
PRC during the year ended 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, all of the
non-current assets of the Group were located in the PRC.
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HZE2019F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

6 WARSEER R K2 6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES
WAFEBREMESIERSG ML ERG Revenue mainly comprises of proceeds from property
B8 1E o & £20194F %2018412 A management services and value-added services. An analysis of
NAIEEE - AEERIRERE S A the Group’s revenue and cost of sales by category for the years
RIMERKRADITWOT - ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows:
BZ12A318LEE
For the year ended 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
ARBTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HER HE &
WA BR 75 5% 2~ WA AR 75 A A<
Cost of Cost of
sales and sales and
Revenue services Revenue services
(feE7)
(Restated)
REEFLIER—E& Revenue from customers
RFREAERHKA and recognised over time:
Y E R IRT Property management Services 848,955 606,612 732,025 528,522
1SEARFS - Value added services:
— MR R ERK — Property developer-related
services 647,748 467,320 296,746 221,028
— f[@I%(E ARG — Community-related services 56,760 591 47,890 8,772
— EEHERK - Smart community services 351,230 287,316 96,727 70,044

1,904,693 1,361,839 1,173,388 828,366

REEFEFIIZR—ERRE Revenue from customers

BB A recognised at a point in time
I EARTS - Value added services:
— R IEERT — Community-related services 119,333 62,308 - -
2,024,026 1,424,147 1,173,388 828,366
HZE2019F K2018F 12 A31HIEFE - For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, revenue from
R RIEIR AR R IE I B 88 R xR 5 R entities controlled by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder
e ErERBECEEFNEA and joint ventures and associates of the Ultimate Controlling
1l A S B Uk A #950.32% K32.73% ° B Shareholder contributed 50.32% and 32.73% of the Group’s
B AP AR IR TR ) 0 BB e S AR R AR R revenue, respectively. Other than entities controlled by the
RWEErERBE RN KEBEE Ultimate Controlling Shareholder and joint ventures and
EXRERF - AREZE2019F %2018%5F associates of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder, the Group
NRANBLEFEREANE S EMASE had a large number of customers and none of whom contributed
E10%3 A EMURA - 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31

December 2019 and 2018.
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6

WAREERRBEEA (@)

(a)

(b)

HEFENEBNEER
afE
AEBERRBUATREFEOE
MWEENAE

6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (cont'd)

(a)

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers

The Group had recognised the following assets and
liabilities related to contracts with customers:

®W12H31H
As at 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
AREBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(&E5)
(Restated)
HEREERERESEENAQOEE Contract assets relating to smart
community services 132,140 -
EE G Loss allowance (1,321) -
EHEEBEE Total contract assets 130,819 -
BHBE Contract liabilities 390,342 248,764
EHEEREBNERES (b) Significant change in contract assets and

AEENEHNEETBZRBENE
1% B B E (B IR & A KB R
Z AR E R - AEE TR
BEET B WE LR FEOWHER
BHREBENRERE £—T&
B2 RME3.1.2

AEEMNEHNABRIEELRR
P XA REMKIE - MRS
HARRE - EEAGEEMTHR
RERBEBIB R -

liabilities

Contract assets of the Group mainly arise from provision
of profession services ahead of the agreed payment
schedules for fixed-price contracts. The Group also
recognised a loss allowance for contract assets in
accordance with HKFRS 9, see note 3.1.2 for further
information.

Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from
the advance payments made by customers while the
underlying services are yet to be provided. Such liabilities
increased as a result of the growth of the Group’s
business.
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6

WAREERRBEEA (@)
(0 RANEBEEIHWA

TRETRARERRERNEE

6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (Cont'd)

(c) Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue

AHBEMIRA - recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities:
BZ12A31BLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
2019%F 2018%F
2019 2018
AR®T R ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(flmE7)
(Restated)
EHRIARAPREDEE Revenue recognised that was
EREBEHRHBHG included in the contract liabilities
balance at the beginning of the year
L7 ES=SENEC Property management services 200,172 149,275
W) 5 5 B P AR A AR 7 Property developer-related services - 2,425
[ A0 B AR 75 Community-related services 20,382 10,840
220,554 162,540
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6 WAREERBRBRE 2

(d)

(e)

ABITHENER

SRMEEIER - MEREEA
BMIREEEERABREMS @ &
SEBAUEFEATEENE
BEAZEFROWA (ANEAEE
HERRBONEFPEEERY
EHEHE) - AEBEEEEUT
KEZERVNANNERENE
T ERERBREESERH - K
MOMEEERBAORMER
7 AR A AR 7% L R B TE HARR © 4t
[ AR B RS HIR — R Y F 712
ABASHAEETBHEERS
By s

REEZEEERBME - NEHHE
RKRRBITHBEHNEBAARE
22,063,0007T ° A A& ETE
TFHETEEREONFE/EERZ
AR E SR GNEEAM
#hne AHBENRHARIEERR
BIENFETER R BEEOE
BIEANFTER ©

BEESEHMHIERAER
HEE

REZE20195F12 8310 IEFE -
WM IESRBITAE L ML
RIE AN « B I T R A A

6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (cont'd)

(d)

(e)

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For property management services, property
developer-related services and community-related
services, the Group recognises revenue in the amount
that equals to the right to invoice which correspond
directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s
performance to date, on a monthly or quarterly basis.
The Group has elected the practical expedient for
not to disclose the remaining performance obligation
for these types of contracts. The majority of the
property management services contracts and property
developer-related services do not have a fixed term. The
term of the contracts for community — related services
is generally set to expire when the counterparties notify
several months in advance the Group that the services
are no longer required.

For smart community services, there is unsatisfied
performance obligation of RMB22,063,000 at the end
of respective periods. Contract assets have increased
as the Group has provided more services ahead of the
agreed payment schedules for fixed-price contracts.
Contract liabilities was due to the negotiation of larger
prepayments and an increase in overall contract activity.

Assets recognised from incremental costs to
obtain a contract

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
significant incremental costs to obtain or fulfil a contract,
and accordingly no asset was recognised.
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7 BEHEESWER 7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

HZ12831HLLEE
For the year
ended 31 December

20195 20184
2019 2018
AR%Tr ARBTTT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
(&E5)
(Restated)
EERMER (M) Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) 587,848 359,145
INBARE ~ B RIBIRR AR Outsourced security, greening
and cleaning costs 552,600 411,405
BERE RS Kt 2 A RS Raw material and components
FFr R R A1 e 4B 1 used in smart community services and
community-related services 368,736 81,338
UNEE 31 Utilities 49,672 35,742
=S Professional fees 12,949 30,844
1% LFhFEY Including: Listing expenses - 29,428
== Office expenses 23,778 12,036
ERE Travelling expenses 23,787 11,857
g &K e Taxes and surcharges 13,373 9,602
ITRFHE R EES R IT system development and maintenance
expenses - 760
WENEEER Depreciation and amortisation charges 9,784 3,277
ETRNEBER Employee uniform and related expenses 7,283 6,961
¥XBHREE Business entertainment expenses 6,320 5,713
RITFEE Bank charges 5,446 4,855
SR & Auditor’s remuneration 2,580 2,200
1% - B Including: Audit services 2,480 2,110
1% FEZRF Including: Non-audit services 100 90
LR RER K Operating leases payments 137 2,684
EENEEEA Advertising & Promotion expenses 1,171 1,383
H A, Others 3,923 3,206
1,669,387 983,008

HEEMBRERNALTZEFETREMNE

Cost of sales and services include mainly employee benefit

B SNBRE -~ SR ROB IR A R B expenses, outsourced security, greening and cleaning costs,
2 B[R IR Rt [ A8 B8 AR A% A A R A1 6L utilities and raw material and components used in smart
R o community services and community-related services.
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8 EEENER

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

HZ12831HLLEE
For the year
ended 31 December

20195 20184

2019 2018

AR%TR ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’'000

(gE5)

(Restated)

TE& - e kicsl Wages, salaries and bonuses 462,837 267,013
BT EENESNERE Share options granted to directors and

(F3E28) employees (note 28) 8,211 -

RIRERA Pension costs 45,596 33,417
FEAES BERBRR Housing funds, medical insurances and

H it &R other social insurances 46,638 32,739

HifEEEF Other employee benefits 24,566 25,976

587,848 359,145

AEENTENBARIEER

pilfzzp:u)

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to

7B B R S B FUE KA E -
752 [ 6 B B B X B T0 4R 4 7 T U
REMNEEFHEE TED LA EH
o AR BRIRER o

Bk Lt EHRSN - AEE B E R R
ZEHERENERRENNRNERE
£ -

participate in a defined contribution scheme administrated and
operated by the local municipal government. The Group’s PRC
subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated on certain
percentages of the employee salary as agreed by the local
municipal government to the scheme to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond the
annual contributions described above.
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8 EERANER®

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Cont'd)

() IHuEEFMAL (a) Five highest paid individuals
# £20194F &2018%F12A31H The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
IEFE - AEBEH A5 H in the Group include 1 and 2 directors for the year
ATDRBE - RMUES ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 respectively, whose
B E 0 F M2 &5 R FE37F emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in note
TZDIA - REZE2019F & 37. The emoluments payable to the remaining 4 and 3
2018F12A31ALLFE - EH individuals respectively for the year ended 31 December
BIAE IR & = (A AT 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
T
BZ12831BLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR®T R ARBEFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
e Salaries 4,247 2,029
TE4T Bonus 5,003 1,021
B A Share options 2,258 -
FEAES - BERRREEM Housing fund, medical insurances and
ttERE other social insurances 352 289
11,860 3,339
ZEFWEAT 2 HHER : The emoluments fell within the following bands:
AE
BZE12A31HLEE

Number of individuals
For the year
ended 31 December

20194 20184
2019 2018

SHIEE (LAOBTED) Emolument bands (in HK dollar)
1,000,001/8%7C% 2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 2 3
2,000,001/87C%£ 5,000,000/ 7T HK$2,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 2 -
4 3
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9 Hagg A 9 OTHER INCOME

HZ12831HLLEE
For the year
ended 31 December

20195 20184
2019 2018
AR%TR AR¥EFTTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(#&E5))
(Restated)
FEIZAREBEFAEZNEEEE Interest income from financial assets at
F B A fair value through profit or loss 15,450 -
BRAT B (BEE) Government grants (Note) 8,874 10,832
HAh Others 1,792 454
26,116 11,286
ST BT Bh = 2R E M BT & M hn Note: The government grants mainly represented tax refunds
TR BYR T - from local government without attached conditions.
10 HMER 10 OTHER EXPENSES
BZ12831HLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR%TR ARBEFTTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(#&E5))
(Restated)
MEEELHNEINGE Compensation for casualties to property
owners 782 357
Hith Others 85 82
867 439
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11 Hitzs — F8 11  OTHER GAINS - NET
BZ12A31HLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR%TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(gE5)
(Restated)
FE 5 Uz % 58 Net foreign exchange gains 1,586 18,451
BARBEFTAEZNSFEER  Net fair value gains on financial assets at
A EEWEFERE fair value through profit or loss 4,128 -
HEME MERRENEIEFEE  Net loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (5) (42)
5,709 18,409
12 BBRAREA 12 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS
BZ12A31BLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
2019%F 20184
2019 2018
AR®T T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&%)
(Restated)
Re RBESZEMONEMHA Interest income on cash and
cash equivalents 17,118 6,168
HEaERM EAFIE R Interest and finance charges
MEER paid/payable for lease liabilities (400) -
BIFSUR A — JF5a Finance income — net 16,718 6,168
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13 HEBAF

7N 52 [E 720194 2018512 A31H 8
=N

13 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group's subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are set

MEAEEHINT out below:
HMRL /B
WRARAR BERAH BRARARRE  ARERRAAERER  FEREZFRAGEER IEEH/OEuE
Place and date Ownership Ownership interest
Names of the of incorporation/ Issued and interest held by held by non-controlling  Principal activities/place
subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital the Group interests of operation
12A318 12A318
31 December 31 December
2019% 20185 2019% 20188
2019 2018 2019 2018
FERIEFERAT AERLES ARAT ET 100.00%  100.00% - - BRAR
Chief Global Enterprise Limited 2018517230 UsDI Holding Company
British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
23 January 2018
BEMIRERARAR BERRRA AT 10000%  100.00% - - BRAT
Hong Kong Xinchengyue 018%1A318 HKD1 Holding Company
Development Limited Hong Kong, limited
liability company
31 January 2018
TR ERERAT hAENERAA 3000000057 100.00%  100.00% - - RE
Jiangsu Xinchengyue Holdings REREZEONE UsD30,000,000 Investment
Company Limited Btk
2018527138
Changzhou, the PRC,
limited liability company
wholly foreign owned
enterprise under PRC law
13 February 2018
FHEREERABRAT HEAENERAA ARE12929299  99.00%  99.00% 1.00% 1.00% ERFENRAE
Xincheng Fuyue Management RETE ARSI RMB129,292,929 Management consultation and
Consulting Co., Limited 2ERELE Investment
2014512118

Changzhou, the PRC,
limited liability company
sino-foreign equity joint
venture under PRC law
11 December 2014
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13

B8 X B () 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
HMEL/BL
WRARAR BERAH BEARARRA  ARERREAEER  FERESFRAAEER IEED/OEuE
Place and date Ownership Ownership interest
Names of the of incorporation/ Issued and interest held by held by non-controlling  Principal activities/place
subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital the Group interests of operation
12318 12318
31 December 31 December
20195 2018 20195 2018
2019 2018 2019 2018
IHEEEHIRARAT HEENERAA ARE100000000  93.72%  93.72% 6.28% 6.28%  HERHE  PEEN
Jiangsu Dashun Elevator Co., Ltd. 2012%5A318 RMB10,000,000 Maintenance services,
Changzhou, the PRC, Changzhou, the PRC
limited liahility company
31 May 2012
EMTTRNEERERAR hEENERAA ARBS000000  9372%  9372% 6.28% 6.28% HEEERE FEFN
Changzhou Pingan Property 199959728 RIMB500,000 Property management services,
Management Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, Changzhou, the PRC
limited liability company
2 September 1999
IMERNERBERLA (MER]) +RARMERAR AEHB000,000T  9372%  93.72% 6.28% 6.28%  WEEE AN
Hangzhou Wan Yue Property 199941 A5H RIMBS,000,000 Property management
Management Co., Ltd. Hangzhou, the PRC, Hangzhou, the PRC
(“Hangzhou Wan Yue") limited liability company
5 January 1999
BINFEESANERAT hERNERAA AE®10000000  9372%  93.72% 6.28% 6.28%  HHRLREE REFN
Changzhou Xincheng Information 201459A308 RMB1,000,000 Software development and
Technology Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, maintenance, Changzhou,
limited liability company the PRC
30 September 2014
FERRNZREERAT hEENERA ARE10000000  9372%  93.72% 6.28% 6.28% MEERRH AN
Suzhou Xinchengyue Property services 20183 /12 RMB1,000,000 Property management services.
Co., Ltd. Suzhou, the PRC, limited Suzhou, the PRC
liability company
12 March 2018
TR EREERAA hESNERAA AEES00000T  9BM%  BN% 6.28% 6.28%  HEEERE  PEEN
Erzhou Xinchengyue Property services 201854 A258 RMB500,000 Property management services.

Co., Ltd,

Erzhou, the PRC, limited
liability company
25 April 2018

Suzhou, the PRC
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13 MEBRAF @

13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

HMEL/BL
WRARAR BERAH BEARARRA  ARERREAEER  FERESFRAAEER IEED/OEuE
Place and date Ownership Ownership interest
Names of the of incorporation/ Issued and interest held by held by non-controlling  Principal activities/place
subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital the Group interests of operation
12318 128318
31 December 31 December
20195 2018 20195 2018
2019 2018 2019 2018
EEARNZRERNERLR (B +ARMERLA ARE1200000000  BI%  BN% 6.28% 6.28%  MEEERE REXAT
o) 199643258 (142015 RMB120,000,000 Property management services,
Tibet Xinchengyue Property Management  £E2 Fi)) Cities across the PRC
Co., Ltd. ( “Tibet Xinchengyue") Changzhou, the PRC,
limited liability company
25 March 199
(moved to Tibet in 2015)
LETEENRREARAR hE LEERAA ARE100000000  972%  93.72% 6.28% 628% NEEEREK TELE
Shanghai Xin Cheng Wan Jia Property 20035117278 RMB10,000,000 Property management services,
Management Co., Ltd. Shanghai, the PRC, Shanghai, the PRC
limited liability company
27 November 2003
THERRRPREROA (MRIEN  +ERNERLA ARE100000000  9.72%  93.72% 6.28% 6.28%  TiMRH HEARN
MEERHZHTEARAA) 2014835198 RMB10,000,000 Engineering services,
Jiangsu Ruohong Intelligent Technology ~ Changzhou, the PRC, Changzhou, the PRC
Co., Ltd. (Formerly known as” Limited liability company
Changzhou Wanrui Intelligent System 19 March 2014
Engineering Co., Ltd.")
HBENES S ERAT hE LEERAA ARE100000000  93.72%  93.72% 6.28% 6.28%  TiRR% - HELE
Shanghai Shuyuan Information 2017518198 RMB10,000,000 Engineering services, Shanghai,
Technology Co., Ltd Shanghai, the PRC, the PRC
Limited liability company
19 January 2017
Changzhou Park Inteligent Technology ~ FEEMARAE AR2000000T  9BI2%  9372% 6.28% 6.28%  THME - A&
Co., Ltd. 201756858 RMB2,000,000 Engineering services,

Changzhou, the PRC,
Limited liability company
5 June 2017

Changzhou, the PRC
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13

g PNCIRES

13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

HMRL /B
WRARAR BERAS BEARARRA  ARERREAEER  FERESFRAAEER IEED/OEuE
Place and date Ownership Ownership interest
Names of the of incorporation/ Issued and interest held by held by non-controlling  Principal activities/place
subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital the Group interests of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
2019% 20185 20198 2018%
2019 2018 2019 2018
BT ERNRREARAA RARMERAR ARE1,000000T  65.60% - 3440% - DRERRS rERY
Yancheng Youyue Property Management 201911 A138 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Co., ltd, Changzhou, the PRC Yancheng, the PRC
Limited liability company
13 November 2019
TRERNEERERAT hEARERAR ARE1000000m  47.79% - A% - WEEERE aETE
Henan Xinyue Property Management 2019697278 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Co., Ltd. Henan, the PRC, Henan, the PRC
Limited liability company
27 September 2019
BRZRENERHEERAT hERRERAR ARE1,000000m  47.79% - A% - DREERE vEAR
Rizhao Anyueju Property Management 20198318 RMB1,000,000 Property management services,
Co., Ltd. Rizhao, the PRC, Rizhao, the PRC
Limited liability company
1 August 2019
(a) ARBRZEMB AR R HEAEEELBEER (a) The Company has direct or indirect equity interests in these subsidiaries
W MZEHEARNEMKTEAR S EE which have direct or indirect equity interests in the other subsidiaries.
SRERE -  ZEMBARNREBELZESH These subsidiaries were incorporated in British Virgin Islands or Hong Kong
BBFMKL - RFAIEEMHBRERFER and all the other subsidiaries were established in mainland China. All the
KL o FTEMBARIREREIAR © subsidiaries are limited liabilities companies.
(b) FENBLEEBEZMAL,/ AT B (b) All the subsidiaries are operating principally in their place of incorporation
= establishment.
(a] BAFHRABEREIN  BEFE  BEMELR () Save for disclosed in this annual report, none of the subsidiaries had issued

RIR BT AR ES -

any debt securities at the end of the year.
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13

g NCINE)) 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
BEEAFERMEEEN —BHNE Summarised financial information on the subsidiary
AR HHERBE with material non-controlling interests
TXERINEAERMEBEEBEAMIE Set out below are the summarised financial information for the
22 1R A 7 9 B BB 8 B PR AR IR R A subsidiary, Tibet Xinchengyue and its subsidiaries, which has
MEARMMEEREE non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.
BB REE Summarised statements of financial position
MA12H31H
As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR®T T ARBFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
(&EY))
(Restated)
T ED Current
BE Assets 1,665,484 940,287
BafE Liabilities (1,180,097) (651,810)
BREEEFRE Total current net assets 485,387 288,477
FERED Non-current
BE Assets 147,596 54,685
BE Liabilities (4,267) (1,050)
AEFHE Net assets 628,716 342,112
et IEE R R Accumulated non-controlling interests 33,511 18,235
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13 MBAT ) 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
BEEEARFERUEEZN—BHRE Summarised financial information on the subsidiary
NAINEHEERRE (8) with material non-controlling interests (Cont'd)
PEHBAZBE Summarised statements of comprehensive income

BZE12A318LLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
AR¥T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(#&E5))
(Restated)
WA Revenue 2,024,026 1,173,388
FRFHE Profit for the year 389,997 213,284
Friafiem Income tax expense (76,451) (43,232)
FEETE N Total comprehensive income 313,546 170,052
DR E IR R S A ) E Profit allocated to non-controlling interests 16,712 9,064
[ FEFE A1 7 2 S AT D AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests = -
BeRnEXRHE Summarised statements of cash flows
BZE12A3MBLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
AR¥T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(geE5)
(Restated)
Net cash generated from
KL EHELENIR TR operating activities 555,525 205,598
Net cash (used in)/generated from
WESES (FA),/ EEBLF5E investing activities (138,176) 3,961
REEEFTAAIR S B Net cash used in financing activities (26,942) (129,137)
B RRESEEBYLINESE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 390,407 80,422
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
FYMHRe MRS EFED of year 700,691 620,269
EXRMNBELLESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,091,098 700,691
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14 FREHER 14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
BZ12831BLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
AR¥T T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(#&=E75))
(Restated)
BUERPR1S 7 Current income tax
— PR SR — PRC corporate income tax 97,507 50,655
EIEFTER (HE31) Deferred income tax (Note 31)
— FEEMSER — PRC corporate income tax (7.370) (2,265)
90,137 48,390
(a) HEHEFMSESH (a) Cayman Island income tax
RARBARBERASARZERFASESHE The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as
MR EREERAR - Bt - B8 an exempted company with limited liability under the
RS RFSMETN - Companies Law of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is

exempted from Cayman Islands income tax.

(b) BEREFEH (b) Hong Kong profit tax
AR A EEREE2019F EFE T EE No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the
IZAFMEBEENSH AW A - B3 &5 Group did not derive any income subject to Hong Kong
EBMEBRAE (20184 : &) - profits tax during the year ended 2019(2018: nil).
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14 PFEHEA @

(c)

B AT

AEBBPEABOLEELD
FISHB @ C IRIBRITAR -
BB ATATL S A ERTLA
HEEANEGHE -

TR ET I E RIS D BRA A
(BT BIR]) R2015F12 4
17 B8 B rE Ak S b BEAE 5 B
AFAEE  ERAAENEERE
BEH)— 301D 220204 | H 7R
BEFRA15%MEZRHE - R
ISR PESEEETOA
Al o RIBBBEBREERRER
REBBBEHABMARR LA
BN RABINERBRA BTG
TERR - ERBAWARNS0% S
BERmEAAR mMAREAQR
BIZ15% TR BN ER - &
RBBRABTS0% P EED R
B MDD ARAER25% T EY
WMETISH - BBUERMFEHME
MK E20% °

RB(hEARKMBEEEMS
BOEY(TRERBHELD - B
AL P8 B OA [2 PA S AR B R
ERNERBNECEMSHBRER
25% °

14

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

(c)

PRC corporate income tax

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in Mainland China has been calculated at the
applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits for
the year, based on the existing legislation, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.

Tibet Xinchengyue Property Services Co., Ltd. (“Tibet
Xinchengyue"”) applied a preferential tax rate of 15%
until 2020 for its head office in Tibet as part of the
Western Region Development strategy after it changed
its place of incorporation from Changzhou to Tibet on
17 December 2015. Tibet Xinchengyue has a number
of branches across China. According to the relevant
tax laws and regulations, the Group files its income tax
return by combining the taxable income of head office in
Tibet and all of its branches with 50% of the aggregate
taxable income apportion to the head office in Tibet
which is subject to income tax rate of 15% and the
remaining 50% among the branches which are subject to
income tax rate of 25%, resulting in an average of 20%
applicable income tax rate.

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the entities
located in Mainland China out of Tibet Autonomous
Region is 25% according to the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the PRC (“the CIT Law").
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14 PFEHEA @

(d)

TXHEIKER RS ZEBRAR
B AT AE R BB R R E S

FISHBE AMEHER

14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

(d)  The reconciliation from income tax calculated based on

the applicable tax rates and total profit presented in the

consolidated statements of comprehensive income to the
income tax expenses is listed below:

BZ12A31BLEE
For the year

ended 31 December

20195 20184
2019 2018
AR¥T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&%)
(Restated)
B AR5 25 Al A1 Profit before income tax 391,991 213,468
RBRATEMEREE25% Tax calculated at applicable corporate
EAFE income tax rate of 25% 97,998 53,367
AT ZIEF UL - Tax effects of:
—HREmMS AR ER - Expenses not deductible for taxation
(BHEEG)) purposes (Note (i) 1,599 6,860
— R A AR R R E — Different tax rate applied in
Tibet companies (18,016) (9,834)
— KR AEEFTSTHEEN - Deductible tax losses and temporary
AR IE E 18 & AT differences not recognised for
Eoii= oy deferred income tax assets 35 91
— HRFTISTR I =8 — Effect on deferred income tax assets
BYHIELESHEER due to change of income tax rates
F2 (MEEG)) (Note (ii)) - (970)
— BERBUIA — Income not subject to tax (179) (4,613)
— FREIFENE (B EEGiD)) - PRC withholding tax(Note (iii)) 8,782 4,646
— Eitp - Others (82) (1,157)
90,137 48,390
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14 FMBHEA @

(d) &)
fE -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

HPEGE T RERTIA
REmMEHOXH (X2
BRELTEE BRI
RFE) -

B 75 B = A O BT
S8 (RmE R Em
WEMIRE S FTISHHE
) H# - # =2018%12A
31AILEFE - ARAE
RS H A ENER
eI ER20% ©

EMEBERAEER
AR EREERMEM
2008F1TATBRREEH
BF| - mEPEAINE
BERDAIREHRSAE
BM10%E FEH B -
7200851 A 1R Al & £
R IRR A A E R R
MZFEMB - BIEFR
BEBTIOBRBEHH
T BEEERBRAR
RILRES - AIEAR
EHS%TEMBB X - &
Z2019%12A318 I F
B AKERATHREE
D A FIIR10%
MR R R BEEMH
& 5 A R 18,782,000
T (2018%F : A R ¥
4,646,0007T) ©

14

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

(d)

(Cont'd)

Note: (i)
(i)
(iii)

The Group recorded certain expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes, which mainly include entertainment
expenses not eligible for tax deduction.

With the expiration of the exemption of income tax
for local retention of income tax attribute to the local
tax bureau generated from head office in Tibet, the
applicable income tax rate the Company calculated
the deferred income tax assets for the year ended 31
December 2018 is 20%

The CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a
withholding tax at 10% for dividends distributed by
a PRC-resident enterprise to its immediate holding
company outside PRC for earnings generated beginning
1 January 2008 and undistributed earnings generated
prior to 1 January 2008 are exempted from such
withholding tax. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may
be applied when the immediate holding companies are
established in Hong Kong according to the tax treaty
arrangement between the PRC and Hong Kong. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Group accrued for
PRC withholding tax with amount of RMB8,782,000
(2018: RMB4,646,000) based on the tax rate of 10% on
a portion of the earnings generated by its PRC entities.
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15 ARXATEBEAEBEESRER

(a) BREXER

FRABREABNIIRA R AIE
= ARG AN 5 B A B RR A S
W T E B INE T 8G

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

(a) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share for the year is calculated by
dividing the profit of the Group attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number

R of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
BZ12A31BLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
(fe=7)
(Restated)
BF Earnings:
ATEFRERBFFTAD Profit attributable to owners of the
RARGER AEEFE Company used in the basic earnings
(AREEFIT) per share calculation (RMB'000) 282,011 152,154
RGHA : Number of shares:
HEERNFROBITLEEIRY  Weighted average number of ordinary
IEFHE (LATFED) shares in issue during the year per
share calculation (in thousand) 819,028 632,164
FRNARATIEB AFEIEFEE  Basic earnings per share for profit
FGIREARRET (LAAREF|IR)  attributable to the owners
of the Company during the year
(expressed in RMB) 0.34 0.24
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15

KRAHEEAEBEERER

(%)
(b) BREFERR

S BRI B BT
SN B AR T 8 B LA B 25
B BT AR E -
ARG — I AR
BARE - B BRE SR A
A -

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares. The Company has one category of
dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. The
share options are assumed to have been converted into
ordinary shares.

BZ12A31HLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
€=7))
(Restated)

A

B EREERNATAN
NAFHEE AT
(ARETT)

REHA :

HAEFERERE®RT
ELBAR A AR I8 (BATF &)

o EERE (JATEH)

Earnings:
Profit attributable to owners of the

Company used in the diluted earnings

per share calculation (RMB’000) 282,011 152,154
Number of shares:
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year per

share calculation (in thousand) 819,028 632,164
Add: share options (in thousand) 1,535 -

ERTEBRNEEEE
ERilEohil:Resl
RYEFTE R EER N
A& (LAF5ED)

FARRREA AEIEFEN
FREERN AAREDIR)

Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue and potential ordinary

shares used as the denominator in

calculating diluted earnings per share

(in thousand) 820,563 632,164
Diluted earnings per share for profit

attributable to the owners of the

Company during the year (expressed

in RMB) 0.34 0.24
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16 ¥ HBWERRKXEUKRFER 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

EEE RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
() Y% BERRE (a) Property, plant and equipment
BT BRRE ETRE RftieE @
Transportation Electronic Other
Buildings equipment equipment machines Total
ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
M2019€1518 (BE5)) As at 1 January 2019 (Restated)
KA Cost 3,408 1,092 9,089 1,575 15,164
iR Accumulated depreciation (614) (330) (4.947) (884) (6.775)
REFE (KES) Net book amount (Restated) 2,79% 762 4,142 691 8,389
BZ220196128310LEE For the year ended
31 December 2019
ENEREE Opening net book amount 2,79 762 4,142 691 8,389
NE Additions - 101 2,245 435 2,781
Eily Deduction - ) (138) (5) (145)
NEEH Depreciation charge (115) (103) (1,616) (239) (2,073)
EXREFE Closing net book amount 2,679 758 4,633 882 8,952
R2019E12831A As at 31 December 2019
KA Cost 3,408 1,189 11,012 2,002 17,611
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (729) (431) (6,379) (1,120) (8,659)
REFE Net book amount 2,679 758 4,633 882 8,952
W2018E1518 (BE5)) As at 1 January 2018 (Restated)
KA Cost 10,910 1,053 7,493 1,506 20,962
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (499) (232) (3,826) (762) (5,319)
REE (KE5) Net book amount (Restated) 10,411 821 3,667 744 15,643
BE18512A31ALLEE For the year ended
31 December 2018
ENEAFE Opening net book amount 10,411 821 3,667 744 15,643
RE Additions - 43 1,733 280 2,056
PERE Cancellation of additions (7,502) - - - (7,502)
by Deduction - 3) (12) (146) (161)
nEER Depreciation charge (115) (99) (1,246) (187) (1,647)
ERKEFE (8E5)) Closing net book amount
(Restated) 2,794 762 4,142 691 8,389
R2018512531R (BE3) As at 31 December 2018
(Restated)
A Cost 3,408 1,002 9,089 1575 15,164
2itE Accumulated depreciation (614) (330) (4,947) (884) (6,775)
REFE (£23) Net book amount (Restated) 2,79 762 4142 691 8,389
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16 VE BEERIRBUAREH
BEE @)

(a) W% BERRHE (&)
FEERFTAREZEBARIA

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont'd)

(@) Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Depreciation expenses were charged to the following

TR - categories in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income:
BZ12A31BLLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20195 2018%F
2019 2018
AR®EF T ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&=5)
(Restated)
SHE R ARFE AR Cost of sales and services 801 661
THEHR Administrative expenses 1,272 986
2,073 1,647
(b) HE (b) Leases
AHTEHI (A &£ | a A A B This note provides information for leases where the
EER o Group is a lessee.

(i) REBRREERERL

(i) Amounts recognised in the statement of

21E financial position
Bt 74857 2 51 L T AR The statement of financial position shows the
EEEH T - following amounts relating to leases:
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR®TF T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets
EFREBEA Buildings and parking lot 11,427 -
Heas Lease liabilities
Ve Current 3,827 _
FEmED Non-current 3,873 _
7,700 -
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16 YXE BEERRKBURER 16
BEE @)

(b) #HE @)
(i) REERAZERL

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont'd)

(b) Leases (Cont'd)

(ii)  Amounts recognised in the statement of

A comprehensive income
ZEUWAFE AT EE The statement of comprehensive income shows
EBBHFE the following amounts relating to leases:
BZ12A31ALEE
For the year
ended 31 December
2019% 20185
2019 2018
i3 ARET R ARBETFL
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
ERESENEER Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
BFREMN Buildings and parking lot 7 3,387 -
MERZ (B ABBRAR)  Interest expense (included in finance cost) 12 400 -
HENEEEENER Expense relating to short-term leases (included
(BEAHERRHBAAR in cost of sales and services and administrative
RITHER) expenses) 7 1" _
BAR XTI BEBHEEN Expense relating to leases of low-value assets
EEELEREAENER  that are not shown above as short-term leases
(BFATTHER) (included in administrative expenses) 7 126 -

2019 HENRESTHAERAR
#3,781,0007T °

The total cash outflow for leases in 2019 was RMB3,781,000.
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17

BEEE 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
TERE S R HE a3t
Computer
software Licenses Goodwill Total
ARETR AR¥TR AREFT AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
R2019F1818 (KE35) As at 1 January 2019
(Restated)
AR Cost 6,559 84 6,585 13,228
REHEE Accumulated amortisation (1,180) (17) = (1,197)
REFE (LE7) Net book amount (Restated) 5,379 67 6,585 12,031
BZ2019FE12A31BLLEE For the year ended
31 December 2019
FUEEFE Opening net book amount 5,379 67 6,585 12,031
NE Additions 542 - - 542
45 Amortisation (914) (8) - (922)
FREEFE Closing net book amount 5,007 59 6,585 11,651
2019128310 As at 31 December 2019
A Cost 7,101 84 6,585 13,770
R Accumulated amortisation (2,094) (25) = (2,119)
REFE Net book amount 5,007 59 6,585 11,651
R2018F 1810 (KE5) As at 1 January 2018
(Restated)
A Cost 4,886 84 6,585 11,555
ZEHEE Accumulated amortisation (749) (9) - (758)
REHE (LE7) Net book amount (Restated) 4,137 75 6,585 10,797
BZ2018F 128310 LEE For the year ended
31 December 2018
FOREFE Opening net book amount 4,137 75 6,585 10,797
NE Additions 1,673 - - 1,673
i3 Amortisation (431) (8) - (439)
FREEFE (KF5)) Closing net book amount
(Restated) 5,379 67 6,585 12,031
R2018%F12A318 (L&) As at 31 December 2018
(Restated)
AR Cost 6,559 84 6,585 13,228
ZEHEE Accumulated amortisation (1,180) (17) - (1,197)
REFE (LE5) Net book amount (Restated) 5,379 67 6,585 12,031
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17 EREE @) 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)
EREEEBHETAGEEZARARIA Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the
T consolidated statements of comprehensive income as follows:

BZ12A31BLEFE
For the year
ended 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
ARBTT ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
(F&=7)
(Restated)
1TERE A Administrative expenses 922 439
M2016F8H12H * AR E U AR On 12 August 2016, the Company completed its acquisition
3,000,0007T & X 18 55 B 3 1 M & 1R of 100% of the equity interests in Hangzhou Wan Yue (the
100% M A= B W EE (T HEL) - T “Acquisition”) at a consideration of RMB3,000,000. Total
MNEIRHAERBEIEEEAARE identifiable net liabilities of Hangzhou Wan Yue were amounted
3,584,9567T A Uk B A 3 B & & % E to RMB3,584,956. The excess of the consideration transferred
HERAELBA L BENSEEAE over the fair value of the identifiable net liabilities acquired is
B BT o A R#3 000 0005 & & recorded as good’W|I|. The conS|Ide.rat|on' of RMB3,000,000 was
PREATRNGS MPRobE a7 arleeh s wh e o b o
MM AR A A EEEE - yae o nang ppraREE i
TR EEER20194 K2018412 The following table sets forth each key assumption at 31
FA3MBREERSAETEIETHER December 2019 and 2018, on which management has based
BRSNS EFERE its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:
R12A318
As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
ARBTT AR¥EFTTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEZ1FHRAEE (FIBRE Revenue growth of the first year hereafter
BHL) (% annual growth rate) 0% 0%
HgE2FEFAFHRAER Revenue growth from the second year
(FHEEEO) to fourth year hereafter
(% annual growth rate) 2% 3%
FHE (FRAB D) Gross margin (% of revenue) 10 - 15% 10 - 15%
Tt Al B IR & Pre-tax discount rate 13.3% 13.3%
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17

A ﬂ:/ ﬁ E &)

M20194F N2018F12A31H » M INE
MO E£ES BIBEEAEARE
4,314,0007T & AR #3,700,0007T °

EREREERTERLEBHRNA
AL EE - B AT B
15040 B T (LB 4 5 T MG I 38 0 £ 1 36
o

WEREEAEMABRREMED &
BBCRLETRAEDE

17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018,
recoverable amount over the carrying amount of Hangzhou Wan
Yue were RMB4,314,000 and RMB3,700,000.

the excess of the

The management have considered and assessed reasonably
possible changes for other key assumptions and have not
identified any instances that could cause the carrying amount of
Hangzhou Wan Yue to exceed its recoverable amount.

Had the assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation been
changed, the headroom would have been decreased to the
amount as included in the following table:

M12A318

As at 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
ARBT T ARBT T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
g R E 5% Growth rate of revenue decreased by 5% 4,089 3,453
FEFETFES% Gross margin decreased by 5% 2,235 2,592
FRATRLIR X FFA5% Pre-tax discount rate increased by 5% 3,810 3,082

MM EBIRE AT Y E £ 58 5 00 K ARE
B HERERKESHOT

The recoverable amount of Hangzhou Wan Yue would equal
its carrying amount if the key assumptions were to change as
follows:

20195 2018%F

2019 2018
f# k| ft El
From To From To

W FRERR (FIRE Annual growth rate of revenue

Baoth) (% annual growth rate) 2.0 0.1 3.0 0.3
FEEENE(%) Budgeted gross margin (%) 10.0-15.0 8.9-13.4 10.0-15.0 8.3-12.4
TRRTARIR & (%) Pre-tax discount rate (%) 13.3 19.7 133 19.1

#H £2018%F N2019F12831H £ &8
RENEEIEEHETISEHREE -

L2E2019F12 A31 B ER A @
SR ARRESET  REZE2019F
1\ FE W R R E R R -

Reasonable possible changes in key assumptions would not lead
to impairment as of 31 December 2018 and 2019 respectively.

With reference to the recoverable amount assessed as at 31
December 2019, the directors of the Company determined that
there was no provision for impairment of goodwill for the year
ended 2019.
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18 ®REHETHWEMIAE 18
AEMBEGUATERMIA

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

®128318
As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR®T T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
(&%)
(Restated)
TRLEE Financial assets:
KA EN SR EE Financial assets at amortised cost
S e Trade receivables 23 262,767 129,118
TERRIA -~ e REM Prepayments, deposits and other
JEWRIE (B FETER A receivables (excluding prepayments
R T HIR M TR (E ) and input VAT to be deducted) 24 59,191 64,586
ReRIREZEY Cash and cash equivalents 25 1,339,092 1,281,269
RARBEFABERN Financial assets at fair value through
CREE profit or loss 20 278,412 -
BRARBESAEMEPEUWA  Financial assets at fair value through
WeREE other comprehensive income 1,660 1,660
1,941,122 1,476,633
®12831H
As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR®ETF T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(feE7)
(Restated)
TRtBE - Financial liabilities:
RS RS E R Financial liabilities
AR at amortised cost
BoNHEMEWHIE (B  Trade and other payables
i REMEMATIE) (excluding accrued payroll and
other tax payables) 30 607,719 323,908
HEaE Lease liabilities 16 7,700 -
615,419 323,908

AEEMEHMA3 It ESHTAEEH
M Z IR - RS R E A &R K(E
ERRA LA SBEREENRAE

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the financial
instruments is discussed in note 3.1. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying
amount of each class of financial assets mentioned above.
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19 BAAEBEITAEM4ZEK 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
ANECREE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE12A31HLEE
For the year
ended 31 December

20194 20184
2019 2018
AR%EFTR AREET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
(&=75)
(Restated)
M®1A18 As at 1 January 1,660 1,660
= Additions - _
M12A31H As at 31 December 1,660 1,660
PR20194F K2018F12B31HZ A A B Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
Bt AEMEZEHEANEREERE L income as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 represented equity
FEIMREAMER AR T RAHERIRE © investments in two unlisted companies in the PRC.
20 BAAEBHEFAEZNEE 20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
BE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(i) BRAOAEBEFTAEBZNESHE (i) Classification of financial assets at fair value
EENSE through profit or loss
MW12A31H
As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
ARET T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(#eE5)
(Restated)
MBEE Current assets 208,412 -
EMEEE Non-current assets 70,000 _
278,412 -
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20 BRAABEAEZNE®M 20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

BE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont'd)
(i) REZERNKIE (ii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss
RER - Tz (BE) ©» During the year, the following gains/(loss) were
BEAER recognised in profit or loss
BZ12A31BLEE

For the year
ended 31 December

20195 20184
2019 2018
ARBT T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(&=5)
(Restated)
AR BETAEBZD Fair value gains on financial instruments
SRITAN AR BERT at fair value through profit or loss 4,128 -
(i) RERHORAAEETE (iii) Risk exposure and fair value measurements
EBAAREEMEERMNERRRBY Information about the Group's exposure to price risk is
BERENHEI - BEET R A provided in Note 3. For information about the methods
BEAEANAELBRENE and assumptions used in determining fair value please
® - F2HMES refer to Note 3.
21 FEMNARE 21 PREPAYMENTS
M128318
As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR®BT R ARBFIT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
(sE5)
(Restated)
TS Prepaid rental fees = 5,573
AN FRIBHIER B E ) E EIEREEE Non-current portion of prepayments mainly represented prepaid
BEMEBEAEMNNEEER  HEH rental fees to the lessors for leasing of parking lots, normally
—MBB=ETF - with 3-10 years of term of lease.
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22

23

7 22 INVENTORIES
®12831H
As at 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&%)
(Restated)
SRS ERGH B - B Components, raw materials to be used in
value—added services 7,481 7,820
$HE S o Merchandise for sales 1,080 -
TR Spare parts 2,059 3,911
B Less: allowance for impairment = -
10,620 11,731
B ERRIE 23 TRADE RECEIVABLES
M12A31H8
As at 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(gE5)
(Restated)
2 ZEWRE (MiEE @) Trade receivables (Note (a))
— BAm 5 (MH3E36(d) — Related parties (Note 36(d)) 165,481 49,762
—%=F — Third parties 138,449 116,766
303,930 166,528
BB B RNGRIE R E R Less: allowance for impairment of
trade receivables (41,163) (37,410)
262,767 129,118

(@) EIZERUBEZIZREREHF (a)
ETEENMEEE RS RIEE
IR% - IREBRBIEITERNYE
EE R MATIRIZAERE Y 2
AR 755 195 2% LB © 36 3 IO HR (R AR 75
BT BB Y X E RS WK

A e

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management
services managed under lump sum basis and value-
added services. Property management services income
under lump sum basis are received in accordance with
the term of the relevant property service agreements.
Service income from property management services is

due for payment by the property owners upon rendering

of services.
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23 EBZEWFIER @ 23 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
M20194F K2018F12A3180 + E RN # As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the ageing analysis of the
ZEHNE HRRFIENERER ST trade receivables based on invoice date are as follows:
T~
®12A318
As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR¥TR ARBETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(#E5)
(Restated)
1F LA Within 1 year 246,799 109,073
122F 1 to 2 years 26,175 23,132
2E34F 2 to 3 years 12,143 13,588
3E4%F 3 to 4 years 7,763 5,563
4Z55F 4 to 5 years 2,754 4,515
S5EE Over 5 years 8,296 10,657
303,930 166,528
M20194F K2018F12H31H - B 5 & As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the trade receivables were
WHIBBAAREE  EZEKFEA denominated in RMB, and the fair value of trade receivables
nEEEEREERID - WEEERY approximated their carrying amounts. Property management
R ERBIRIEAE ARG B R - R services and value-added services are received in accordance
HAEZZRKMER - with the terms of the relevant services agreements, and due for
payment upon the issuance of invoice.
AEHERB BV BRELEDNESRR The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
TEMTEAEAIBABLER A EB expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
BarfrfmEE 5 RIGIEL G RFER the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
MEETMIBABEX - REFE2TEHER receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
B ESRKFEBERBXRANEHAR receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
ST R B A BUEITHE - B HEIR characteristics and the days past due. Movements on the
RIEREREZEI M E31.2 B provision for impairment of trade receivables are shown in
20194 220185128318 - HE 5 & Note 3.1.2. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, a provision of
WRIB B RER T AR 41,163,000 RMB41,163,000 and RMB37,410,000 was made against the
& AR #37,410,00070 KRB i o R gross amounts of trade receivables. The provision for impairment
BEREREZE2019F EFERN - RE increased during the year ended 2019 due to the increase of
& B 5 R IB A ERIE N - trade receivables balance.
20194 M2018F12A31H » K& As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, no trade receivables of the
AR & 5 MR IE L ERfE 3K - Group was pledged to secure borrowings granted to the Group.
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24

ANRE - RERHEMWER

24

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

MIE RECEIVABLES
R12A318
As at 31 December
2019% 2018F
2019 2018
AR%TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB" 000
b FEEN Ik JEENHR
Current Non-current Current Non-current
(BE751) (gE51)
(Restated) (Restated)
FERRE Prepayments
- PERREE RIS R - Utilities and outsourced services 37,219 - 28,694 -
- IR RBBEREEME - Raw materials for engineering
and maintenance services 3,375 - 3,880 -
it Subtotal 40,594 - 32,574 -
MR EIELER Input VAT to be deducted 4,010 - 1,047 -
®e Deposits 26,016 3,570 18,021 2,840
Hib MR Other receivables
- REXMF (M) ~ Payments on behalf of property
owners (Note) 32,792 - 31,986 -
— Hfth - Other 9,697 - 19,373 -
et Subtotal 42,489 = 51,359 -
B Total 113,109 3,570 103,001 2,840
W EEWNEE RS REREE  Less: allowance for impairment of
other receivables and deposits (12,848) (36) (7,606) (28)
100,261 3,534 95,395 2,812

MIEE . K20194F 20185 12A318 » ZE&HEEER
REZBNODEKERRERFERAZA
HIFRIR ©

MA20194F NM2018F12A31H » AR R
B e REMEWEIES AR
=

FERRIE - Re REMERZKE (T8
FEEMNRIBE RS TR #®IESESR)
BRI RS2 - BERE
REZE2019%12A318 IEF E & -
FRRREMNKE -« e REMEKRKIE
(T EIEEMNRIE RS TR A EIBIGE
i) &EERIE NN -

Note: As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the amounts represented the payments
on behalf of property owners in respect of mainly utilities and elevator
maintenance costs of the properties.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables were denominated in RMB.

Movements on the provision for impairment of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and input
VAT to be deducted) are shown in note 3.1.2. The provision for
impairment increased during the year ended 31 December 2019
due to the increase of balance of prepayments, deposits and
other receivables (excluding prepayments and input VAT to be
deducted).
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25 BRERBRESEEY 25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
®12831H

As at 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
AR%TR ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&E5)
(Restated)
FHBRE Cash on hand 5 881
RITHR & Cash in banks 1,323,494 1,279,543
SANREEE Cash in payment platforms 15,593 845
1,339,092 1,281,269
RERBSFEMEANERERMENLTS] The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents balances are

BHEE denominated in the following currencies:
MW12A318

As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
ARBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(&E5)
(Restated)
ETT usD 1,188 1,168
AR RMB 1,104,032 718,392
BT HKD 233,872 561,709
1,339,092 1,281,269
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26

LN 26

RNABIEHR2018F1F16HEFRSHE
AL o REEMACIZ B E - SRR AR
A51,200% 7 © 7 A51,200 F % HEE
1.00% 7T /) & 8 % - 72019F 12 A31
B - JAER A A10,000,000,000 0 & i
E{EO0.01ZETTHIMRD ©

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16
January 2018. At the date of incorporation, the authorised
share capital is USD51,200 comprising 51,200 ordinary shares of
USD1.00 each. As at 31 December 2019, the authorised share
was 10,000,000,000 shares at par value of USD0.01.

BEEITRHRERR Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
BROEE Ep9 AR®
Number
of shares usbD RMB
20191 A81H At 1 January 2019 820,000,000 8,200,000 56,639,012
RN EE e K sr sl (BdsE) Share buy-back and cancellation (Note)  (1,900,000) (19,000) (131,237)
72019412 A31H At 31 December 2019 818,100,000 8,181,000 56,507,775

M3E : & Z22019F12A318 L FE - A RQ A
8% @ K& & $51,900,0008% B {5 0 B A
#%10,640,000% 7T (M) 1 & R A R %
9,390,0007T) ©

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company bought back and
cancelled 1,900,000 shares at the cost of HKD10,640,000 (equivalent to
RMB9,390,000 approximately).
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27 f##& 27 RESERVES
7®2017%12A31H As at 31 December 2017 61,003
FA—FH THEEEH Business combination under common control 6,561
A2018F 1818 » BE?| As at 1 January 2018, restated 67,564
i EIREIE A AERA A Capital contribution from the previous shareholder of
(TFWER]) SRR EE Xincheng Fuyue Management Consulting Co., Ltd.
(“Xincheng fuyue”) 127,000
JEFERR AR R EE Contribution from non-controlling shareholder 2,071
KARHEEALE Capital contribution from the owners of the Company 226,997
08 [ PRI IR ) D B Buy-back of minority interests of Tibet Xinchengyue (53,302)
W BB ST = 1R Acquisition of Xincheng Fuyue (241,455)
BARLETT Capitalisation issue (41,445)
ERERRFRABE Global initial public offering 473,491
1T BEARC AR FE Exercise of over-allotment option 49,735
720185 12A31H As at 31 December 2018 610,656
20191818 As at 1 January 2019 610,656
RARZRBRE (H5E32) Dividend paid by the Company (note 32) (82,000)
B—ZEH THEESH (M1E33) Business combination under common control (note 33) (29,942)
FEEHERREARARER Capital contribution from the then shareholder of
R E (KMiita) Shanghai Shuyuan Information Technology Co., Ltd.
(Note a) 2,812
B0 Rk sE Ry (MIsE26) Buy-back and cancellation of shares (note 26) (9,259)
FhE B i% ) BB ET 2 W B I (0 Acquisition of shares for Employ Share Award
(Ft7x28) Scheme (note 28) (102,754)
EEBIHETE — EEREH Employee Share Option Scheme — value of employee
BB (fizE28) service (note 28) 8,211
720195 12A31H As at 31 December 2019 397,724
MfiEa) : M201943 8198 * AR FRLEBRE —IFH T % Note (a): On 19 March 2019, the then shareholder of the entity that the Company
BAGWENEREROREEARARTIREZ acquired through business combination under common control contributed
HERZAMHEAREIBEET - capital with the amount of RMB3 million before the Company acquired the
entity.
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28

R B ERB N

(a)

BRETE

BiE EH A2019F9 A28 B
BB AR RIEN—EERER
E([BRERED - BEBER
RS MEEHEZERNES (8
BEE) ¥ 14 ££16,000,00017
B LURBARRRAR
16,000,000(% & f% M {E0.0013%
TR G  TEEABREM
61887 - ML BERETEIE T
REEBELMNERRAEIES
ABASBERRRERBERED
BEXER -

HREE (BEES) BEMNE
fe#EtEImE - ARFEEEEA
FEZE - RNARSEE A A E
FEEBA] E4 IRED
H Hi2019F9H2H %1218 A -
2418 B 3618 A 5 Bl B AR 1
H40% * 30% K30% o B A% 4%

55 B B HI 2024108 19H
B o

RIREE AR RE T S 5 H AY BE AR R
= 1 HE2019F9 2B A A
BEEAL15SEEE T (HER
AR¥37.76E8L) » WiEBEK
M-EATERN ([ZEAE

) B -

KRB E2019F 128318 Lt FE
FHmBRENE L BB ME
ATFERTMNERE264E T
(20185 : &) - XL A E W
HEHAFEER -EXEXES
BT WEEITHEE - BRES
R EERE (NEX) « R
B AR AR (B R AHEE IR (0 HY TE BB
BTE - BB MEE - B
7 HA PR A9 Z R B R 2= LA J2 R AR R
AIMBERH KR ©

28

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

(a)

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated 2 September 2019, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”).
total number of 16,000,000 shares options to selected
current employees (including directors) to subscribe for
16,000,000 shares of USD0.001 each in the share capital
of the Company with exercise price of HK$6.18 per share.
The shares options granted are for recognition of the

Under the Share Option Scheme, a

contribution of employees and to provide incentives for
the employees to continuously make greater contributions
for the Group's long-term growth in the future.

For shares options granted to employees (including
directors), subject to the meeting of the criteria of annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of
"Pass” for the year before the relevant vesting date, can
be vested 12 months, 24 months and 36 months after
the grant day dated 2 September 2019 with 40%, 30%
and 30% of the share options, separately. The share
options are valid from the vesting date to 19 October
2024.

The fair value of the shares options granted under the
Share Option Scheme as at 2 September 2019, the grant
date, was HKD42.15 million (equivalent to RMB37.76
million), and was determined by adopting the Binomial
Pricing Model (the “Binomial Model”).

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$2.64
per option (2018 — nil). The fair value at grant date is
independently determined using Binomial Pricing Model
that takes into account the exercise price, the term of
the option, the impact of dilution (where material), the
share price at grant date and expected price volatility of
the underlying share, the expected dividend yield, the
risk free interest rate for the term of the option and the
correlations and volatilities of the peer group companies.
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28 LUIRGOBEROLIR @

(a)

BRETE (B)

RNEE2019F12A318 L F E
B R B AR IR AL g A BR B
£

(a) REERELEE R
20199 A2 H E20244F
10198 AJ 1T E M 55 /8
HE AR

(b) TEME : 6.18% 7T (2018
F— =)

(0) % H HH 20195942
A (20184 — &)

(d) | HA B : 2024510819
H (20184 — )

(e) R BHMRE - 5.86
BT (20184 — &)

) DA K TB BB AR
18 : 60.3% (20184 —
)

(9) FEHREWZEE :1.95%
(20184 — #%)

(h) ZE B A EX:1.15%
(20184 — &)

B RRE R R IR T IR B I 2R 1R
(REBRENNSBFHAE) B
EEMEF YERATREHAHR
B R B AT AR 3 R SRR 18 ) TR

H E201912A318 I F E
AEEFAERRE (BEEE)
BEMEBREERRAIAR
#8,211,0007T °

28 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

The model inputs for options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2019 included:

(a) options are granted for no consideration and
vested options are exercisable from 2 September
2019 to 19 October 2024

(b) exercise price: HK$6.18 (2018 — nil)

(o) grant date: 2 September 2019 (2018 — nil)

(d) expiry date: 19 October 2024 (2018 — nil)

(e) share price at grant date: HK$5.86 (2018 — nil)

(f) expected price volatility of the company’s shares:
60.3% (2018 — nil)

(9) expected dividend yield: 1.95% (2018 — nil)

(h) risk-free interest rate: 1.15% (2018 — nil)

The expected price volatility is based on the historic
volatility (based on the remaining life of the options),
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
due to publicly available information.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recognised RMB8,211,000 expenses in relation to
the Share Option Scheme to the current employees
(including directors).
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28

R HERNNTR @

(b)

47 SR Bt &

2019F11 158 » B HE & &
FELHESRNEERREHER
BEERFRER  EFERNR
HAHEBRMN— RGN REE
2l - IRIBAR D REFTEIEL AIFRT
ERBAERE I ENEEROEE
(T BEERER K ZE 82
WE BREIAR (D) BEFTSEBBRN
R B AR BB BT A B E
#11.25% + BBRIFESSIRANL
1E - BRI 2R AT 21 B 4N
B ERE10F RAB K »

BERZR AR REEES
BB E R X AR AT
SEABRERG - WAEEE
XNRBERCEF2EERE &
EREROIZTERAIEE T8
BT 2 mE B - BEM
221 BT LA © 2019
F12A318 AR AIE MG 2
BErEIZEX AR AR TISE
AG H1,0008 K& Hm - BRE
#“ B ANREE102,754,0007T °

B £2019%F12A31H 1B itk
f&in S2EET 8 - MARAEEE
BEREBRMD -

28

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)

(b)

Share Award Scheme

On 15 November 2019, the Board resolved to adopt a
Share Award Scheme for its employees in order to provide
incentive for the Selected Participants to continuously
make greater contributions for the Group’s long-term
growth in the future. The aggregated maximum number
of Shares underlying all grants made pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme (excluding Award Shares that have
been forfeited in accordance with the Share Award
Scheme) must not exceed 1.25% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date and the
Share Award Scheme is effective for 10 years from the
Adoption Date unless early terminated by the Board.

Based on the resolution, the Company entrusted the
Trustee to purchase existing Shares in the open market
based on the overall remuneration incentive plan. The
Trustee holds such Shares on behalf of the relevant
Selected Participants on trust, until such Shares are vested
with the relevant Selected Participants in accordance with
the Scheme Rules. The trust is consolidated in accordance
with note 2.2.1.As at 31 December 2019, the Company
had entrusted the trustee to purchase an aggregate of
10 million shares from the open market for the Share
Award Scheme at a total consideration of approximately
RMB102,754,000.

As of 31 December 2019, no share had been granted to
employees of the Group under this Share Award Scheme.
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29 & 29 PROVISION
®12831H
As at 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
AR¥TFT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&E5)
(Restated)
EERE Legal claims 394 1,050
20194 K2018F12A31H » KN &E E As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group made the
HABTETIRAFTEERENEEE provisions for the potential losses to be incurred from certain
BT - properties owners and former employees.
30 EZRHEMENRIE 30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
®12A318
As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR¥T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(&E5)
(Restated)
B SR RIE (MFEa)) Trade payables (Note (a))
—%=H — Third parties 254,192 80,309
H fth FE < 5018 Other payables
— BT E A — Accrued expenses 43,328 19,780
— REFWEHFIA — Amounts collected on behalf of
property owners 301,852 219,788
— Hi — Others 8,347 4,031
353,527 243,599
EEt# € Accrued payroll 137,752 72,026
Hith e 518 Other tax payables 28,289 20,812
773,760 416,746
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30 ESRHEMENSRIE @

(a)

20194 20184128318 » &
REEZAPNE S EMNFENER
BRI -

30 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)

(a)

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the ageing analysis
of the trade payables based on invoice date were are
follows:

MW12A318

As at 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
AR®T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(g&E7)
(Restated)
1F AR Within 1 year 252,864 79,388
18225 1 to 2 years 722 533
2E34F 2 to 3 years 241 251
3TN Over 3 years 365 137
254,192 80,309

B 5 MEAM RN FIRGERORE
BN THIERERHE -

(b)

The carrying amount of trade and other payables
balances are denominated in the following currencies:

®12A318

As at 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
ARET T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(&=75)
(Restated)
AR ¥ RMB 773,760 412,645
BT HKD = 4,101
773,760 416,746
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31 EBLEREHR 31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
FREMBRRERNELERSHEE S The analysis of deferred tax assets in the consolidated statements
T of financial position was as follows:

®12A831H
As at 31 December
20195 20194F
2019 2018
AR¥ET T ARBET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(E75)
(Restated)
BEIEFTISTEE - Deferred tax assets:
— Him 1218 A B UL E — Deferred tax asset to be recovered
EIEFTSFE & after more than 12 months = 48
— 128 B AUk E Ky EE — Deferred tax asset to be recovered
TS EE within 12 months 40,372 24,172
40,372 24,220
BILEFTSHEE Deferred tax liabilities:
— iR 121E8 A U= A — Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered
BEEFTSHAE after more than 12 months - -
— 1218 B Ak e KR E — Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered
B aE (MaE14(d) within 12 months (note 14(d)) 13,428 4,646
13,428 4,646
BEFAEREE — FE Deferred tax assets—net 26,944 19,574
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31 BEREHR @) 31 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)
TEER—EUE 2 EHREE - 22 The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
20195 IEFEMBRLEMSEHEERAE during the year ended 2019, without taking into consideration
ZEEWT ¢ the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as

follows:
BEEHEAE Deferred income tax assets
RERE EitEe HEER HEYE BB st
Allowance
on doubtful Accrued Tax Leasing
debts payroll losses Impact Provision Total
ARBTRT ARMTR AR¥Tr AR%Tn AR%TR ARET:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
®2019%1R1A As at 1 January 2019 9,622 14,340 48 - 210 24,220
A/ (NR) 428 Credited/(Charged) to
WAK the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income 2,617 13,670 (48) 44 (131) 16,152
12019512318 At 31 December 2019 12,239 28,010 - 44 79 40,372
®2018F1A1A As at 1 January 2018 6,603 10,132 399 - 175 17,309
A/ (NR) 428 Credited/(Charged) to
WAF the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income 3,019 4,208 (351) - 35 6,911
#2018%F12A318 At 31 December 2018 9,622 14,340 48 - 210 24,220
BRI AR Deferred income tax liabilities
KRERNB
Withholding tax for dividend
ARBT T
RMB’000
(HiEx(a))
(note (a))
#A2019F181H As at 1 January 2019 4,646
Mkire2mEmbB AR Charged to the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income 8,782
A2019F12A31H At 31 December 2019 13,428
7A2018F181H As at 1 January 2018 -
ke 2EBAK Charged to the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income 4,646
720185 12H31H At 31 December 2018 4,646
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31

EEREH @)

(a)

R2019F12A31H AEEE
HABRIINEEEEGES T
B f 8 A B & ) AR BE AT
fic 1) B E BE ) B FE 2 S M9 TR N
MERRECEMBHABARE
13,428,000 (20184 : AR
4,646,0007T) °

MR2019F 128318 &K £
AP RRINREEEEE
FTHREWNBARAHARE
292,728,0007T (20184 : A R
#108,354,0007T) K K I {1 7]
73 ) A B L B PR S AT 9 TR 40
MIERABREMSHEEA
[R#29,272,0007t (20184 + A
R #10,835,0007T) * EJ5EAR
ZEMBRIERBIRE -

EHBRAGEELEERENEE
BAERKREKRA - AlepnsE s
MIBEERRECHSHEE -
#H E=2019%F128318 ILF & -
NEBEIWEARE141,0007T
(2018%F : A X #1,883,0007T)
KRR IE SRR E A HAE AN
HiE AR ERBIMARNIELERS
i & E A R #35,0005T (2018
£ AR¥A471,0007T) ° NEE
R B ZERET A BT IEE
BAAESEZHT - ZEHEEB
B 5 B R2020%F - 20214 -
20224 N 20234E B B HA -

31

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

(a)

As at 31 December 2019, deferred income tax liabilities
of RMB13,428,000 (2018: RMB4,646,000) have been
recognised for the withholding tax that would be
payable upon remittance, in respect of a portion of the
unremitted distributable profits of certain PRC subsidiaries
attributable to the investors outside PRC.

As at 31 December 2019, deferred income tax liabilities
of RMB29,272,000 (2018: RMB10,835,000) have not
been recognised for the withholding tax that would be
payable upon remittance, in respect of the unremitted
distributable profits of certain PRC subsidiaries
attributable to the investors outside PRC amounting
to RMB292,728,000 (2018: RMB108,354,000) as such
profits are intended to be reinvested.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of
the related tax benefits through future taxable profit is
probable. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
RMB35,000 (2018: RMB471,000) in respect of tax losses
amounting to RMB141,000 (2018: RMB1,883,000) that
can be carried forward against future taxable income. Tax
losses of group companies operated in the PRC could be
carried forward for a maximum of five years. These tax
losses will expire up to and including years 2020, 2021,
2022 and 2023 respectively.
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32

BB 32 DIVIDENDS
HZ12831HLLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
AR®TT AR®ET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(gE5)
(Restated)
[ e=A Dividends 82,000 59,000

018F MR EBRLEREBRARE
0.17C B AN A & 201965 H20H £
THRRBFARS LHE - BT ARKE
82,000,0007T ° #Z % B 1A% 17 i 18 B
e BHE2019F 128318 - ZRBEEE
HURMT -

MR20206F3A1BHERITWEST S &
F EERREARMNEERREETR
TR A RB0.187T 20194 K HI IR
B MR BN ER L ETHREFRT
TEEM RS - HEARFRERARRERE
RERAFE RS EHERIIEE Z2020F
12A31 B IEFERIREFERE -

A final dividend in respect of 2018 of RMBO0.1 per ordinary
share, amounting to RMB82,000,000 was approved at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 20 May 2019.
The dividend is reflected as an appropriation of share premium.
As of 31 December 2019, the dividend had been fully paid.

At a Board meeting held on 13 March 2020, the directors
proposed a final dividend for 2019 of RMB0.18 per ordinary
share using the share premium account. This proposed dividend
is not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of reserves
for the year ending 31 December 2020 upon approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.
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33

W A R (RIS B

M2019F5H208 © KEEWE H8H
W (AEREXERS —RBEADRIH
B70%K30%HEz=m) 22 FHTR
K HEREABARE29,941,5007T °

WIEWARAS REAREH BEENERE
Bt WEFERAAEHEIEAR - Bt
R2018F 12 A31 HHER A BIISIAR R &
HZE2018F12A31B L EENGZAEEE
WAK  EnEBREASREREL
B WRMAZFEMUREEENES -

HE2018FE12A31B ILEFERMAHS
FHAEEREE2018F12A318HIEFE
MASLBERE2ABRARKNQREE AR
15 #1185 51 3 o A R #1,876,0007T &
AR#1,757,0007T ©

EXPR S e AR B £2018
FI2A3MBIEFENGEE2EBALXS
BHEZZEWMT

EXFME G EFHAEN HEZE2018
F12A3MBLFENGAZEKARST
BHZZEWT

33

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (BUSINESS
COMBINATION)

The Group acquired 100% of the issued capital of Shanghai
Shuyuan on 20 May 2019, which was owned as to 70% and
30% by Mr. Wang Zhenhua and another individual respectively,
at a cash consideration of RMB29,941,500.

The acquisition is considered as a business combination involving
entities under common control and has been accounted for by
using merger accounting method. As a result, the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018 and the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2018
have been restated to include the results of the acquired entities
during that year.

The adoption of merger accounting for the year ended 31
December 2018 has resulted in an increase in the Group’s total
comprehensive income and profit attributable to the owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 by
RMB1,876,000 and RMB1,757,000 respectively.

The effect of the merger accounting restatement described
above on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2018 by line items is as follows:

The effect of the merger accounting restatement described
above on the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2018 by line items is as follows:
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33 WEKBLR (E¥E6f) @ 33

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (BUSINESS

COMBINATION) (Cont'd)

HZ2018F EZE2018F
12A31H 12H31H
LHEE EHtETE LHEE
For the year For the year
ended Merger ended
31 December accounting 31 December
2018 adjustment 2018
AR%TR AR TR AR% TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(REZ5) (RE5)
(Originally
presented) (Restated)
WA Revenue 1,149,949 23,439 1,173,388
HHE MR A Cost of sales and services (810,973) (17,393) (828,366)
ESY Gross profit 338,976 6,046 345,022
HENEHEER Selling and marketing expenses (6,943) - (6,943)
B Administrative expenses (144,405) (3,294) (147,699)
SREANEER Net impairment losses on financial and
EEIEFE contract assets (12,336) - (12,336)
HABA Other income 11,145 141 11,286
HthER Other expenses (436) (3) (439)
Hith ez %58 Other gains - net 18,409 - 18,409
Feg =P b Operating profit 204,410 2,890 207,300
BN Finance income 6,156 12 6,168
R BT S % 1 7 Profit before income tax 210,566 2,902 213,468
e &R Income tax expense (47,364) (1,026) (48,390)
FRFE Profit for the year 163,202 1,876 165,078
IATALEEEARNFE : Profit for the year is attributable to:
—AREEEA — Owners of the Company 150,397 1,757 152,154
— SRR S - Non-controlling interests 12,805 119 12,924
163,202 1,876 165,078
FREZEBA Total comprehensive income for the year
T ATEEFAR Total comprehensive income for the year
ZHEREA : is attributable to:
R YNEIEZ=PN — Owners of the Company 150,397 1,757 152,154
— R R - Non-controlling interests 12,805 119 12,924
163,202 1,876 165,078
BREF (LAR¥TRR) Earnings per share(expressed in RMB)
— FREKREF - Basic earnings per share 0.24 - 0.24
— BEEAT ~ Diluted earnings per share 0.24 - 0.24
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33 WEKBLAR (E¥E6f) @ 33

EXFTEtmA e HEENEE E2018
F12A31B L FEMNPERRPZIEZ

COMBINATION) (Cont'd)

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (BUSINESS

The effect of the merger accounting restatement described
above on the financial position as at 31 December 2018 by line

FEWMT - items is as follows:
201845 201845
12A31H aHERE 12A31H
As at Merger As at
31 December accounting 31 December
2018 adjustment 2018
AR%TR AR%TR AR% TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(EE25) (E5)
(Originally
presented) (Restated)
FREBEE Non-current assets
ME  WE MK Property, plant and equipment 8,323 66 8,389
EVEE Intangible assets 12,031 - 12,031
RIEFMEREE Deferred income tax assets 24,220 - 24,220
%me Deposits 2,812 - 2,812
BARBEGT AEHM Financial assets at fair value through
EEBANEREE other comprehensive income 1,660 - 1,660
FEfT A Prepayments 5,393 180 5,573
FRBEELE Total non-current assets 54,439 246 54,685
RBEE Current assets
7E Inventories 8,597 3,134 11,731
Z SR EIE Trade receivables 128,873 245 129,118
BARIE - Zek i Prepayments, deposits and other
e FRIE receivables 82,462 12,933 95,395
BeNReEED Cash and cash equivalents 1,277,821 3,448 1,281,269
RBEELE Total current assets 1,497,753 19,760 1,517,513
BEHE Total assets 1,552,192 20,006 1,572,198
& Equity
EARBEE AEGLRER Equity attributable to owners of the Company
PR Share capital 56,639 - 56,639
[ Reserves 604,095 6,561 610,656
RERT Retained earnings 184,250 3,579 187,829
844,984 10,140 855,124
FERMRER Non-controlling interests 22,088 679 22,767
A Total equity 867,072 10,819 877,891
= Liabilities
kRBER Non-current liabilities
B Provisions 1,050 - 1,050
RIERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 4,646 - 4,646
FRBEEEE Total non-current liabilities 5,696 - 5,696

F-234 #WRBREEMEAER AT S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited

201944 %R 2019 Annual Report



PR RaR Myt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HZE2019F12 A31H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

33

WM B AR (RBEH) @ 33

EXFTHE A e R EEYIEE E2018
FNAALEFENYBRRPSEZ

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (BUSINESS

COMBINATION) (Cont'd)

The effect of the merger accounting restatement described

above on the financial position as at 31 December 2018 by line

FEWNT items is as follows:
H2018% 20184
12A31H aHEE 12A31H
As at Merger As at
31 December accounting 31 December
2018 adjustment 2018
AR¥ TR AR®T R AR% TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(REZ75) (RE5)
(Originally (Restated)
presented)
RBEE Current liabilities
SRAR Contract liabilities 248,764 - 248,764
B 5 RHEAMEN IR Trade and other payables 407,559 9,187 416,746
BIEFTS R ek Current income tax liabilities 23,101 - 23,101
REBEELAE Total current liabilities 679,424 9,187 688,611
BEHE Total liabilities 685,120 9,187 694,307
EERkEEAE Total equity and liabilities 1,552,192 20,006 1,572,198
REEETHE Net current assets 818,329 10,573 828,902
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34 BHEREHR 34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
() RETBFASREELFHR (a) Net cash generated from operating activities
BZ12A31HLEE

For the year
ended 31 December

2019%F 20184
2019 2018
ARBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(gE5)
(Restated)
& T8 8i B AE Profit before income tax 391,991 213,468
BFEE Adjustments for:
— FERIESIERE — Amortisation of non-current portion
BB 5 of prepayments 3,402 1,191
— W% - BENKZEUR — Depreciation of property, plant and
FREEERE (MiE16) equipment and right of use assets
(note 16) 5,460 1,647
—FReEBEBAFEZ — A — Non-cash employee benefits expense
[ ABET AR (H5E28) - share based payments (note 28) 8,211 -
—fEREEREE (ME17) — Amortisation of intangible assets
(note 17) 922 439
- ERERENEERE — Net impairment losses on financial
EigF R (KisE3.1.2) and contract assets (note 3.1.2) 10,324 12,336
— HEWE  BEMREN — Net losses on disposal of property,
EBFRE (MiE16) plant and equipment (note 16) 5 42
—BARBEF ABRZD — Net fair value gains on financial
TREENARERE assets at fair value through profit
WesgEa (KIaE11) or loss (note 11) (4,128) -
— SNEUWAFEE (KIaE11) — Net foreign exchange gains (note 11) (1,586) (18,451)
— BIRSAAR (M95E12) — Financial costs (note 12) 400 -
—BARBEFABRZD — Interest on financial assets at fair
SMEENFE (KFIE9) value through profit or loss (note 9) (15,450) -
EEESEE Changes in working capital:
—FE — Inventories 1,111 (5,900)
— e WIEREE D - Non-current portion of deposits (730) (560)
—ERNEE — Contract Assets (132,140) -
— B EWFIE — Trade receivables (137,402) (61,332)
— BRIE - e REM — Prepayments, deposits and other
FEWFIA receivables (10,108) (50,439)
— BB — Provisions (656) 103
—aRas - Contract liabilities 141,578 68,047
—EZREMENFIE - Trade and other payables 357,014 65,190
618,218 225,781
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3 BRERER @ 34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(b) FRERERMETEE (b) Non-cash investing and financing activities
M128318
As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR®TT ARBTTT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
W BR(F R E E Acquisition of right-of-use assets 11,081 -
AR RE ST 2 LARR D A LA Share-base payment on Share Option
BT (PF3E28) Scheme (Note 28) 8,211 -
19,292 -
() FaERAFHX (c) Net debt reconciliation
TEHINNEMRAHENFEE This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the
ATRFEEEY - movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.
®12A318
As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR®ETF T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FEE: Net debt:
Be MIBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,339,092 1,281,269
FEE Net debt 1,339,092 1,281,269
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34 BEREE @
(0 FEERTX @)

34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Cont'd)

(o) Net debt reconciliation (Cont'd)

ReRRE &R —
Z£EY R-FrER st
Borrowings
Cash and - repayable
cash within
equivalents one year Total
AR¥T R AR¥TR AR¥TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2019F1A1HHFAME Net debt as at 1 January 2019 1,281,269 - 1,281,269
Bens Cash flows 56,237 - 56,237
ERBHIHIHS RIRS Effect of exchange rate changes
SEYNTE on cash and cash equivalents 1,586 - 1,586
R2019F12A31HK Net debt as at 31 December
FAERE 2019 1,339,092 - 1,339,092
7201851 A1AMFEAME Net debt as at 1 January 2018 703,824 (65,900) 637,924
BeRe Cash flows 558,873 65,900 624,773
[EXREEFHIBS MRS Effect of exchange rate changes
EEMNTE on cash and cash equivalents 18,572 - 18,572
R2018F 12 A31HH Net debt as at 31 December
FRE 2018 1,281,269 - 1,281,269

35 HAFHEEE
(a) WERH

2019412 A31H 2018412

A318  EFEHIREDT ¢

35 COMMITMENTS

(a) Investment commitment

As at 31 December 2019 and 31

committed investments are as follows:

December 2018,

MW12A318
As at 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
ARETFT AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
REEE R E) R ERERE Committed investments in associates 550 -
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35

36

AEETE ()

(b)

REHEERE - FREBEA

AEBRET A EHEOM
AMAZERBIES - HANT
—ERhF - BRZHHEANTIEER
By HE AR R ERERFBRT

AT HRE AR AR A B B R R
KHENR@RIDT

35 COMMITMENTS (cCont'd)
(b) Operating lease commitments - as lessee

The Group leases offices and staff dormitories under
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease
terms are between 1 and 5 years, and the majority of
lease agreements are signed with related parties and
renewable at the end of the lease period at market rate.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

MW12A318
As at 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
AR¥TT AR®ET T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
1A No later than 1 year 5 2,452
1512 {E5F R Later than 1 year and no later than
5 years - 4,537
5 6,989
BELIRS 36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
() EBEHASEBREEREE LT WE (a) Names and relationship with related parties
1%

QB & &R R A 8 ABlnfinity
Fortune Development Limited Xz

REEBRBERBERE

The Ultimate Holding Company of the Company is
Infinity Fortune Development Limited and the Ultimate
Controlling Shareholder of the Company is Mr. Wang.
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BEBERS (@)

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

BHERS (b) Transactions with related parties
BZ12A31BLLEE
For the year
ended 31 December
20195 2018%F
2019 2018
AR¥TR ARBETTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
(&=E5)
(Restated)
AR Provision of services
— FRAEEHINES — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 827,159 289,583
—TRENEE RS — Joint ventures and associates of
Mr. Wang 191,230 94,520
1,018,389 384,103
RITERF S WA Interest income from deposit with
a bank
—REAEEAFENER — Entities significantly influenced by
Mr. Wang 9 18
HeBA Rental expenses
— FRAEHNERE — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang - 1,549
B T RSB TR Payment on behalf of the Group by
related parties
— FhEAEEHINEE — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 44,605 28,018
EEER Repayments of loans
— ERAEFINES — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang - 65,900
HEAEBEMRBENT SR Interest expenses related to lease
liabilities
— ERAEEFINESR — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 400 -
WERFFREEE Acquisition of right of use assets
— ERAEEFINESR — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 8,783 -

BRI B R MR ZHERIR
BAEKNITHEREERRRERE

The prices for the above service fees and other
transactions were determined in accordance with the

terms mutually agreed by the contract parties.
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36

BEARS (@)
(c) FEESEASTFN

BAREIZ A BMFI (ME37H AT

BOEZHMEN) EIT

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

() Key management compensation

Compensations for key management other than those for
directors as disclosed in note 37 is set out below.

HZ12831HLEE
For the year
ended 31 December

20195 20184
2019 2018
AR®ETF T ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
€ s==27))
(Restated)
FekEMRHESEF Salaries and other short-term
employee benefits 11,860 3,820

(d) EEEABT M AERR

(d) Balances with related parties

M12A318
As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR¥T T ARMET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
(& E5))
(Restated)
JE Wi B B U5 3B Receivables from related parties
B S EWGRIE Trade receivables
— FRAEEFINES - Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 102,914 29,909
—FREMNGERBEDE — Joint ventures and associates of
Mr. Wang 62,567 19,853
165,481 49,762
H At JE W R IE Other receivables
— ERAEEFINESR — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang - 12,850
BHEE Contract assets
— FRAEEHINER - Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 104,281 -
—FREMNGERBEDE — Joint ventures and associates of
Mr. Wang 26,538 -
130,819 -
FEURRERE T B R & 4V EE#EE  Total receivables and contract assets
from related parties 296,300 62,612
BB 7 RITE R (M) Bank deposit with a related party (Note)
—ZEFREERTENELL — Entity significantly influenced by
Mr. Wang 4,465 10,259
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36

37

BEARS (@)
(d) EEEAEGMEER (&)

M : FERERETE-RTES A
SEREZRITHBRITER - .

36

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(d) Balances with related parties (Cont'd)

Note: The Group has bank deposits at a bank which Mr. Wang acts as
one of the directors of the bank.

JRE A< B 73 3K IR
BHAERE

Payables to related parties

Contract liabilities

— BRAEEHINERE — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 17,781 -
— SRR ARINAEE R — Joint ventures and associates of
B the Ultimate Holding Company 10,594 -
28,375 -
HEAE Lease liabilities
— BTN ER - Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 6,196 -
A BA R T SRIB 4 RE Total payables to related parties 34,571 -

ESENANERER

BHZE2019%F12A318 U TEERSR
EHEEZRTE:

HITES
B RSEE (BER)
RfEBELRLE
WrELELE

FHITES

FREMSELE (R201967 A8HEEEA
FEHMITESE)

BNFEEAE

B AR RR e A

TIRERE (201997 ASHEHT)

BYEBITES

AL
REXRE
FERTR A

37

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS

Until 31 December 2019, the following directors and senior
managements were appointed:

Executive Directors

Mr. Qi Xiaoming, Chairman
Ms. Wu Qiangian
Mr. Lan Ziyong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Xiaosong (appointed as non-executive Director on 8
July 2019)

Mr. Lv Xiaoping

Mr. Lu Zhongming

Mr. Wang Zhenhua (resigned on 8 July 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin
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37

EENNERER 8 37
(a) ES=HE

H E20199F12A318 I F 5
ETEASEMKERNME (7
HEZAAREZZAIDRIARR
EREREESD) AT

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)
(a) Directors’ emoluments

The directors received emoluments from the Group (in
their role as senior management and employee before
their appointment as directors respectively) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 as follows:

EEHER
ne 7 4 Bl BINGTEMER &3t
Housing
allowances and
contributions
Share  to a retirement
%% Name Fees Salaries Bonus options scheme Total
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETn  ARETR AEETR  ARBTR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WnEs Executive Directors
HiNAE Mr. Qi Xiaoming - 1,980 895 770 100 3,745
REERL Ms. Wu Qiangian - 809 m 513 100 1783
RTE%E M. Lan Ziyong - Al 303 513 15 1,608
BUFHTES Independent non-executive Directors
FRRT Ms. Zhang Yan 200 - - - - 200
REXE Mr. Zhu Wei 200 - - - - 200
HHMREE Mr. Xu Xinmin 200 - - - - 200
600 3,506 1,519 1,796 275 7,696
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37

BEENANERER (@) 37
(a) EEM< (&) (a)

H E2018%F12A318 1L F &
ETEASEMKERMNME (7
HEZAAEZZAIDRIARR
EREREESD) AT :

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)

Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)

The directors received emoluments from the Group (in
their role as senior management and employee before
their appointment as directors respectively) for the year
ended 31 December 2018 as follows:

FEHmER
ik e bizan RN IR st
Housing
allowances and
contributions to
a retirement

4 Name Fees Salaries Bonus scheme Total
AREFT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
WITER Executive Directors

NP Mr. Qi Xiaoming - 1,800 960 98 2,858
REELL Ms. Wu Qiangian - 703 297 98 1,098
MfBELE Mr. Lan Ziyong - 637 313 87 1,037

BFEMITES Independent non-executive

Directors

SRIER L Ms. Zhang Yan 90 - - - 90
KIELAE Mr. Zhu Wei 90 _ _ _ 90
HEHREE Mr. Xu Xinmin 40 - - - 40
220 3,140 1,570 283 5,213

(b) EFHERNREF

#H E£20194F N2018F12A31H
LIEFE - BRARIR A AR Bl R 5451
KRR BAIFT BN - EEXL
REBEINDRIKBFI o

() ES=WERER
#H £20194F K2018%F12831H
EFE EFTRESHEBE
F o

(b)

()

Retirement benefits of directors

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no additional retirement benefit received by
the directors except for the attribution to a retirement
benefit scheme in accordance with the rules and
regulations in the PRC.

Termination benefits of directors

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no termination benefits received by the
directors.
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37

BEENANERER (@)

(d)

(e)

REBESRBHE= SR
R B

# =20194F K2018%F12A31H
IEFE BEINRENESE
NEIEEHEIEBRIRE ©

NEE - SEBEEEFRES
NEAEBERRKEEFREN
ERATEZANER EE
RREMRZHERER

H E20194F N2018F12A31H
IEFE » RRRRARRRHE
AR (ER) MENEEAT

HAFTEMER  HERRE
iS5 o
B ESCETItAN - MEIE2019F K

2018F12A3MB ILFEHEE
20194F %2018% 128318 Ik
EAERERE - NARBIERT L
HALEXBEH - BEAXARAE
ERETR BB EE SRS
EMERRS - THRALD -

37

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)

(d)

(e)

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available the services of directors

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
consideration was paid for making available the services
of the directors or senior management of the Company.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
entered into by the Company or subsidiaries undertaking
of the Company, where applicable, in favour of directors.

Except for mentioned above, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company had interests, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the year ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.
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38

HEREE

BE E2020F MR #2019 Bk m 5 &
B (HUTRREMAZEEE])  E
RERBREGEEER— RYERH RIZ
HlEE BREZEEETHEEBHFR
B RSO EEMEEIRE %
SMEATEHTRRE R R EE KRB
ZH - BEREEE - MR THEBRAER
BEMZRERULRERABERSE -

EETA T AL T AR R 55 b AR 1 MR BT 7S 1
AHEEMBEETZE  RNEHERYEE
BRI - BRI A R BERA B
SEHAAIE N - AR AR TRIZER
MERBEZHREREBRE REE
BREWMEREMIZERELESERRR
BERERBWNRED -

AR ER B R B SE F 0 #T BL TE AR 8 5 b A
RIFBRBEH L MFEOHE - A
AEBER B BINLTMRRE S AR
BRENBERETE  UBEEETH
BRI R T EREVEE 516 ©

38

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Following the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“the
COVID-19 outbreak) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and
control measures have been and continued to be implemented
across the country, including extension of the Chinese New Year
holiday nationwide, postponement of work resumption after
the Chinese New Year holiday in some regions, certain level of
restrictions and controls over the travelling of people and traffic
arrangements, quarantine of certain residents, heightening of
hygiene and epidemic prevention requirements in factories and
offices and encouraged social distancing, etc.

In light of the negative impact brought upon by the COVID-19
outbreak in short term, it may lead to increase of costs incurred
by additional hygiene and epidemic prevention requirements
when rendering basic property management services, as well
as decrease of revenue from value added services including
property developer-related services and smart community services
due to various level of restrictions and controls over property
development activities and community activities.

The Group is not yet able to quantify the aforesaid influence due
to the COVID-19 outbreak. However, the Group will pay close
attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and its
impact and will continue to perform relevant assessments and
take proactive measures as appropriate.
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39 RARIMBRARFHESE 39 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
NEILE 3 O Company statement of financial position

2019 % 20185128318 As at 31 December 2019 and 2018

MW12A318
As at 31 December
20194 20184
2019 2018
B st AR%Fx AR®ET T
Note RMB’'000 RMB’'000
EE Assets
FREBEE Non-Current asset
JE U BT B A R F B Amount due from a subsidiary = 195,871
EMENEERTE Total Non-current asset = 195,871
REBEE Current assets
FENRIE - Ze R Prepayments, deposits and other
E b R IE receivables 197,640 16
WARBES AEZAN  Financial asset at fair value through profit
SREE or loss 137,856 -
NWERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 227,337 555,631
MENEELRT Total current assets 562,833 555,647
EESE Total assets 562,833 751,518
R Equity
ARATEE AEGER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
R Share capital 26 56,508 56,639
B Reserves 522,976 708,778
Z2EE1E Accumulated losses (16,651) (19,551)
R Total equity 562,833 745,866
REBAEE Current liabilities
B 5 N E At FE N R Trade and other payables - 5,652
MEBEHREE Total current liabilities - 5,652
BERE Total liabilities - 5652
ERREEHEE Total equity and liabilities 562,833 751,518
RBEERE Net current assets 562,833 549,995
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39

RAMBRRERREED (2

RAPBMRREK (F)
AR R R B S AR S 2 7R B A B e —
FIBIE -

ARRFBRNRELEEEN2020%F
SABHELET R TEERRBEE -

39

FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

Company statement of financial position (Cont'd)
The above Company statement of financial position should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The Company statement of financial position was approved by
the Board of Directors on 13 March 2020 and were signed on its
behalf:

/R REEFE Qi Xiaoming Wu Qiangian
BF BFE Director Director
ARIFEEE Reserve movement of the Company
R12831H
As at 31 December
20195 20184
2019 2018
AR®BT R ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
®1A18 As at 1 January 708,778 -
RABIEAREE (FiFE32) Dividend paid by the Company
(note 32) (82,000) -
85 [0 R Ay (Ff3E26) Buy-back and cancellation of shares
(note 26) (9,259) -
RIR IR B ET B U B AR 1D Acquisition of shares for employ
(Ff17x28) Share Award Scheme (note 28) (102,754) -
EEERENS — RERBEE Employee Share Option Scheme
(BfzE28) — value of employee service (note 28) 8,211 -
RAREBALE Capital contribution from the owners
of the Company - 226,997
BARLETT Capitalisation issue - (41,445)
BITEBR Issue of ordinary share - 523,226
MA12H31H As at 31 December 522,976 708,778

IR R EE AR 2T S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2019F F %R 2019 Annual Report
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